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April 10, 2012

ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS' MEETING

NOTICE OF ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS' MEETING

To: &ll Stockholders of
GMA Network, Inc,

Please be notified that the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of GMA Network, Inc. will be
held on May 16, 2012 (Wednesday) at 10:00 a.m. at the Studio 6, GMA Network Studics, EDSA corner
GMA Network Drive, Diliman, Quezon City to consider, discuss or vote on the following:

Cali to Order

Certification of Notice and Quorum

Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholders' Meeting Held on May 18, 2011
Annual Report of the President

Financial Report

Ratification of the Acts of the Board of Directors/Corporate Officers

Election of Directors {including the Independent Directors)

Election of the Exiernal Auditor

Consideration of such other business as may properly come before the meeting

0. Adjourament

= O ND G W

Any stockholder may vote by proxy provided that such authorization remains unrevoked and on
file with, or is submitied {o, the undersigned at 15/F Sagittarius Building, H.V. De la Costa Street, Salcedo
Village, Makati not later than May 7, 2012.

For purposes of the meeting, only stockholders of record as of Aprit 18, 2012 are entitied to
aftend and vote in the said meeling.

For your convenience in registering your attendance, please bring any form of identification such
as passport, driver’s license or voter's 1.D.

The Organizational Meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held immediately after the Annual
Stockholders” Meeting.

Thank you.
For the Board of Directers

R TO'O. PAREL

Corporate Secretary



We are not soliciting your proxy. However, if you are unable to attend the meeting but would fike to be
represented thereat, you may accomplish the proxy form herein provided below and submit the same io
the Office of the Corporate Secretary on or before May 7, 2012. You may deliver this form or send it in
advance through fax no. (632) 812-0008. Validation of proxies shall be held on May 9, 2012 at 10:00 a.m.
at GMA Network Center.

PROXY

We hereby name and appoint , or in his/her absence, the
Chairman of the Meeting, as my/our proxy at the Annual Stockholders’ Mesting of GMA Network, Inc. to
be held at Studio 6, GMA Network Studios, EDSA corner GMA Network Drive, Diliman, Quezon City on
Wednesday, May 16, 2012 at 10:00 a.m. and at any postponement or adjournment thereof.

Name

Signature

Date

No. of Shares Held
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11.

SEC FORM 20-i8 f

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT 7O SEC'I}%Q-: g
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE{; o

%,

OF

GMA NETWORK, INC.

Check the appropriate box:

[v" ] Pretiminary Information Statement

[ 1Definitive Information Statement

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter: GMA Network, Inc.

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization: Philippines
SEC identification Number: 5213 |

BIR Tax identification Code 000-217-916-30

Address of principat office Postal Code
GMA Network Center, EDSA corner Timog Avenue, Diliman

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (632) 982-7777

Date, time and place of the meetihg of security holders: May 186, 2012, 190:90 a.m,,
Studio 6, GMA Network Studios, EDSA corner GMA Network Drive,

Diliman, Quezon City

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security
holders:

April 24, 2612

in case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor: Not Applicable

Address and Telephone No.: Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
(information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate

registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares Cutstanding
or Amouni of Debt Outstanding

Common Stock 3,361,047,000
Preferred Stock 7,4998,507,184



12, Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in a Stock Exchange?
Yes v No
if yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed therein:

Philippine Stock Exchange / Common Stock



GMA NETWORK, INC.
INFORMATION STATEMENT

This Information Statement dated April 10, 2012 is being furnished to the stockholders of record
of GMA Network, Inc. as of April 18, 2012 in connection with the Annual Stockholders’ Mesting.

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

item 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders.

(a) Date: May 16, 2012
Time: 10:00 a.m. :
Place: Studio 6, GMA Network Studios EDSA corner GMA Network Drive, Diliman, GQuezon
City

(b) Approximate date when the Information Statement is first to be sent to security holders:

April 24, 2012

lterm 2. Dissenters’ Right of Appraisal

Title X of the Corporation Code of the Philippines grants to a shareholder the right to dissent and
demand payment of the fair value of his share in certain instances, to wit: (1} in case any amendment fo
the corporation’s articles of incorporation has the effect of changing and restricting the rights of any
shareholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in any respect superior to those of
outstanding shares of any class; (2} in case of any sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortigage or other
disposition of all or substantially ali of the corporate properly or assets, (3} in case of merger or
consofidation; (4} in case the corporation decides to invest its funds in another corporation or business
or for any purpose other than the primary purpose; and (5) extension or shortening of the ferm of
corporate existence.

Under Section 42 of the Corporation Code, a stockholder is likewise given an appraisal right in cases
where a corporation decides to invest its funds in another corporation or business. The appraisal right
may be exercised by a stockholder who shall have voted against any of the foregoing corporate actions
proposed in a meeting by making written demand on the corporation for the payment of the fair value of
his/its shares within 30 days after the date on which the vote is taken. Failure to make written demand
within such period shall be deemed a waiver of such right. If the proposed action is implemented, the
corporation shall pay to a stockholder surrendering his/its stock certificates the fair value of such shares
as of the day prior to the date on which the vote was taken; however, no payment shall be made to any
stockholder unless the corporation has unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover such
payment. Within ten days after demanding payment for his shares, a dissenting stockhoider shali submit
his stock certificates for notation thereon that such shares are dissenting shares, failing which, his/its
appraisal right shall, at the option of the corporation, terminate. Upon payment of the purchase price for
the shares, the stockhclder must transfer his shares to the corporation.

From the time a demand for payment of fair value until either the abandonment of the corporate action
involved or the purchase of said shares by the corporation, all rights accruing to such shares, including
voting and dividend rights, shall be suspended. If the dissenting stockholder is not paid the value of the
shares within 30 days after the award, his voting and dividend rights shali be restored.



None of the proposed corporate actions qualifies as an instance for a possible exercise by security
holders of their appraisal rights under Tide X of the Corporation Code of the Philippines.
ltem 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

(a) There is no matter to be acted upon in which any Director or Executive Officer is invelved or had
a direct, indirect or substantial interest.

{b) No Director has Informed the Company of his opposition {0 any matier t¢ be acted upon.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

ltem 4. Voiing Securities and Principal Holders Thersof

(@) GMA Network, Inc. (“the Company”) has 3,361,047,000 common shares and 7,499,507,184
preferred shares subscribed and outstanding as of March 31, 2012, Every stockholder shall be
entitled o one vote for each common and preferred share held as of the established record
date.

(b} All stockholders of record as of the closing of business on April 18, 2012 are entitled to notice of
and to vote at the Company’s Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

{c) With respect to the election of directors, a stockholder may vote such number of shares for as
many persons as there are directors to be elected or he may accumulate said shares and give
one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected or he may distribute them
on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall see fit; provided, that the total
number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the total number of shares owned by him,
muttiplied by the whole number of directors to be elected.

(d) The following are the information on security ownership of certain record and beneficial owners
and management:

(1) The security ownership of certain record and beneficial owners of more than 5% as of
March 31, 2012 are as follows: :

Title Mame and Address of Citizenshi Record / No. of shares Percent
Of class Beneficial Owner P Beneficial held Owned

Common GMA Holdings, Inc. .

Unit 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place,  Filipino FCD Nominee 861,588,300 25.83%
Bonifacic Global City Corporation
Common Group Management & Development Inc. : The Record
No. 5 Wilson St., San Juan, Metro Manila  Filipino Owner is the 789,813,382  23.50%
Beneficial
QOwner

" The Board of Direciors of GMA Holdings, Inc. has the power 1o decide how the shares owned in the Company are to be voted
and has authorized Felipe L. Gozon and/or Gitberto R. Duavit, Jr, to vote on the company's shares in GMA Network, Inc.

2 The Board of Directors of Group Management & Development, inc. has authorized Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. to vote on the common
and preferred shares of the company in GMA Network, Inc,



Common  FLG Management & Development

Corporation3 Filipino The Record 663,929,027 19.75%
Unit 2, 2/F, Building 2, 9" Avenue, Owner is the
Bonifacio Global City, Taguig, Metro Beneficial
Manila Owner
Common  M.A. Jimenez Enterprises, inc, The Record
2/ Sagittarius Condominium, H. V. De la Fiipino Owneris the 453,862,005 13.50%
Costa St., Salcedo Vilage, Makati Clty* Beneficial
Owner
Common  Television tnternationat Corporation® The Record
2/F Sagittarius Condominium, H. V. De la Filipino Owneris the 334,378,037 9.85%
Costa St., Salcedo Village, Makati City Beneficial
Qwner

Total Common Shares
3,103,590,848

92.34%
Preferred  Group Management & Development Inc. The Record
No., 5 Wiison St., San Juan, Meiro Manila Filipino Owneristhe 2,625,805,308 35.01%
Beneficiai
Owner
Preferred  FLG Management & Development The Record
Corporation Filipino Owneris the 2,181,898,644 22.09%
Unit 2, 2/F, Building 2, 9" Avenue, Beneficial
Bonifacio Global City, Taguig, Metro Owner
Manifa
Preferred  M.A. Jimenez Enterprises, Inc. The Record
2/F Sagittarius Condeminium, H. V. De la Filipino Owner is the 1,508,878,826 20.12%
Costa St., Salcedo Village, Makati City Beneficial
Owner
Preferred  Television International Corporation The Record

2/F Sagittarius Condominium, H. V. De la Filipino Owneris the  1,111,661,610  14.82%
Costa S, Salcedo Village, Makadi City . Beneficial
Owner

Total Preferred Shares
7.428,344,388
99.04%

GMA Holdings, Inc. is 99% owned by Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr., Felipe L. Gozon and Joel Marceio G.
Jimenez. The shares of the Company owned by GMA Holdings, Inc. are covered by Philippine Deposit
Receipts (“PDR”) which give the holder the right to delivery or sale of the underlying share. The PDRs
are listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange.

Group Management and Development, Inc., FL.G Management and Development Corporation, M.A.
Jimenez Enterprises, Inc. and Television International Corporation are significant shareholders of the
Company.

3 The Board of Directors of FLG Management & Development Corporation has authorized Felipe L. Gozon to vote on the common
and preferred shares of the company in GMA Network, Inc.

4 The Board of Directors of M.A. Jimenez Enterprises, inc. has authorized Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez andfor Laura J. Westfall to
vote on the common and preferred shares of the company in GMA Network, Inc.

5 The Board of Directors of Television International Corporation has authorized Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez and/or Laura J. Westfall
to vote on the common and preferred shares of the company in GMA Network, Inc.



{2) Security Cwnership of Management as of March 31, 2012

As of March 31, 2012, the Company’s directors and senior officers owned an aggregate
of 7,888,356 common shares of the Company, equivalent to 0.23% of the Company’s
issued and outstanding common capital stock and 27,294 preferred shares equivalent to
0.00% of the Company’s issued and outstanding preferred capital stock.

No. of No. of
Record | Percent of Percent of
Stockholder Name Position Citizenship | Beneficial | ComMon Common | reierred | piaterred
{R/B} Shares Sharaes Shares Shares
Held Held
Anra-Teresa M. Director/Assistant s
Gozon-Abrogar Corporate Secretary Filipino Rit 1,058,003 9.03% 6 0.00%
Gilberto R. Duavit Jr. gg‘*g"” Pres. and Filipino RiB 4,007,906 0.12% 12 | 0.00%
Felipe L. Gozon Director Shaiman Filipino RIB 3481 | 0.00% 26,880 |  0.00%
j;’n‘fe?,"aazme'o G. Direcior Filipino RIB 325,003 0.01% 8 0.00%
Judith D. Vazquez Director Filipino R/B 588,158 0.02% 378 0.00%
Laura J. Westfall Director Fiiping REB 2 (.00% &} 0.00%
Felipe S. Yalong DirectorfExecutive Eilipino RIB 1,025,062 ¢.03% 61  000%
’ Vice-President e :
Jaime C. Laya Independent Director Filipinc R/B 294,000 0.01% G 0.00%
Artemio V. Panganiban | Independent Director Filipine R/B 588,001 0.02% 0 0.00%
Senior Vice
Marissa L. Flores Prasident - News Filipino R/B none none none none
and Public Affairs

(3} Voiing Trust Holders of 5% or more

The Company is unaware of any persons holding more than 5% of shares under a voting
trust or similar agreement.

(4} Changes in Control

There are no existing provisions in the Articles of Incorporation or the By«LaWs of the
Company which will delay, defer or in any manner prevent a change in coniral of the




Company. There have been no arrangements which have resulted in a change in control
of the Company during the period covered by this report.

ltem 5. Directors and Executive Officers
Nominees for Election as Members of the Board of Direclors

The following are expected to be nominated as members of the Board of Directors for the ensuing year
(2012-2013): -

Anna-Teresa M. Gozon-Abragar

Gitberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Felipe L. Gozon

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez

Judith D. Vazgquez

Laura J, Westfall

Felipe S. Yalong

Jaime C. Laya (Independent Director)

Artemio V. Panganiban {Independent Director)

All of the above nominees are incumbent directors. The nominees were formally nominated by Gilberto
R. Duavit, Jr. Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. is not related to the nominated independent directors, Jaime C.
L.aya and Artemio V. Panganiban.

In 2007, the Company amended its By-Laws providing the procedure for nominating the directors of the
Company. The By-Laws provide that ali nominations to the Board of Directors shall be submitied in
writing to the Nomination Committee at least thirty (30) working days before the date of the regular
annual meeting of stockholders. On March 28, 2012, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
qualifications of the nominees and appraved the final list of candidates.

The members of the Nomination Committee are as follows:
Felipe L.. Gozon (Chafrman)
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Artemio V. Panganiban
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez

Board of Directors, Officers and Senior Management

Under the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises
nine directors, two of whom are independent. The Board is responsible for the overall management and
direction of the Company and meets regularly every quarter and other times as necessary, to be
provided with updates on the business of the Company and consulted on the Company’s material
decisions. The directors have a term of one year and are elected annually at the Campany's
stockholders meeting. A director who was elected to fill a vacancy holds the office only for the unexpired
term of his predecessor. As of March 31, 2012, the Company's Board of Directors and Senior
Management are composed of the following:



Board of Direciors Senior Management
Year P Year
Directors and Senior . . . EBosition Fosition
f tionalit ’ i i !
Management Na ' Position was Fosition weas Age
Assumed Assumed
Felipe L. Gozon Filipino Diizgg?n{ 1975 Chief Executive Officer 2000 72
Judith [ Vazguez Filipino Direcior 1988 N/A N/A, 4g
Gilberio R, Duavii, Jr. Fllipino Director 1988 President/Chief Operating Officer 2016 48
Anrz Teresa M. Gozon- _— Director! Assistant
Ahrogar Filipino Corporaie Secretary 2000 NI WA 40
Joel Marcelo G, Jimenez Filipinc Director 2002 NfA N/A 47
Laurs J. Westfalt Filipino Director 2002 NIA N/A 44
- . . Director/ Executive Vice Presiderd 5
Felipe B, Yalong Filipino Corporate Treasurar 2002 2011 55
Robeno C. Parel Filipino Corporate Secretary 1983 N/A N/E, 56
. . o Senior Vice President, News and
Ma . Fil y . -
rissa L. Flores ilipino NIA NA Public Afiirs 2004 47
Artemnio V. Panganiban Fiipine Independent Director 2007 N/A 2007 il
Jaime C. Laya Filipino indepandent Director 2007 N 2007 T3

The following are descriptions of the business experiences of the Company's directors, officers and
ssnior management.

Felipe L. Gozon, Filipinc, 72 vears old, is the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Network's
Chief Executive Officer.

Atty Gozon is @ Senior Partner at the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Eima Parel Asuncion & Luciia. Aside from
GMA Network, inc., he is also Chairman and CEO of GMA Marketing and Productions, inc. and GiVA
New Madia, inc.: Chairman and President of FLG Management and Development Corp.; Chairman of
Alia Productions Group, Inc., Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, Inc., Mont-Aire Realty and
Development Corp. Philippine Entertainment Portal, inc., and RGMA Network, Inc.; Vice Chairman of
Malayan Savings and Mortgage Banig; Director of, ameng other companies, Gozon Devsiopment Corp.,
Justitia Realty and Management Corp., Antipole Agri-Business and tand Development Corp.,
Sagittarius Condominium Corp. and President of Lex Realty, Inc. He serves as Chairman of the Board
of Trustees of GMA Kapuso Foundation, inc., Kapwa Ko Mahal Ko Foundation, .inc., and The Potter and
Clay Christian School Foundation, Inc.; Chairman and President of Gozon Foundation; Director of The
Nova Foundation for Differently Abled Persons, Inc; and Trustee of Bantayog ng mga Bayani
Foundation.

Atty. Gozon is a recipient of several awards for his achievement in law, media, public service, and
business, including the prestigious Chief Justice Special Award given bv the Chief Justice of the
Philippines (1991), Presidential Award of Merit given by the Philippine Bar Assogciation (1980 & 1083},
CEQ of the Year given by Uno Magazine (2004), Master Entrepreneur — Philippines (2004) by Ernst and
Young, Cutstanding Citizen of Malabon Award for Legal and Business Management by the Kalipunan
ng Samahan sa Malabon (KASAMA) (2005), and People of the Year by Peopte Asia Magazine {2005).
He is also listed among Biz News Asia’s Power 100 (2003 fo 2010). Gozon was alsc selecied as a
member of the Advisory Board for the 2010 Asian Television Awards  (ATA).

Atty. Gozon earned his Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines and his Master of

Laws degree from Yale University Law School. He was admitted to the Bar in 1982, placing 13th in the
Bar examinations.
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Githerto R. Duavit, Jr., Filipino, 48 years old, is the President and Chief Operating Officer of the
Network. He has been a Director of the Company since 1929 and is currently the Chairman of the
Network's Executive Commitiee. Aside from GMA Network, inc. he is the Chairman of the Board of
GMA Network Films, Inc. and GMA Worldwide, Inc. and Vice Chairman of the Board of GMA Marketing
and Productions, Inc. Me alsc serves as President and CEQO of GMA Holdings, Inc., Scenarios, Inc.,
RGMA Marketing and Productions, Inc., Film Experts, Inc., and Dual Management and Investments,
inc. He is the President/COO and Director of Group Management and Development, Inc.; President
and Director of MediaMerge Corp., Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, inc.; Director of RGMA
Network, Inc., GMA New Media, Inc., Alta Produciions Group, inc., Optima Digital, Inc., Monte-Aire
Realty and Development Corp., and Pacific Heights Sports and Resort, inc. He also serves as the
President and a Trustee of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc., President of Guronasyon Foundation, [nc.
(formerly LEAF) and is a Trustee of the HERO Foundation.

Mr. Duavit holds a Bachelors Degree in FPhilosophy from the University of the Philippines.

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez, Filipino, 47 years old, has been a Director of the Company since 2002. He is
currently the Senior Vice President of GMA Marketing and Productions, Inc., and the Chief Executive
Officer of Alta Productions, inc. He is a Director of RGMA Network, Inc., GMA New Media, Inc.,
Scenarios, Inc., and GMA Waorldwide, Inc., besides also being a member of the Board of Directors of
Malayan Savings and Mortgage Bank, and Unicapital Securities, inc. He is also a Director of Nuvoland
Philippines, a real-estate development company. He is a Trustee of GMA Kapuso Foundation, inc.

He was educated in Los Angeles, California where he obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Business
Administration from Loyola Marymount University. He also obtained a Master's Degree in Management
from the Asian Institute of Management.

Felipe S. Yalong, Filipino, 55 years old, is the Executive Vice President and Head of the Corporate
Services Group of GMA Network, Inc. He has been a Director of the Company since 2002. Aside from
GMA Network, Inc., he also serves as Director and Corporate Treasurer of GMA Holdings, Inc.,
Scenarios, Inc., and GMA Network Films, Inc.; Director of Unicapital, Inc., Majalco Finance and
Investments, Inc., and GMA Marketing and Productions, Inc.; Corporate Treasurer of RGMA Network,
Inc., Mediamerge Corp.; Executive Vice President of RGMA Marketing and Productions, inc.; and
Corporate Treasurer of the Board of Trustees of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.

He obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration Major in Accounting from the
Philippine School of Business Administration and completed the Management Development Program at
the Asian Institute of Management. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Atty. Anna Teresa G. Abrogar, Filipino, 40 years old, has been a Director of the Company since 2000.
Atty. Anna Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar graduated valedictorian from grade school and high school at
Colegio San Agustin. She graduated cum laude, BS Management Engineering from Ateneo de Manila
University and obtained her Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines where she
graduated valedictorian, cum laude. She later obtained her Master of Laws from Harvard University.

She is a junior partner in Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila and was an Associate Professor in
the University of the Philippines, College of Law where she taught taxation.

She is currently Programming Consuitant to the Chairman/CEO of GMA Network, Inc. and the President
of GMA Films, Inc. and GMA Worldwide, Inc. She is a trustee of GMA Kapuso Foundation.
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Judith Duavit Yazquez, Filipino, 49 vears oid, has been a Director of the Company since 1988. She is
a member of the following special committees: Audit & Risk Committee and Compensation &
Remuneration Committee. Moreover, she sits on the boards of the following GMAT subsidiaries: RGMA,
Inc., GMA New Media, Inc., GMA Worldwide, Inc., and GMA Films,Inc. She is a member of the Board of
Trustees of the GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.

Judith is an acknowledged visionary and industry mover in Philippine information and Communication
Technology space. In 1985, she laid the nation’s first fiber in the Central Business District of Makati and
developed the country's first ICT ready intelligent skyscraper - the 45-storey Peak Tower, which boasts
the largest neutral telecommunications tower in the city.

Judith is the founder and chairman of PHCOLQO, Inc. - the premier interconnection site of

telecommunications and Internet Service Provider companies on four platforms: fixed-line fiber, cable,
wireless and satellite.

Her successful and visionary efforts in the field of Information and Communications Technclogy, have
earned her the moniker “Godmother of the Philippine internet,” a position in Computerworld's list of
"Philippines’ Most Powerful in ICT" and in 2011 “IT Executive of the Year” by the Philippine Cyber
Press.

Her philanthropic endeavors include Asian Institute of Management's first Professorial Chair for
Entrepreneurship and support to the University of the Philippines' School of Economics, among others.
International organization memberships inciude the Asia Pacific Network Information Center, Pacific
Telecommunications Council, IEEE, Clinton Global Initiatives Foundation, Young Presidents/World
World Presidents' Qrganization and other local business organizations. She has served the
Management Association of the Philippines as a member of the Board of Governors, and is a Senior
Lecturer for Entrepreneurship at the College of Business Administration, University of the Philippines.

Judith holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Economics from the University of the Philippines
and is an alumna of Harvard Business School, University of Michigan (Ann Arbor) and Asian Institute of
Management.

In October 2011, she was elected to the Board of Directors of ICANN — the internet Corporation For
Assigned Names and Numbers- governing body of the Global Internet. ICANN coordinates the 3 unique
identifiers, which permit the Internet to function as a single infrastructure: Domain names, IP addresses
and Port Assignments. Judith is the First Asian Female elected to this august and powerful international
body. She is member of the following ICANN board committees: Audit, Risk, and Structural
Improvements. Eligible to serve ICANN for 3 terms, Judith's first term as a voting board member ends in
2014, '

Laura J. Westfall, Filipino, 44 years old, has been a Director of the Company since 2000. She held the
following positions in the Company ~- Senior Vice President of Corporate and Strategic Planning and
Senior Vice President for Finance. In addition, she has served as Chairperson and President of GMA
New Media. Prior to joining the Company, she worked for BDO Seidman — Los Angsies, an international
audit and management consulting firm. She currently holds various positions in the Majent Group of
Companies and serves as Board Member of Coffee Bean and Tea Leaf Philippines, Bronzeoak Clean
Energy, Inc., and Malayan Bank. She also serves as Board Member and Treasurer of the Museo
Pambata Foundation.

She holds a Masters Degree in Public and Private Management from Yale University and a Bachelor of
Science degree in Accounting from the University of Southern California. She is a Certified Public
Accountant {CPA) in the State of California.
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Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban, Filipino, 75 vears old, has been an Independent Director of the
Company since 2007. In 1895, he was named a Justice of the Supreme Court and in 2005, he was
appointed Chief Justice of the Philippines — a position he held until December 2006. At present, he is
also an Independent Director of these listed firms: First Philippine Holdings Corp., Metro Pacific
Investmenis Corp., Manila Electric Company, Robinsons Land Corp., GMA Holdings, Inc., Metro Pacific
Toliways Corp., Petron Corporation, Bank of the Philippine Islands, Asian Terminals, and Jollibee Foods
Corporation. He is also a Senior Adviser of Metropolitan Bank, Independent Adviser of Philippine Long
Distance Telephone Co., Chairman, Board of Advisers of Metrobank Foundation, Chairman of the
Board of Philippine Dispute Resolution Center, Inc., and Member, Advisory Board of the World Bank
and of the Asian Institute of Management Governance Council. He alsc is a column writer of The
Philippine Daily Inquirer. ;

Upon his retirement, he was unanimously conferred a Plaque of Acclamation by the Assoctate Justices
of the Supreme Court as the “Renaissance Jurist of the 21st Century;” and an Award of Honor by the
Philippine Bar Association. In recognition of his role as a jurist, lawyer, civic [eader, Catholic lay worker,
business entrepreneur and youth leader, he had been the recipient of over 250 other awards from
various governments, clvic clubs, consumer associations, bar groups, religious movements and other
non-government organizations, both local and international.

He obtained his Associate in Arts, “With Highest Honors” and later his Bachelor of Laws, with cum laude
and “Most Outstanding Student” honors from the Far Eastern University. He placed sixth among more
than 4,200 candidates who took the 1960 Bar examinations. He is likewise the recipient of several
honorary doctoral degress from various universities,

Dr. Jaime C. Laya, Filipino, 73 years old, has been an independent Director of GMA Network, Inc. since
2007. Me is the Chairman of Philippine Trust Company (Philtrust Bank), Director of Philippine Ratings
Services Corporation, Philippine AXA Life Insurance Company, Inc., Ayala Land, inc., and Manila Polo
Club, Inc. He also serves as Chairman of Don Norberto Ty Foundation, Inc.; Trustee of De la Salle
University — Taft, St. Paui University-Quezon City, Cultural Center of the Philippines, Metropolitan
Museum of Manila, Yuchengco Museum and Fundacion Santiago, Inc.

He was Minister of Budget, 1975-1981; Minister of Education, Culture and Sports, 1984-86; Chairman of
the Monetary Board and Governor, Central Bank of the Philippines, 1981-1984; Chairman, National
Commission for Culture and the Arts, 1996-2001. He was faculty member of the University of the
Philippines, 1957-1978 and Dean of the College of Business Administration, 1969-1974. In 1986, he
founded J.C. Laya & Co., Ltd. (Certified Public Accountants and Management Consultants} later the
Philippine member firm of KPMG International; he served as the firm's Chairman until his retirerment in
2004.

He earned his BSBA, magna cum laude, University of the Philippines, 18567, M.S. in Industrial
Management, Georgia Institute of Technology, 1961; Ph.D. in Financial Management, Stanford
University, 1966, He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Atty. Roberto Q. Parel, Filipino, 56 years old, has been the Corporate Secretary of the Company since
1993. He is a Partner at the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila. His practice areas
include labor relations, natural resources and intellectual property. He is a Director of Time-Life
International Philippines, Capitalex Holdings Philippines, Ipilan Nickel Corporation, Nickel Laterite
Resources, Inc., Berong Nickel Corporation, Ulugan Nickel Corporation, Ulugan Resources Holdings,
inc., Nickeline Resources Hoidings, inc., TMM Management Inc., Skyway O and M Corporation, and
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Assetvalues Holding Company, Inc.; Director and Corporate Treasurer of Selenga Mining Corporation;
Corporate Secretary of Alta Productions Group, Inc., Scenarios, Inc., Citynet Network Marketing and
Productions, Inc., GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc., Hinoba Holdings (Philippines), Inc. and Hinoba-an &
Sipalay Holdings, Inc.

He graduated from the University of the Philippines with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Philosophy and a
Bachelor of Laws degree. He was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1981. Atty. Parel further pursued
legal studies through short programs at the Center of American and International Law and the
Southwestern Legal Foundation in Dallas, Texas. Later, he aitended a training program on Industriai
Property Rights held by the Japan Institute of Invention and Innovation and the Association for
Overseas Technical Scholarship in Tokyo, Japan.

Marissa L. Fiores, Filipino, 48 years old, is the Senior Vice President for News and Public Affairs since
2004. She joined the Company in 1987 as a researcher for public affairs documentaries and special
reports and held the positions of Assistant Vice President for Public Affairs, Vice President for
Production — News and Public Affairs before her appointment to her current position.

The Rotary Club of Manila recognized her as Television News Producer of the Year in 1896 In 2004,
she was awarded the prestigious TOYM (The Qutstanding Young Men) for Broadcast Management.

The News and Public Affairs group under Ms. Flores continues to be the recipient of international
awards, notably the New York Festivals, US international Film and Video Festival Awards, Asian TV
Awards. GMA News and Public Affairs remains as the only Philippine broadcast network which has
won highly-coveted Peabody Award {two Peabody awards as of 2010) — widely considered as
broadcasting and cable’s equivalent of the Pulitzer prize.

Besides overseeing news and public affairs programs in GMA Channel 7, it is also under Ms. Flores’
leadership that GMA News Oniine was put up in 2007, and GMA News TV (GMA Network’s news and
public affairs channe! on free TV) was launched in February 2011.

She earned her Bachelor's degree at the University of the Philippines, where she studied Journalism.

Significant Empioyees

Although the Company and its key subsidiaries have relied on, and will continue to rely on, the
individual and collective contributions of their executive officers and senior operational personnel, the
Company and its key subsidiaries are not dependent on the services of any particular employee.

Family Relationships

Judith D. Vazquez is the sister of Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr., and Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez and Lagra J.
Westfall are siblings. Anna Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar is the daughter of Felipe L. Gozon. Felipe L.
Gozon's sister, Carolina L. Gozon-Jimenez, is the mother of Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez and Laura J.
Westfall.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

To the best of the Company’s knowiedge, during the past five years and up to date, there had been no
occurrence of any of the following events which are material to an evaluation of the ability or integrity of
any director, person nominated to become a director, executive officer, or control person of the
Company:
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= Any filing of an insolvency or bankrupicy petition by or against any business of which such person
was a general partner or executive officer, either at the time of the insolvency or within two years
prior to that time,;

» Any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or any pending

criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, of any such person, excluding {raffic violations and other
minor offenses;

= Any final and executory order, judgment, or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic
or foreign, against any such person, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending, or
otherwise limiting involvement in any type of business, securities, commoedities, or banking
activities; and,

= Any final and executory judgment of any such person by a domestic or foreign court of competent
jurisdiction (in a civil action), the SEC, or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign
exchange or electronic marketplace or self-regulatory organization, for violation of a securities or
commodities law.

Resignation of Direclors

No director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the Board of Directors since the date of
the last annual meeting of the Company because of a disagreement with the Company on mafters
relating to the Company’s operations, policies and practices.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Advances to Affiliates

The Company has, from time to time, made advances io certain of its affiliates. The advances are non-
interest bearing.

As of December 31, 2011, Alta Tierra Resources, Inc. had advances owing to the Company in the
amount of R4 million. Alta Tierra Resources, Inc. is a real estate holding company. Alta Tierra’s
outstanding shares are 8.2% owned by Majent Management and Development Corporation, and 91.8%
by Group Management and Developmernt, Inc.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company made advances to RGMA Network, Inc. in the amount of
R2225.3 million for RGMA’s working capital requirements. On February 21, 2006, the Company's Board
of Directors approved the conversion of a portion of such advances in the amount of 2168 million into
7,205,882 shares of RGMA with a par value of 21.00 per share, representing approximately 49% of the
outstanding capital stock of RGMA. The SEC approved the conversion of the advances into equity on
February 6, 2007. As of the date hereof, RGMA’s outstanding shares are 49% owned by the Company,
17.8% owned by Rachel Espiritu, 17.8% owned by the Jimenez family through Television international
Corporation and 15.3% owned by the Gozon family through FLG Management and Development
Corporation. There were no advances for working capital as of December 31, 2010 and 2011.

The Company also made advances to Mont-Aire in the amount of £121.4 million as of December 31,
2004. Of such advances, the Company converted the amount of P38.3 miltion into £38.3 million worth of
common shares of Mont-Aire. Simultaneously, the other shareholders of Mont-Aire, namely, Group
Management and Development, Inc., Television International Corporation and FLG Management and
Development Corporation converted advances in the aggregate amount of B23.5 miliion made by them
to Mont-Aire into 2235 million worth of common shares of Mont-Aire. The SEC approved the
conversion of the advances into equity on February 17, 2006. The Company owns 49.0% of Mont-Aire,
with the remaining 51.0% being owned by the Duavit family, Gozon family and Jimenez family. Mont-
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Aire is a real estate hoiding company whose principal property is & 5.3 hectare property located in
Tagaytay, Cavite. Such property is not used in the broadcasting business of the Company. As of
December 31, 2010 and 2011, Mont-Aire has had advances owing to the Company in the amount of
R84 5 million.

Agresments with BGRMA Netwaork, inc. ("RGIMA™}

The Ccmpany has an exisiing agresment with RGMA for the latter fo provide general management,
programming and research, evenis managemeni, on-air monitoring of commercial placements,
ceriificates of performance, billing and collection functions, and local sates service for the 25 radio
stations of the Company. RGMA is paid management and markeling fees based on billed saies.

Agreements with GMA Marketing and Productions, Inc. (“GMA Marketing”)

The Company entered into & marketing agreement with its wholly-owned subsidiary, GMA Marketing
wherein GMA Marketing agreed to sell ieievision advertising spots and airtime in exchange for which
GMA Marketing will be entitied fo a marketing fee and commission.

The Law Firm of Belo Gozon Elma Paref Asuncion & Lucifa

The Company and the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila ("BGEPAL") entered into
a retainer agreement in 1983 under which BGEPAL was engaged by the Company as ite external
counsel. As such external counsel, the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Eima Pare! Asuncion & Lucia handies
all cases and legal matters referred to it by the Company. Other than Felipe L. Gozon, who is part of the
Gozon Family, one of the principal shareholders of the Company, and director of tna Company since

1975, some of the lawyers of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Luciiz eventually assumed certain
positions and functions in the Company either in their individual capacities or as part of the functions of
the Law Firm of Bele Gozon Eima Parel Asuncion & Lucila as the Company’s external counsel.

ltem §. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers
{a) CEO and Top 6 Compensated Executive Officers

The fallowing are the Company's highest compensated executive officers:

Kame and Position

Felipe L. Gozon Chairman and CEO
Gilherto K, Duavit, Jr. President and COO
Felipe 8. Yaiong Executive Vice President, Corpurate Services Group
Marissa L. Flores Senior Vice President, News and Public Affairs
S Wilma V. Galvante Senior Vice President, Entertainment TV
"Migue! C. Exviguez Senior Vice President, Radio Operalions
Annual 13th Month & Total
Year salaries Bonuses .
(i Thousands) _ (in Thousangg) (1 | ousands)
& highest compensated officers 2009 76,616.1 80,711.3 157,327 .4

® Ms. Galvante retired from the Company on February 24, 2012
" Mr. Enriquez retired from the Company on September 28, 2011
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2010 79,172.2 70,9541 156,126.4

2011 80,585.7 53,642 4 134,228.1

2012 (estimate) 83,003.3 55,251.7 138,254.9

2009 112,662.3 127,830.9 240,593.2

Aggregate comp_ensation paid to 2010 119,163.7 417,828.8 236,902.5
g'r'o‘zfgcers and directors as a 2011 117,612.5 84,338.5 201,954.0
2012 {estimate) 122,317.0 87,712.0 210,029.0

{(a) Directors and other Executive Officers

Section 8 of Articie IV of the Company’s By-Laws provides that as compensation of the
directors, the Members of the Board shall receive and allocate yearly an amount of not more
than two and a half percent (2.5%) of the net income after income tax of the corporation during
the preceding year. Of the said 2.5%, one percent (1%) shall be allocated to the members of the
Board of Directors to be distributed share and share alike. The remaining one and a half

percent (1.5%) shall be allocated to the members of the Executive Committee to be distributed
share and share alike.

Empioyee Stock Ownership Plan ("ESOP")

The Company has no outstanding options or warrants held by its CEO, the named executive
officers, and all officers and directors as a group.

ltem 7. Independent Public Accountants

{a) SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. has acted as the Company’s external auditors since 1984. The
same accounting firm is being recommended for re-election at the scheduled annual meeting.

(b) Representatives of SGV & Co. for the current year and for the most recently completed fiscal
year are expected io be present al the Annual Stockholders” Meeting. They will have the
opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and are expected o be available to
respond to appropriate questions.

The Company only became publicly fisted with the Philippine Stock Exchange on Juby 30, 2007.
Pursuant fo Rule 68 paragraph 3 (b} (iv), the Company has engaged Mr. Ramon D. Dizon,
partner of SGV & Co., to sign the Company's 2011 audited financial statements.

(¢) Changes in and disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial disclosure

The Company has not had any disagreements on accounting and financial disclosures with its
current external auditors during the two most recent fiscal years or any subseqguent interim
period.

Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. has no shareholdings in the Company nor any right, whether legally
enforceable or not, to nominate persons or to subscribe for the securities in the Company. The
foregoing is in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the
Phifippines set by the Board of Accountancy and approved by the Professional Reguiation
Commission.
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{d) The aggregate fees billed for each of the last two years for professional services rendered by
Sycip Gorres Vetayo and Co., amounted to B6.0 million both in 2011 and 2010, these included
the fees related to financial audit and services for general tax compliance. No other fees of any
nature were paid.

{e) The Company's Audit Committee was formed in 2007 and was formally organized during the
latter portion of that year. The Audit Committee reviews the fee arrangements with the external
auditor and recommends the same to the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee has
recommended the appointment of Sycip Gorres Velayo and Co., as the external auditor of the
Company.

The members of the Audit Committee are as follows:
Dr. Jaime C. Laya {(Chairman)
Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban
Anna Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar
Judith D. Vazquez
Laura J. Westfall
item B. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

There are no matters or actions to be taken up in the meeting with respect te authorization or issuance
of securities.

item 9. Modification or Exchange of Securities

There are no matters or actions to be taken up in the meeting with respect to the maodification of any
class of the Company’s securities or the issuance or authorization for issuance of one class of the
Company's securities in exchange for outstanding securities of another class.

ltem 10. Financial and Other Information

In connection with item 9 hereof, the Company has incorporated by reference the following as contained
in the Management Report prepared in accordance with Rule 68 of the Securities and Regulation Code:

1) Audited Financial Statements for December 31, 2011 and 2010;
2} Management Discussion and Analysis or plan of operation; and
3) Information on business overview, properties, legal proceedings, market price of securities, and
dividends paid out, corporate governance, corporate social responsibility.
ltem 11. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters

No action is to be taken with respect to the mergers, consolidations, acquisitions and similar matters.

lkem 12. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

No action is to be taken with respect to the acguisition or disposition of any property.
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ftem 13. Restatement of Accounts

No action is to be taken with respect to the restatement of any asset, capital or surplus account of the
Company.

D. OTHER MATTERS

lem 14. Action with Respect {c Reports

(8) Approval of the Annual Report of Management and the Audited Financial Statemenis for the
year ending December 31, 2011.

(b) Approval of the Minutes of the 2011 annual meeting of the Stockholders heid on May 18, 2011,
covering the following salient matters:

(iy Approval of the Minutes of the annual meeting of the stockholders on May 19, 2010
(iy Annual Report of the President

{iiy Financial Report

(iv} Ratification of all acts of the Board of Directors and the Execuiive Committee

(v} Flection of the Members of the Board of Directors, including the Independent Directors

fvi) Election of the External Auditor

tem 15. Matters Not Required to be Submitted

Alf actions or matters to be submitted in the meeting will require the vote of the security holders.

kem 16. Amendment of Charter, By-Laws or Other Documents

No action is to be taken with respect to any amendment of the registrant’s charter, by-faws or other
documents.

iem 17. Other Proposed Aciion

(a) Ratification of the Acts of the Board of Directors/Corporate Officers, summarized as follows:

(i) Declaration by the Board of Directors on March 28, 2012 of cash dividends to stockholders
of record as of April 16, 2012 and payment date of May 8, 2012,
(iiy All acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management for the perlod covering
May 19, 2011 to May 16, 2012 adopted in the ordinary course of business involving:
e  Approval of borrowings, opening of accounts and bank transactions;

=  Appointment of signatories;
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(&)

(c)

Election of the Members of the Board of Directors, including two independent directors for the
ensuing calendar year

Election of the External Auditor

Item 18. Voting Procedures

(a)

)

(c)

Vote Required: Motions, in general, require the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares of the
Company’s common stock present and/or represented and entitled to vote. However, under
Philippine law, certain proposed actions may require the vote of at least two thirds (2/3) of the
outstanding capital stock of the Company. The manner of voting is non-cumulative, except as to
the election of directors.

Method: Straight and cumulative voting. In the election of directors, the nine (9) nominees
garnering the highest number of votes shall be elected directors. The stockholder may vote
such number of shares for as many persons as there are directors to be elected, or he may
cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be
elected, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall
see fit; provided, the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number of shares
owned by him multiptied by the number of directors to be elected.

The Corporate Secretary shall be responsible for counting votes based on the number of shares
entitled to vote owned by the stockholders who are present or represented by proxies at any
meeting of the stockholders, in the presence of the Company's external auditor.

Other than the nominees’ election as directors, no director, exscutive officer, nominee or associate of
the nominees has any substantial interest, direct or indirect by security holdings or otherwise in any way
of the matters to be taken upon during the meeting. The Company has not received any information that
an officer, director or stockholder intends to oppose any action to be taken at the Annual Stockholders'
Meeting.
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Upon written request of the stockholders, the Company undertakes to furnish said stockholder with
a copy of the 8EC Form 17-A free of charge. Any written request for a copy of the Sec Form 17-A
shall be addressed to the following:

GMA NETWORK, INC.

9/F GMA NETWORK CENTER
EDSA corner Timog Avenue
Diliman Quezon City

Attention: RONALDC P. MASTRILI
VICE PRESIDENT, FINANCE

The Company alse undertakes {o provide the first quarter interim financial report (period ended
March 31, 2012) during the annual stockholder’'s meeting.

After reasonable inguiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that the information set
forth in this report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in the City of Makati on April 10,
2012.

GMA NETWORK, INC.
By:

RﬁmL

Corporate Secrelary
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

. BUSINESS OVERVIEW

GMA Netwaork, Inc. is a free-to-air broadcasting company principally engaged in television and radio
broadcasting, the production of programs for domestic and international audiences, and other related
businesses. The Company derives the majority of its revenues from adveriising related to television
broadcasting.

The Company's Congressional television -broadcasting franchise was renewed on March 20, 1992
through Republic Act 7252, which aliows it to operate radio and television facilities in the Philippines for
25 years. GMA Network has 46 VHF (45 GMA owned and 1 aoffiliate) and 27 UHF TV siations
throughout the Philippines with its signal reaching approximately 97% of the country's Urban TV
Households (Source: 2011 AGB Nielsen Total Philippines Establishment Survey).

In 2011, GMA Network, Inc. grabbed and maintained leadership in nationwide TV ratings. The
Companys historic TV ratings friumph, however, was not enough to boost its financial performance as
GMA posted decreases in both gross revenues and net income.

GMA Network garnered a nationwide average househoid audience share of 34.2%, up by 3.1
percentage points over its nearest competitor. GMA likewise maintained its TV ratings deminance in its
traditional bailiwick areas of Mega Manila and Urban Luzon in 2011. The Network, its programs and
personalities also reaped various tocal and infernational awards within the year.

GMA Network’s internationai operations continued to expand during the year. GMA Pinoy TV closed

2011 with 291,309 subscribers, up by 7% over 2010. In September 2011, GMA launched its third
international channel, GMA News TV International.
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GMA SussSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURE AND AFFILIATES

The Company’s subsidiaries and affitiates are involved in media-related services such as movie making,
sets and props construction, film syndication, music and video recording, new media, online gaming,
post production services, and marketing, which complement the Company's core television and radio

broadcasting business.

The following table shows the Company's holdings in

December 31, 2011:

its principal subsidiaries and affiliates as of

COMPANY CWNERSHIP PRINCIFAL ACTIVITIES,
Subsidiaries
GMA New Media, Inc. (NM} 1 400% Converging Technology
Citynet Network Marketing and 100% Television entertainment production
Preductions, Inc.
GMA Network Films, inc. 100% Film production
GMA Worldwida (Phifippines), inc, 100% International marketing, handiing foreign program
acquisitions and  international  syndication of the
Company’'s programs
RGMA Marketing and Productions, Inc. | 100% Music recording, publishing and video distribution
(GMA Records)
Scenarios, inc. 100% Design, construction and maintenance of sets for TV,
stage plays and concerts
Script2010,  Inc.  {formerly  Capitalex | 100% Design, construction and maintenance of sets for TV,
Holdings, inc.)* stage plays and concerts
Alta Productions Group, inc. 100% Pre- and post-production services
GMA Marketing & Productions, Inc. 100% Exclusive marketing and sales arm of GMA's girtime
lediamerge Corporation™ 100% Business development and operations for the Company’s
online publishing/advertising initiatives
Affiliates
INQ7 Interactive, inc. 50% A joint multimedia news and information  defivery
company of the Philippine Daily Inguirer, Inc. and GMA
Philippine Entertainment 50% Operation of Pep.ph, an entertainment Portal
Portal, Inc. (PEP}™
X-Play Online Games, Inc. 50% A parinership betwaen IPVG Corp. and GMA New Madia,
(X-Playy™ Inc, which focuses on designing, operating and
maintaining casual online gaming and casual online
gaming-related poriais
Mont-Aire Realty and Development | 49% A real estate holding company
Corp.*™
RGMA Network, Inc. 49% General management programming, research and event

management services for the Company’s radio stations

Notes:

* Indirectly owned through Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, Ing.
** Indirectly owned through GMA New Media, Inc.
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=% On April 26, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors declared its shareholdings in Mont-Aire as subject to sale fo any
interested buyer. In the event the Company does not find a willing buyer, the same shall be deciared as dividends io the
stockholders of record as of April 26, 20G7.

COMPETITION

The Company currently competes for audiences and advertising revenues directly with other broadcast
stations, radio stations, newspapers, magazines, cable telavision, and outdoor advertising within their
respective markets,

The Following table presents major broadcasting networks in the country:

2011 Ratings & Audiencs Sbere
{Total day; 6AM-12VN)
MNetwork Description outa Mt rben Liion Urban
vga Mana FOAn L, Mational
Househeld
Raén;; 16.2 15.8 14.1
GMA
Sidionce 38.7 37.8 34.2
Fousahald
wsle 10.4 10.9 12.8
Radio and TV broadcasting network and Ratings
ABS-CBN muttimedia company. Founded in 1953, and is the
isi { i il Y w1,
first television station in the Philippines. Q;l;‘,‘;” 249 264 214
Housghald
GMA Network’s sister channel. i is programmed Rzﬁngs 1.6 1.4 12
* by GMA.
GNTVI QTV * QTV was redaunched as GMANEWS TV .
Audisnes
(GNTV) on February 28, 2011 Share 38 3.4 2.8
Third-oldest TV network in the country, with main  { p2isee™ 74 6.9 6.4
broadeast facilities in Novaliches, Quezon City. On
VS March 2, 2010, Mediagquest acquired 100 percent
ownership of the Associated Broadcasting e
Company and Primedia Inc., the broadeasting Sha‘:é’e 17.6 18.8 15.6
firm's major block airfimer.
Radio Philippines Network (RPN 9) is 2 Philippine | L2ue" 0.3 0.3 03
VHF television network of the Government
Communications Group. O November 29, 2009,
ETC (RPNV SOLAR the network re-branded again under the new name
TV (RPN} * Solar TV on RPN. I
**Solar TV went off air on February 26, 2011 and Share 0.8 0.8 0.7
was relaunched as ETC (RPN} on March 2, 2011.
Househeld
Sister network to the main ABS-CBN Broadeasting Raﬁngso 14 1.6 18
Studio 23 Corporation, airing programiming aimed towards
ucio young adults, such as North American imporits and . ’
other English language programming, Lorence 3.4 3.9 4.4
Honzahald
. Sl 0.2 0.2 0.2
National Official government TV, formerly called Maharlika | Raings
Broadcasting Broadcasting System, ine. and later the People’'s
Network Television Network, Inc. (PTV). gh:r;m 0.5 05 05
f IBC-13 is a VHF TV station of the Government -
giter(;ontttn'ental Communications Group launched in 1975 by Q;;g;;gs“““ 0.5 0.4 0.4
roadcasting Roberto Benediclo,
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©20%1 Ratings & Audience Bhare
{Total day, 6AM-12MN]
Network Description : S
: Mega Manila tirhan Luzon Urban
g : National
Corporation .
{iBC 13} ggg;z;r\ce 1.1 0.9 0.0
Southern On January 1, 2008, Solar Ertertainment Horsetoid o a1
Broadcasting Corporation’s entertainment channel ETC aired on | Ratings ) 0
Nebtwork this station.
TALK TV (SBRY **GBN was launched as Talk TV (SBN)on March { audierce
(ETC on SBN) ** 3, 2041 Share 0.1 0.1 0.1
Hogsahakd I 0 o
RJITV is a UHF, free to alr tslevision channe! Ratings
RJTV (2™ Ave.) owned and operated by Rajah Broadcasting
Netwark, inc. owned by Ramon "RJ" Jacinio. Autionon
Solar is also programrming 2™ Ave. ‘ Share 0.1 9.1 0.1

NOTE: Ratings data are based on the Nielsen Television Audience Measurement {TAM)

INTERNATIONAL DISTRIBUTION

The Company’s television programs are distributed outside the Philippines in two ways. One is through
its subscription-based international channels — GMA Pinoy TV, GMA Life TV, and GMA News TV
international — and the other is through GMA Worldwide (Philippines), Inc. (GWI), a wholly-ownad
subsidiary of the Company. GWI distributes GMA’s locally produced programs through worldwide
syndication sales to broadcasters/companies in China, Southeast Asia, Africa, and Europe.

GMA Pinoy TV

The Company operates GMA Pinoy TV through which it offers subscription-based programs
internationally. Launched in 2005, GMA Pinoy TV delivers to an international audience the Company’s
most popular news and public affairs and general entertainment programs.

GMA Pinoy TV is currently available in 50 states in the U.S. including Alaska and Hawalii, plus Puerto
Rico and Washington DC; Canada; Japan; Guam; 49 countries in Europe; Saipan; Hong Kong;
Singapore; Papua New Guinea; Australia; New Zealand; the British Indian Territory of Diego Garcia;
Madagascar; Malaysia; 16 countries in the Middle East including the key territories of the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia, United Arab Emirates, Qatar, Bahrain, and Kuwait; ‘and 11 countries in North Africa. GMA
Pinoy TV aims to establish global exposure and presence for the Network that will bring the company’s
programs to Filipino communities around the world.

Under the carriage and licensing agreements with international cable carriers, the Company generally
receives a portion of the subscription fees and is also allocated a certain number of advertising minutes
through which the Company may sell advertising spots, which it does, through its subsidiary, GMA
Marketing and Productions, inc. (GMPI). GMPI also participates in joint promotions with various carriers
for the marketing of GMA Pinoy TV.

As of December 2011, GMA Pinoy TV's subscriber base closed at 291,309 — a 7 % increase over the
2010 closing subscriber number of 273,317.

GMALIFETV

Three vears after the success of GMA Pinoy TV, GMA Life TV, GMA Network’s second international
channel, was launched. More than just offering mainstream entertainment, GMA Life TV engages more
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viewers with its exciting line-up of heart-warming and innovative programs that feature the Filipincs’
Iifestyle and interests.

GMA Life TV is available in the United States, Canada, Guam, Japan, Australia, New Zealand, Papua
New Guinea, the British Indian Ocean Territory of Diego Garcia, Madagascar, Malaysia, 16 countries in
the Middle East, 11 countries in North Africa, and 49 countries in Europe. As of December 2011, GMA
Life TV's subscriber base closed at 114,471.

GMA NEWS TV INTERNATIONAL

In September 2011, GMA Network began distributing GMA News TV International in order to provide
overseas Filipinos with the latest, most comprehensive, and most credible news coverage from the
Philippines. It offers internationally acclaimed and award-winning news and public affairs programs with
7 to & hours of original content daily.

it is now available in Guam, Japan, Australia, New Zealand, the UAE, and Madagascar. In 2012, it is
expected to be Jaunched in North America.

CONVERGING TECHNCLOGY

GMA MNew Media, Inc. (NM1) is the digital media arm of GMA Network, Inc. Since its inception in July
2000, it has launched category-breaking projecis in multiple platforms, including mobile, internet, and
digital TV. It owns the celebrity mobife phone portal, Fanaixt, and powers all the SMS-TV campaigns of
GMA.

it has a major stake in some of the Philippines’ most successful online properties such as GMA News
Online and PEP.ph that have average monthly page views of 20.6 miflion and 28.9 million, respectively.
In 2011, PEP.ph was awarded the Best Entertainment Website in the Digital Filipino Web Awards, a feat
it also achieved the year before. :

In collaboration with GMA Network's Program Support Department, News and Public Affairs,
Entertainment, GMA international, GMA Radio, Kapuso Foundation, GMA Films, GMA Records, GMA
Artist Center, GMA Corporate (Investor Relations), NMI launched late last yea v amaneatwork, com,
the umbrella site for all things GMA. This move further enhances GMA’s connection with its audience
ontine by providing news, entertainment, information, community, and public service at their fingertips,
anytime, anywhere. The portal also allows users to get quick and easy access to all of the Network’s
web properties.

NMI assumed an active role in the online publishing industry at the start of 2011 by organizing some of
the Philippines’ leading media companies to collaborate toward the adoption of global standards and
hest practices in online publishing, beginning with the appointment of & commaon provider for their third-
party audience measurement system. The online publishers that took part in the initiative were: ABS-
CBN Interactive, Inc., BusinessWorld Publishing Corp., NMI, inquirer Interactive, Inc., Philippine
Entertainment Portal, PhilStar Global Corp., and Summit Publishing Co., Inc.

NMI spearheaded the initiative in recognition of the need for 2 common measurement standard to help
the industry to grow, given that the Internet audience is both global and fragmented. Likewise, it aims o
give the industry a boost by providing advertisers with reliable and independent metrics to aid them in
their media planning decisions. The group chose Effective Measure (EM), an Australian company, as its
preferred audience measurement solutions provider.

2011 also saw NMI deepen its partnership with YouTube, Google’s online video-sharing portal. Initiaily

sealed in 2009, the deal to create an official GMA Channel on YouTube was the first of its kind in Asia.
This partnership was recently expanded to include long-form catch-up content and secure live
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streaming. This means viewers in selected territories will soon be able fo watch at their leisure full
episodes of their favorite entertainment and news programs, as well as catch the live broadcast of

certain shows of the Kapuso network. GMA content will be made available through Google Services on
all platforms, including mobile, tablets and Smart TVs.

In its mobile technology business, NMI unveiled in March m.GMANewsty, a light version of
werw, GMANews.tv (hitp:/iwww.gmanews.tv/) designed for easy viewing on mobite phones, as a growing
number of Filipinos access the website while on-the-go. The company also developed two new
applications for mobile, enabling users to download the latest news at their convenience. GMA News
Online applications are now available for Android smartphones and tablets and for iPhone users as well.
This makes GMANews.tv the only local news website to have its own applications for, both Android and
iPhone operating systems.

On the broadcast side, NM! produces breakthrough real-time special effects for GMA. in collaboration
with the Office of the President and GMA Engineering, NMI is involved in the development of GMA's
Digitai TV strategy. Efforts are underway to conduct testing for the service soon.

MOVIE PRODUCTION

GMA Network Films, Inc. was established in August 1995 to produce movies that cater to both the
local and international markets. Its movié productions have reaped both critical acclaim and commercial
success. In 2011, GMA Films co-produced with Regal Films the Valentine movie, My Valentine Girls,
Other movies produced in 2011 were Temptation Island, Tween Academy Class of 2012 (with
SMDC) and The Road which was picked up for North American theatrical release and digital
distribution. GMA Films’ Metro Manila Fitm Festival movie entries were Panday 2 (with imus
Productions) and My Househusband (with Regal Films).

Music AND VIDEO RECORDING

RGMA Marketing and Productions, Inc, {(GMA Records} was incorporated in September 1997 and
became operational in 2004 after the Company decided to reactivate its musical recording business
through the "GMA Records" label. Since resuming operations, GMA Records has leveraged the
Company's talent and media resources, releasing albums of various artists. it also partnered with sister
company GMA Films and other major film production outfits to release their films on DVD. Likewise, it
has introduced the network’s top rating programs and blockbuster TV series into the home video market
worldwide through GWI.

GMA Records works with GMA New Media and other local-based content providers and aggregators to
take advantage of new revenue streams, particularly in the emerging market of digital music downloads.
The company also secured non-exclusive mobile, web and kiosk-based deats with different content
providers worldwide to continuously exploit the potentials of its music and video assets.

GMA Records publishes music and administers copyrights on hehalf of composers. GMA Records is
also actively pursuing publishing deals, building on its current catalog of original compositions. GMA
Records serves as a clearing house and a source of music for the Company's television and film
productions. It is also a member of FILSCAP, the Filipino Society of Composers, Authors and
Publishers.

STAGE DESIGN

Scenarios, Inc. was incorporated in July 1996 and is engaged in transportation and warehousing
services.
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Script2010, Inc. was formally established in early 2010 as a subsidiary of Citynet Network Marketing
and Productions, Inc. It engages in conceptual design and design execution through fabrication,
construction, set-up and dismantling of sets, and creation of props. It also provides other related

services such as live performances and events management, sales activation and promotion, and
tradeshow exhibits.

Seript2010, Inc. is also engaged in fransportation, hauling and trucking services to further fuifill the
needs of its clients. Other business units of Bcript2010, Inc are band/audic equipment rental, and
facility support services fo various GMA departments.

POsT PRODUCTION

Alta Productions Group, Inc. was established in 1988 as a production house primarily to provide
production services for the Network. Until the late 1990s, it operated a sateflite studic in Makati,
producing award-winning News and Public Affairs Programs for GMA Channel 7.

Today, Alta Productions Group's core business is audio dubbing and mixing for broadcast. lts fully
digital audio recording and mixing studios is in sync with the Network's production requirements and
broadcast standards. Aside from dubbing foreign content into the iocal vernacular for airing on the
Network, Alta Productions Group also dubs station-produced content into English for international
consumption.

In addition, Alta Productions Group's shoot and video post-production department produces TVCs,
broadcast content, and documentaries for both jocal and international clients. its creative group also
provides concept development, staging, and activation services for various clients’ on-ground activities.

Alta Productions Group is proud to be one of the few production houses capable of servicing the
complete spectrum of shoot and post-production requirements all under one reof. From
conceptualization, creatives, shoot, post-production, all the way to execution.

MARKETING ANDG SALES OF COMMERGIAL AIRTIME

GMA Marketing and Productions, Inc. (GMP!) was established in August 1980 and is the exclusive
marketing and sales arm for the Company's commercial television and radio airtime. GMP!, a whaily
owned subsidiary of the Company, provides the link between the Network and the advertisers and
advertising agencies.

GMP! provides the Company's clients with services such as multi-media local and global media
packages, promotional programs and materials, and creative products. Part of GMPI's sales and
marketing strategies are the integrated multi-platform packages, customized on-air and on-ground
media solutions, branded entertainment, and other advertising and media-led promotional campaigns.

EMPLOYEES
As of December 31, 2011, the Company has 2,157 regular and probationary employees, a 12.28%
growth from 2010. The Company also engaged 2,993 talents in 2011, a 14.37% increase frem the

previous year. GMA Network, Inc. recognizes one labor union, the GMA Network, Inc. Employees
Union. The Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) for the cycle 2009-2014 fook effect in July 2009.
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ll. Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulis of
Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

The Management Discussion and Analysis provides a narrative of the Com pany’s financial performance
and condition that shouid be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Philippines.

As discussed below, the Company's financial statements do not show any losses from operation and
hence the Company has not taken any measures to address the same.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Company uses the following measures 1o assess its performance from period to period.

Ratings

The performance of a program and/or network as a whole with respect to household ratings is the
primary consideration for an advertiser in the Philippines to determine whether to advertise on a given
program andfor network. AGB Nielsen, a media research firm, provides ratings to the Company on a
subscription basis.

Load Factor

Load factor refers to the amount of advertising minutes aired during the breaks in a program as a
percentage of the total minutes available for advertisement. The load factor is an indication of a program
or a timeblock’s ability to sell advertising minutes. Load factor statistics are internally generated,
although certain third parlies monitor such statistics.

Signal reach/coverage

The ability to reach a greater number of viewers is a part of the Company's strategy o provide its
advertisers with more value for their advertising expenditures. The Company frequently assesses its
signal strength and coverage by conducting in-house field intensity surveys and tests.

Subscriber count

Subscriber count is the key performance indicator for some of the Company’s initiatives (o diversify its
revenue base beyond advertising revenues. The number of subscribers to GMA Pinoy TV and to the
Company's ancillary media services, such as those provided by GMA New Media, form the benchmark

for measuring the success of these services. The Company makes internal assessments (0 determine
the market potential for each new initiative and sets a subscriber count target accorcingly.

Cost control
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The Company is continuously searching for ways to control costs and fo improve efficiency. The
Company has established systems and procedures to monitor costs and measure efficiency and has
launched various initiatives and activities in relation o these efforis.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL RESULTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

The objective in grabbing the much coveted leadership in the national ratings game was finally attained
by the first quarter of 2011 — a fitting reward to the unrelenting efforts poured into via a muititude of
regional synergy initiatives and in continuously striving to delight our customers with innovative
programming. This upper hand was instrumental in mitigating the adverse impact of developments in
the international market particularly in the second half of the year which led to significant cutback in ad
spend by major advertisers.

The Company ended the year with consolidated gross revenues of P13,083 million, translating into an
7% growth from regular advertising and other revenue sources vs. a year ago, after stripping the impact
of some P2,054 million worth of political advocacies and advertisements in 2010’s top line.  Inclusive of
the windfall from the 2010 national and local elections, consolidated gross revenues fell short by 8%
year-on-year. The absence of this considerable contribution from prior year's eleclion campaign
coupled with cost increases drove consolidated net income to settle at P1,715 million or slightly over a
hillion less than comparable period.
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2011 2010 Inc/(Dec) Yo
Income Data (in millions Php}| (inmillions Phy) | {in millions Php)
Gross Revenues
Television and radio airtime 11,881.2 13,192.7 {1,311.5) -10%
Production and others 1,201.6 1,106.8 948 9%
13,082.8 14,2995 12167 9%
Less: Revenue Deductions
Agency and marketing commissions 1,894.1 2,2044 (3104) -14%
Comproduceré' share 31.7 80.0 (483} -60%
1,925.8 22844 (358.6)] -16%
Net Revenues 11,157.0 12,015.1 (858.1) 7%
Production Costs 5,105.0 45932 511.7 11%
‘Gross Profit 6,052.1 74219 (1,369.8)] -18%
General and Administrative Expenses (3,879.3) {3,732.6) (146.7) 4%
Interest Expense and Financing Charges {11.5) 3.8 (773} 203%
Interest Income 28.6 772 (48.7y -63%
Other Income 56.1 314 2471 79%
Income Before Income Tax 2,246.0 3,7942 (1,548.2) -41%
Provision for Income Tax 530.9 9734 (442.53 -45%
Net Income 1,715.1 2,820.8 (1,105.7)1 -39%
Earnings Per Share
Basic 0.353 0.580
Diluted 0.353 0.580
Revenues

Consolidated gross revenues for the year, comprised of airtime revenues from television and radio,
subscription revenues from international operations, and other revenues from subsidiaries, climbed
P837 million or 7% more than the P12,246 million top line generated from recurring advertisements and

other sources a year ago.

2011 2010 Ing/{Dec) o

Gross Revenues (in millions Php) | (inwmillions Php)| (in millions Php}

Gross Revenues

Television and radio airtfime 11,881.2 11,1389 7423 7%
Production and others 1,201.6 1,106.8 94.8 9%
13,082.8 12,2457 8371 7%
Add: Political advertisermnents - 2,053.8 (2,053 .8} -100%
13,0828 14,2995 (L2187)) 9%
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Airtime revenues ended at P11,881 million for 2011 up 7% than 2010’s top line from regular advertising.
inclusive of political ads in 2010 however, a 9% drop equivalent to P1,217 million was reflected in total
gross revenues for this year.

Core channel, GMA-7 posted an improvement in its regular advertising revenues of 8% or P828 miliion
vs. same period in 2010. Regional TV sales were likewise upbeat in 2011 with the lead in nationwide
ratings giving the much needed push. Thus, RTV ended with a 21% hike year-on-year on recurring ad
placements. Not to be left behind, Radio operations once again proved its steadfastness growing
reguiar sales by 15%, likewise benefitting from the.improvement in ratings standing in the radio
broadcast industry. Lastly, the newly reformatted Ch-11 (from QTV to GNTV) also steadily gained
ground as it solidified the main competence of the Network as a reputable source and provider of
balanced news and information.

Meanwhile, revenues from international operations, subsidiaries and other sources finished off with a
9% climb vs. last year. GMA’s international channels, led by GMA Pinoy TV, GMA Life TV and the
recently launched third channel GMA News TV recorded an increase in subscriber take up of 7% with
more than 200,000 subscribers by the end of 2011. Of this number, some 115,000 are also subscribers
of GLTV.

Expenses

Spending-wise, consolidated operating expenses reached P8,984 million for the year, climbing 8% or
P658 million compared to 2010. Total direct costs (cash and non-cash production costs} escalated by
11% while general and administrative expenses {GAEX) grew by only 4%.

Total direct cost for 2011 reached P5.105 million, P512 million or 11% higher vs. iast year. Cash
production cost hiked by P644 million or 168% over last year coming from the following: a.) generally
higher costs of in-house produced soaps, in particular Captain Barbell and the trailblazer epic-serye
Amaya; b.) annualization of an additional daily soap in the afternoon replacing co-produced program
" Daisy Siete; ¢.) reformatting of Ch-11 from QTV to GNTV entailing more station-produced shows vis-a-
vis rented materials; and general increases in talent fees.

2011 2010 Ine/(Dec) o
Production Costs (in millions Php) | (in millions Php) | (in millions Php)
Talent fees 2,776.4 2,330.5 4459 19%
Rentals and outside services 763.3 658.9 10447 16%
Other program expenseé 1,023.6 929.5 941 | 10%
Sub-total - cash production costs 4,563.2 39189 64441 16%
Program rights amortization 317.3 4639 (14633 -32%
Depreciation and amortization 224.2 2105 13.7 7%
Sub-total - cash production cosis 541.7 6743 (132.6)] -20%
Total production cosfs 5,105.0 4,593.2 511.7  11%

The hike in cash production costs was partly offset by the reduction in non-cash production cost of P133
mitkion or 20% between comparable periods. In particular, program rights amortization dropped by P146

32



miliion or close to one-third of 2010 cost resulting from the aforementioned repackaging of Ch-11 to

mostly station-produced shows.

2011 2010 Inc/(IDec) Yo
General and Administrative Expenses {in millions Php) | (in millions Php}| (in miilions Phyp)
Personnel costs 1,714.2 1,626.1 881! 5%
Qutside services 667.0 6673 {0.3)-0.05%
Facilities costs 458.0 44390 151 3%
Taxes and licenses 2114 1913 2011 11%
Others 484.2 4575 267 6%
Sublotal - Cash GAEX 3,534.9 3,385.2 149.6 4%
Depreciation and amortization 294.2 296.5 23y -1%
Amortization of software costs 25.7 202 551 27%
Provision for doubtful accounts 24.5 30.6 (6.0)] -20%
Subtotal - Non-cash GAEX 3444 347.3 (2.9 -1%
Total GAEX 3,879.3 3,732.6 146.7 4%

On the other hand, the increase in consolidated GAEX was kept at bay at P147 million or only 4%.
Personnel cost was the main driver for this year's climb, ending at 5% or P88 million more vs. last year.
The annual salary adjustments from the collective bargaining agreements (CBA} of rank and file
employees and merit increases of confidential employees as well as the augmentation in manpower
complement during the year accounted from the principal reasons for the growth in the account.

Outside services comprised of advertising and promotions, management and professional fees and
sales incentives was sealed at par with last year. Additional spending in advertising and consultancy
fees were negated by the decline in sales incentives attuned to the reduction in the top iine this year.

Utilities and repairs and maintenance which made up Facilities costs inched up by 3% or P15 million
between comparable periods. The constant escalation in power rate hike not only in Metro Manila but in
the regions couptled with increase in consumption due to full utilization of the Company’s facilities were
tempered by the reduction in charges for corrective maintenance and replacement  of
machine/broadcast equipment parts.

Taxes and licenses wrapped up moderately higher by P20 million or 11% vis-a-vis same period a year
ago. The growth in local franchise tax using the 2010 political ads-laden revenues as base influenced
the increase in the account, coupled with a one-time payment for prior year's tax assessment.

Other cash GAEX also ended up by P27 million or 6% mainly owing to aggregate increases in research
and survey, rental fees and subscription and renewal to various software licenses and agreements.

Meanwhile, non-cash GAEX for the year dipped by P3 million or 1% year-on-year. The increase in
amortization of software costs was negated by the decline in depreciation and lower provision for
doubtful accounts on trade receivables.

Interest and financing charges on short-ferm loans
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interest expense and financing charges totaled P11 million, compared to P4 million in 2010, translating
into an additional inferest expense of P8 million from a year ago. Short-term borrowing during the vear
was mainly used to gap the timing difference between cash inflows and operating expenses.

Interest income from shori-term investmentis

in the meantime, interest income from short-term invesiments significantly declined to P28 million, down
63% or P49 million from last vear's P77 million. The resulting decline in interest income was mainly on
account of the reduced cash position and short-term placement generally during the year brought about
by lower net income.

MNet Income

The year'ended with earnings before income, taxes, depreciation, and amortization of P3.080 billion,
and net income after tax of P1.715 billion.

Balance Sheet Accounts

Consolidated assets totaled P12,381 million, equivalent to a 5% reduction from last year's
P13.042 million. Considerable deciine was seen in Trade and other receivables-net from P5,532 million
in 2010 to P4,191 miilion at the end of this year. The P1,341 million or 24% drop in the account was a

combination of the slowdown in revenues compounded by aggressive collection efforts this year.

Trade days-sales-outstanding (DSO) improved to 120 days at end-2011 vs. 145 days at the close of
2010.

The decline in net income pulled down financial indicators of the Company to a lower level this year
failing between 6 to 10 percentage points, but nevertheless remaining competitive industry-wide.

Equity settled at P9,827 million as of December this year, 5% lower than last year's P10,298 million
resulting from the lower bottom line recorded during this year.

2011 2010
Cash Flows (in millions Php}| (in millions Php)
Net cash provided by operating activities ' 3,104.3 2,703.7
Net cash used in investing activities (934.4) (259.8)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,199.1) (3,403.8)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 4.3 {7.9)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {24.4) (967.8)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 12324 2,200.2
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1,208.0 1,2324

Operating Activities
Net cash from operations registered at P3,104 million this year. This resulted from income before

income tax of P2,246 million adjusted mainly by depreciation expense of P518 million, pension expense
of P71 million, interest income from bank deposits and short-term investments of P29 million and
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amortization of software cosis of P26 million apart from the changes in working capital. The primary
components of the changes in working capital include the P1,338 million reduction in trade and other
receivables owing to lower top line compounded with more aggressive collection efforts, partly offset by
the P172 miilion rise in program and other rights from higher acquisition vis-a-vis usage, as the
reformatted Ch-11 concentrated on station-produced programs vice a mix of in-house and canned
shows and P80 million hike in prepaid expenses.

Investing Activities
Net cash used in investing activities amounted to P934 million, coming primarily frem the P05 million
additions to property and equipment and P31 million worth of software costs. These were offset by the

P12 million decrease in other noncurrent assets as well as the P24 million proceeds from sale of
property and equipment and investment properties.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities amounted to P2,199 miliion basically for the cash dividend payout
amounting to P2,188 million during the year plus some P11 million in interest expense.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL RESULTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Marking 60 years in broadcasting, GMA Network, Inc. has emerged to become one if not the most
profitable company in the industry. For the last ten years the compounded annual growth rate in terms
of net income stood at a remarkable 28%. The Company siood resolute ali these years even in the face
of economic difficulties here and abroad and stiff competition from its most formidable rival and most
recently with the aggressive entry of a third big channel.

It was yet another challenging year for the Company in 2010, with financial results soaring during the
election season and later on experiencing setbacks in the face of advertising rate negotiations and
ratings challenges. While the Company steadily regained its foothold towards the end of the year,
obstacles encountered during the third quarter took its toll as year-to-date consolidated net income
settled only a tad higher than 2009’s performance.
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2016 2009 Inc/{Dec) %
Income Data (in millions Php) | (in millions Php) | (in millions Php)
Gross Revenues
Television and radio airtime 13,192.7 12,6916 501.1 4%
Production and others 1,106.8 10793 27.5 3%
14,289.5 13,7709 528.6 4%
Less: Revenue Deductions
Agency and marketing conymissions 2,069.5 1,960.8 108.7 6%
Co-producers’ share 80.0 2164 (1304) -62%
2,149.5 21712 17| 1%
Met Revenues 12,1500 11,399.7 5503 "%
Production Costs 4,728.% 4,389.5 338.6 8%
Gross Profit 74219 72102 2118 3%
General and Administrative Expenses (3,732.6) (3,452.0} (280.6)1 8%
Interest Expense and Financing Charges (3.8) (8.9) 51 -57%
Interest Income 77.2 57.8 1951 34%
Other Income 314 319 o 1%
Income Before income Tax 3,794.2 3,8389 “4.7y 1%
Provision for lncome Tax 973.4 1,020.6 473 -b%
NetIncome 2,820.8 28183 261 01%
Earnings Per Share
Basic 0.580 0.580
Diluted 0.580 0.580
Revenues

Consolidated gross revenues for 2010, comprised of airime revenues from television and radio,
subscription revenues from international operations, and other revenues from subsidiaries, wrapped up
at B14,300 milion, more than half a billion or 4% higher than the B13,771 million recorded in 2009,

Gross Revenues

2010
(in millions Php)

2009
{int millions Php)

Inc/{Pec)
(in millions Php)

[s]

Gross Revenues

Televiston and radio airtime 13,1927 12,691.6 501.1 4%
Production and others 1,106.8 1,0793 275 3%
12,2995 13,7709 5286 | 4%

Airtime revenues drove the increase buoyed by political advertisements during election period which
totaled B2,054 million across all platforms in contrast to B636 million in political advocacies booked in
2009. Channel 7 remained the lifeblood of the Company, contributing 85% of total revenues. Airtime
coniribution from this platform slightly improved by 3% year-on-year. Radio's airtime revenues on the
other hand jumped 43% driven by political ad placements and sustained revenue growth even towards
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the end of the year. International operation’s top line which has steadily provided an additional source
of revenues grew by 8%, backed by the continuing build up of subscriber base. The revenue growth
would have been higher at 14% siripping the impact of the appreciation of the peso during the year.
GMA's international channeis ~ GMA Pinoy TV (GPTV) and GMA Life TV (GLTV) — both recorded
double-digit growth in subscriber base by end-2010. GPTV's subscribers were over 273,000 as of the
mentioned period, up 16 percent year-on-year. Of this number, 125,000 are also subscribers of GLTV,
increasing subscriber take-up by 17 percent from 2009,

Expenses

Total operating expenses grew by R619 million or 8% year-on-year, ending at 8,461 million vs. R7,842
miftion in 2009, The climb was mainly propelled by the increase in production costs and advertising and
promotions particularly in the regions.

Production-related expenses hiked 8% or B339 million with cash production costs increasing by FB385
million or 11%. Non-cash production costs partly mitigated the rise by ending 8% or B57 million lower.
The growth in cash production costs was mainly on account of the non-recurring election coverage
expenses. Apart from this, additional programs were produced, particularly in the weekday late
afterncon grid, replacing canned materials and the long-running co-produced program Daisy Siete by
mid-year. Moreover, the Network took a big leap in refurbishing its weekend flagship entertainment
variety program, Party Pilipinas replacing S.0.P., which eventually clinched higher ratings against iis
rival program. The weekday tefebabad block likewise carried higher costing programs vis-a-vis their
counterparts last year. In 2010, Survivor Philippines featured celebrity castaways with an equally new
host in the person of Richard Gutierrez, entailing higher cost than 2009's Survivor edition.

The escalation in cash production costs was partly offset by the reduction in program rights usage
arising from the aforementioned changes in the programming mix, wherein slots previously occupied by
Koreanovelas were replaced by in-house produced programs.

2010 2009 Inc/(Dec) Yo
Production Costs (in millions Php) | (in millions Php){ {in millions Php)
Talent fees 2,330.5 2,101.1 2293 11%
Rentals and outside services 658.9 613.1 45.8 7%
Other program expenses 1,064.4 944.3 120.1 13%
Sub-total - cash production costs 4 053.8 3,658.5 395.3 11%
Program rights amortization 463.9 524.4 (60.6}] -12%
Depreciation and amortization 210.5 206.6 3.9 2%
Sub-total - cash production cosis 674.3 731.0 (56.7) 8%
Total production cosis 47281 - 43895 338.6 8%

Meanwhile, consolidated general and administrative expenses (GAEX) sealed the 2010 #3,733 miflion,
B281 million or 8% more than in 2009. The spike in advertising and promotions due to the continued
promotional blitz in the regions accounted for more than one third of the escaiation in GAEX. The hike
in sales incentives owing to 2010’s election revenues likewise added to the increase in general and
administrative expenses. :
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2010 2009 Inc/{Dec) Yo
General and Administrative Expenses (in millions Php) | (in millions Php) | {in millions Php)
Personnel costs 1,626.1 1,612.1 14.3 1%
Guiside services 667.3 512.2 155.1 30%
Facilities costs 443.0 349.0 94.0 27%
Taxes and licenses 1913 | 191.4 0.1 -0.1%
Oihers 457.8 411.4 46,1 11%
Subtotal - Cash GAEX 3,385.2 3,076.1 309.2 10%
Depreciation and amortization 296.5 352.1 (55.6)] -16%
Provision for doubtful accounis 30.6 82 2241 275%
Amortization of software costs 20.2 15.7 4.6 29%
Subtotal - Non-cash GAEX 347.3 375.9 (28.6) -8%
Total GAEX 3,732.6 3,452.0 280.6 8%

Personnel costs amounted to B1,626 million, almost at par with 2009's spending. Despite growth in
manpower base and salary adjustments, the negligible movement in personnei costs in 2010 was due
to the presence of a non-recurring signing bonus in 2009 resulting from the three-year collective
bargaining agreement and higher bonus rate in 2009.

Outside services, consisting of advertising and promotions, management and professional fees, and
sales incentives, soared by B155 million or 30% compared to prior year. Extensive promotional efforts
particularly in the regions in the pursuit of gaining nationwide leadership in ratings drove advertising and
promotions to grow by 39% or B112 million more than in 2009. Sales incentive likewise shot up attuned
to the influx of potitical ad placements earlier in 2010,

Utilities and repairs and maintenance which comprised Facilities costs rose 27% or 294 million in 2010,
The jump Ins utilities consumption mainly resulted from the power rate hike not only in Metro Manila but
in the regions as well. The signal-strengthening enhancements in regional infrasiructure likewiss
necessitated additional power consumption.

Taxes and licenses ended flat at B191 mitlion year-on-year. The growth in franchise tax and increase in
royalty tax aligned with the improvement in GMA International’s subscription revenue were offset by the
reduction in real property tax payments and one-time adjustment in annual NTC supervision fes.

Other cash GAEX was likewise up by B46 million or 11% compared to 2009, ending at B458 miliion vs.
R411 million. The growth was influenced by higher fees incurred in research and survey services and
increases in security and janitorial fees.

Meanwhile, non-cash GAEX for the 2010 dropped 8% or B29 million wrapping up at 347 million on the
back of lower depreciation. Major broadcast equipment were fully amortized this year causing the
reduction. This was partly negated by booking additional provision for doubtful accounts in 2010.

Interest and financing charges on short-term loans
Interest expense and financing charges dipped by 57% to a mere B4 million in 2010 from 2009's BY
million. Short-term borrowings in 2010 was significantly trimmed down as the Company was awash with

cash especially during the earlier part of that year from political advertisemenis and was able to sustain
its operations with internally generated funds.
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Interest income from short-term investments

While interest and financing charges dropped, interest income from short-term investments grew to B77
million, up B19 mittion or 34% from 2009. Short-term placements were relatively higher boosted by
higher collections due to pay-before broadcast policy for election-related placements.

Net Income

The impact of total operating costs outpacing the growth in revenues was mitigated by additional
contributions coming from non-operating income in 2010, Thus, bottom line settled ahead of 2008,
albeit by barely 0.1% at 2,821 miiiion compared to B2,818 million in 2008.

Balance Sheet Accounis

Consolidated assets fotaled B412,872 million, equivalent to a 6% reduction from 2009's 13,684
milkon. Cash and short-term investments were down 44%, declining from R2,200 million by end-2009 to
B1.232 million as of year-end. The significant drop resulted from a second tranche of cash dividend
payout of B0.25 per share to alt shareholders amounting fo F1,215 million in December 2010, apart
from the regular dividend distributed in May of the same year -- another milestone for the Company.

Trade days-sales-outstanding (DSO) stood at 145 days at end-2010 vs. 149 days at the close of 2009.

Despite a slowdown in net income, financial indicators for the Network remained robust. Return on
assets improved to 22% from prior year's 21%, while return on equity ended at 27% vs. 26% in 2006.

Equity settled at B10,299 million as of December 2010, 5% lower than 2009's R10,880 million caused
by the aforementioned higher dividend payout during the year.

2010 2009
Cash Flows (in millions Php) | (inmillions Php)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,703.7 2,8225
Net cash used in investing activities (259.8) (602.4)
Net cash used in financing activities {3,403.8) (1,700.7)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (7.9) (7.2}
Netl increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (967.8) 512.1
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,200.2 1,688.1
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1,232.4 2,200.2

Operating Activities

Net cash from operations registered at B2,704 million in 2010. This resuited from the income before
income tax of 83,794 million adjusted by depreciation expense of R507 million, pension expense of R84
million and interest income from bank deposits and short-term investments of B77 milliory apart from the
changes in working capital. The primary components of the changes in working capital include the P
255 million increase in trade and other receivables and 218 million climb in prepaid expenses which
were partly offset by the net movement resulting in a drop of B82 million in program rights as the
Company’s program rights usage for the year was higher compared to the level of acquisitions made.
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Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to R260 million, arising mainly from the B428 million
additions to property and equipment followed by B31 million worth of software costs. These were offset
by the B97 million decrease in other noncurrent assets as well as the R59 million representing collection
of advances to associates and joint ventures and B50 million proceeds from sale of property and
equipment and investment properties.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities amounted to B3,404 million basically for the record-high cash
dividend payout amounting to B3,400 million during the year.

KEY VARIABLE AND OTHER QUALITATIVE OR QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

vi.

Trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on
the issuer's liguidity.

As of December 31, 2011, there were no known trends, demands, commitments, events or
uncertainties that will have a material impact on the issuer’s liquidity.

Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
company, including any default or acceleration or an obligation.

As of December 31, 2011, there were no events which may trigger a direct or contingent
financial obligation that is material to the Company.

Material off-batance-sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations {including contingent
obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated entities or other
persons created during the reporting period.

There were no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated entities or
other persons created during the reporting period.

Materiai commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such commitments
and the expected sources of funds for such expenditures.

For 2012, the parent company has allotted B679 million for capital expenditures. This will
be financed by internally-generated funds.

Any known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reascnably expected to
have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from
continuing operations.

GMA Network's resuits of operations depend largely on the ability to sell airtime for
advertising. The Company's business may be affected by the general condition of the
economy of the Philippines.

Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company's continuing
operations.
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vii.

viii.

As of December 31, 2011, there were no significant elements of income or loss that did not
arise from the issuer's continuing operations.

Causes for Material Changes in the Financial Statements

Balance Sheet (December 31, 2010 vs. December 31, 2009)

@

&

Cash and short-term investments dropped 44% to B1,232 million at year-end due io the
payment of a second tranche of cash dividends in December 2010 amounting to 1,215
million.

Program rights decreased by 13% to B558 million mainly due to higher usage vis-a-vis
acquisitions.

Net book value of property and equipment slid by 5% to B2,8672 million as additions to
fixed assets were outpaced by the asset retirements and depreciation.

There were no outstanding interest-bearing loans as of end-December 2008 and 2010.

Trade payables and other current liabilities slightly decreased by 3% to 1,819 million
year-on-year.

The 41% drop in income tax payable resulted from higher payments made during the
year attuned to the considerable growth in net income during election period.

Obligation for program rights grew by 23% to B76 million as total payments made were
tess than acquisitions on account during the year.

Pension liability dipped by 10% to B253 million as provisions for retirement booked in
2010 were lower compared to actual contributions fo the fund for the same period.

Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or resuits of
operations.

There are no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or
results of operations.

Interim Periods

The Company currently cannot make avaitable the financial information {for the first quarter of 2012. The
Company however, undertakes to submit its SEC Form 17-Q on or before May 15, 2012 and o make
the same available upon request during the Company’s Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

lil. PROPERTIES

As of December 31, 2011, the Company’s total property and equipment and real property amounted
to P4,662.2 million. The property and equipment had a book value of P3,252.6 million, while its real
properties had a fair market value of P1,409.6 million (based on an independent appraisal repori as of
December 31, 2009).

The following are the principal properties of the Company:
The Channel 7 compound located in Barangay South Triangte, Diliman, Quezon City, which

contains several buildings, including the GMA Network Center building;
The GMA Network Center Studios, a four-storey building with an area of 4,053 square meter
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property adjacent to the GMA Network Center at GMA Network Drive cor. EDSA, Diliman
Quezon City which houses two state-of-the-art studios, technical facilities and offices;

The GMA-7 Antenna Tower in Tandang Sora Avenue, Barangay Culiat, Diliman Quezon
City, which contains the TV and FM Transmitter building and the Satellite Uplink building;
The GMA Fleet Center located on the east corner of Mother ignacia Avenue and Sergeant
Esguerra Avenue, Barangay South Triangle, Ditiman Quezon City; and

Properties in the key areas across different regions:

Luzon

Land in Barangay Malued, Dagupan City, where the Company's radio and television studios
are located;

A 51,135 square meter property in Panghulo, Obando, Bulacan, where an AM transmitter
site, a two-storey building, a genset house, and an AM tower are situated;

A 2,000 square meter property in Barangay Concepcion Pequefia, Naga City, where a TV
relay transmitter and an FM transmitter site are located; and

A 10,000 square meter property in La Trinidad, Benguet where an FM transmitier site and a
one sforey building are situated.

A 2000 square meter property in Bayubay Sur, San Vicente, llocos Sur where a building for
TV Station wili be construcied.

Visayas

@
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Land located in Nivel Hills, Barangay Lahug, Cebu City, containing a muitilevel building
which houses radio and television operation facilities;

Land in Barangay Tamborong, Jordan, Guimaras where an FM radio and television
transmitter is located;

Land in Alta Tierra, Jaro, lloilo City where radio and television studios are located;

Land in Barangay Jibao-an, Pavia, Hoilo where an AM transmitter site and building are
located,

Land in Barangay Sta. Monica, Puerto Princesa City, Palawan where a ielevision relay
transmitter site and building are located; and,

Land in Barangay Bulwang, Numancia, Aklan where a television relay transmitter site and a
building are located.

Mindanao

Land in Bo. Matina Hills, Davao City where an FM and television transmitter building and
studio complex are located,

Land in Barangay San Isidro, General Santos City where a television relay transmitler site
and a building are located; and,

Land in Barangay Cabatangan, Zamboanga City where a television refay transmitter site
and a building are located.

The properties owned by the Company are currently unencumbered and are free from any existing

The Company also leases land, building and studiofoffice space in various locations around the
Philippines under lease agreements for periods of between three and 25 years. The lease agreements
may be cancelled at the Company’s option. Rental expense of the Company related to this amounted
to P15.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011.
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Regional Broadcast Stations

GMA owns regional broadcast stations in various parts of the country. Originating TV stations are stand
alone transmitter, studio and production facilities capable of producing and airing live and/or taped
programs as well as plugs and advertising within their {local) service areals independent of, or in
conjunction with the national feed. Satellite TV stations are similar to originating TV stations except that
they are not equipped with live production capability outside of news bulletins. Satellite TV stations are
also capable of broadcasting local plugs or advertising within their respective (local) service areas gither
independent of, or in conjunction with national program feeds. TV relay stations are limited to transmitter
and signal receiving facilities and only re-broadcast programs/content received from originating or
satellite TV stations with which they are associated; either via satellite or other receiving methods.

The following are GMA’s television and radio stations throughout the Philippines:

LIST OF GMA’s OPERATING TV STATIONS

NO STATION ADDRESS CONTACT NUMBER
LUZON TEL. NO./ MOBILE PHONE:
1 TV-7 Metro Manila Brgy. Culiat, Tandang Sora, Quezon (02) 931-9183 7 (02) 924-
City 2497
TV-11 Metro Manila Brgy. Culiat, Tandang Sora, Quezon (02) 931-9183 / {02) 924-
City 2497
TV-27 Metro Manita (UHF) Brgy. Culiat, Tandang Sora, Quezon (02) 931-9183 / (02) 924-
City 2497
5 TV-5 llocos Norie gi)gge San Lorenzo, San Nicolas, liccos 0918-5328580
TV-27 Hlocos Norte (UMF) aﬁe San Lorenzo, San Nicolas, Hocos 0918-5328580
3 TV-48 llocos Sur Mt. Caniao, Bantay, llocos Sur 0915-8632841
4 | TV-10 Benguet Mi. Sto. Tomas, Tuba, Benguet 0915-4417080
TV-22 Benguet (UHF) Mt. Sto. Tomas, Tuba, Benguet 0915-4417080
5 | TV-10 Olongapo Upper Mabayuhan, Qlongapo City 0927-2570496
TV-26 Olongapo (UHF) Upper Mabayuhan, Olongapo City 0927-2570496
6 TV-12 Batangas Mt. Banoy, Bo. Talumpok East, 0915-8632860
Batangas City
TV-26 Batangas (UHF) Mt Banoy, Eo. Talumpok East, 0915-8632860
Batangas City
7 | TV-7 Naga Brgy. Concepcion Pequefia, Naga City 0015-4417071
TV-28 Naga (UHF) Brgy. Concepcion Pequefia, Naga City 0015-4417071
8 | TV-12 Legaspi Mt. Bariw, Estanza, Legaspi City 0915-8632867
TV-27 Legaspi (UHF) Mt. Bariw, Estanza, Legaspi City 0915-8632867
9 TV-12 Puerto Princess, Mif{ra Rd., Brgy. Sta. Monica, Puerto 0939-2755260
Palawan Princesa, Palawan
TV-27 Puerto Princesa, Mitra Rd., Brgy. Sta. Monica, Puerto 0755280
Palawan (UHF) Princesa, Palawan 0939
10 | TV-6 Brooke's Point, Palawan | Poblacion, Brooke's Point, Palawan 0939-2755280
11 | TV-7 Masbate Bray. Pinamurbuhan, Mobo, Masbhate 09808-2405510
TV-27 Masbate (UHF) Brgy. Pinamurbuhan, Mobo, Masbate 0909-2405510
12 | TV-13 Catanduanes Brgy. Sto. Nifio, Virac, Catanduanes 0906-7524547
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TV-13 Occ. Mindoro

Bonifacio St., San Jose, Occidental
Mindoro

0921-3524271

TV-26 Oce. Mindoro (UHF)

Bonifacio St., San Jose, Occidental
Mindoro

0921-3524271

14

TV-5 Aurora

Purok 3, Brgy. Buhangin, Baler, Aurora

.0920-2603590

15

TV-7 Abra

Bragy. lL.usuac, Peflarrubia, Abra

0999-4473166

16

TV-13 Aparri, Cagayan

Hi-Class Bldg., De Rivera 5t.,
Poblacion, Aparri, Cagayan

0608-3846771

17

TV-7 Tuguegarao, Cagayan

Phil. Lumber Bldg., Washington St.,
Tuguegarao, Cagayan

0829-5603185

18 | TV-8 Coron, Palawan Tapias Hill, Coron, Palawan 0829-6982107

19 TV-7 Batanes Brgy. Kayvaluganan, Basco, Batanes 0928-7433472/
00202804278

o | TV-7 Romblon ”;riple Peak, Sta. Maria, Tablas, 0929-4812061

ombion .
TV-7 Isabela Heritage Commercial Complex,
21 Maharlika Hi-way, Brgy. Maivar, 0915-6727845
Santiago City, Isabela
22 | TV-5 Mountain Province Mt Amuyao, Barlig. Mountain Province 0815-4416450

23 | TV-44 Jalzjala Mt Landing, Jalajala, Rizal 0915-8632874
VISAYAS
o4 TV-7 Cebu Bonbon, Cebu City 0915-4417G75
TV-27 Cebu (UHF) Bonbon, Cebu City 0915-4417075
25 TV-8 lloilo Bo. Tamburong, Jordan, Guimaras 09415-4417084
TV-28 loilo (UHF) Alta Tierra Subdivision, Jaro, lloilo 0915-4417084
6 TV-11 Bohol gﬁgabi Hills, Brgy. Bool, Tagbilaran 0818-2502675
97 TV-10 Tacloban | Basper, Tighao, Tacloban City 00193899212
TV-26 Tacloban (UHF) Basper, Tigbao, Tacloban City 0919-3899212
28 | TV-12 Ormoc, Leyte Brgy. Alta Vista, Ormoc City 0912-8660646
29 | TV-8 Borongan Poblacion, Borongan, Eastern Samar 0021-2602154
20 TV-5 Roxas City Brgy. Milibili, Roxas City, Capiz 0921-0978181 / 0949-
4912879
TV-27 Roxas City (UHF) Brgy. Milibili, Roxas City, Capiz 0921-9978181 / 0940-
4912879
31 | TV-5 Dumaguete Barrio Looc, Sibulan, Negros Oriental 0906-5229490
TV-28 Dumaguete (UMF) Barrio Looc, Sihulan, Negros Oriental 0908-5229490
37 TV-10 Sipalay Sipalay Muqicipa§ Buiiding, Sipatay, 0999-6032317
Negros Occidental
TV-5 Calbayog City Purok 2 San Mateo St. Brgy. Matobato, 7005868
33 Caibayog City, Western Samar 0948-709
34 | TV-2 Kalibo New Busuanga, Numangcia, Aklan 0929-4356922
TV-27 Kalibo {UHF) New Busuanga, Numancia, Aklan 0029-43560822
35 TV-13 Bacolod Security Bank Bldg., Rizal Si. cor. 0015-8632864

Logsin St., Bacolod City

MINDANAO
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TV-5 Davao

Shrine Hiﬂs, Matina, Davao Cily

0915-4417082 / 0929~

36 3292480
TV-27 Davao (UHF) Shrine Hills, Matina, Davao City 0015-4417082 / 0929-
3292480
37 | TV-12 Mt. Kitangtad Mt. Kitanglad, Bukidnon 0915-8632863
TV-12 Cagayan De Cro Malasag Heights, Brgy. Cugman,
38 Cagayan de Oro City 091 5'8632875
TV-35 Cagayan de Oro (UHF) | Malasag Heights, Brgy. Cugman, 0915-8632875
Cagayan de Oro City
29 TV-8 General Santos Nuhez St:, Brgy. San Isidro, General 0915-8632871
Sanios City
TV-26 Gen. Santos (UHF) Nufez St:, Brgy. San Isidro, General 0915-8632871
Santos City
40 TV-12 Cotabato gﬁszonai Government Center, Cotabato 0920-3537395
TV-27 Cotabato (UHF) éﬁgional Government Center, Cotabato 0920-3537395
41 | TV-8 Zamboanga Brgy. Cabatangan, Zamboanga City 0915-8632870
TV-21 Zamboanga (UHF) Brgy. Cabatangan, Zamboanga City 0915-8632870
a2 TV-5 Ozamis Bo. Maiaubang, QOzamis City, Misamis 0928-5278996
Occidental
TV-22 Ozamis (UHF) Bo. Maiaubang, Ozamis City, Misamis 0928-6278996
Occidental
43 TV-4 Dipolog Linabo Peak, Dipolog City, Zamboanga 0921-4406867
Del Norie
TV-26 Dipolog (UHF) Linabo Peak, Dipolog City, Zamboanga 0921-4406867
Del Norte
44 | TV-10 Surigao Lipata Hills, Surigac City 0919-8095052
TV-27 Surigao (UHF) Lipata Hills, Surigao City 0919-8095052
45 TV-12 Jolo Ynawat Bidg., Hadji Buta St., Jolo, Sulu 0918-7923420 / 0926-
7620292
46 TV-2 Tandag Capito& Hill, Brgy. Telaje, Tandag, 0920-2952515
Surigao del Sur
47 | TV-3 Pagadian Mt. Palpalan, Pagadian City 0008-6888017
TV-26 Pagadian (UHF) Mt. Palpalan, Pagadian City 0908-68388017
TV-11 lligan 3/F Kimberly Bldg., A. Bonifacio cor.
48 isidoro Emilia Ave., Tibanga Hi-Way, 0921-3384319

iliga_ppity

1

TV-7 Butuan®

AFFILIATE STATION
SJT Bldg., Montilla Blvd., Butuan City

(085) 342-9571/342-7073

~Affiliate stations are not owned by the company - they are usually independently owned by local Filipino business people who re-
broadcast the Company's originating signals during specified time blocks for negotiated fixed fees.

GMA’s RADIO STATIONS

AREA

EREC, i

CALL SIGN POWER

i i

ADDRESS

LUZON

45




METRO MANILA 97.1 mhz. 584 DWLS 3] 3skWw | GMA Complex, EDSA cor. Timog Ave., Diliman, Quezon
khz. DZBDB AM S50kwW City
BAGUIO 92.7 mhz. DWRA M 10kw | 2/F Baguio Midland Courier Bldg. 16 Kisad Rd., Baguio
City
DAGUPAN 93.5 mhaz. DWTL FM 10kw Claveria Road, Malued District
Dagupan City, Pangasinan
LEGASPI 96.3 mhz. DWW FM 10kW 3rd leve! A.Bichara Silversreen Eniertainment Center,
Magallanes St., Legazpi City
LUCENA 91.1 mhaz. pwaQl FM 10kw 3/F Ancon Bldg., Merchan Street, Lucena City
NAGA 101.5 mhz. DWW Fv 10kW | 4/F DMG Bidg., Penafrancia St. Naga City, Camarines Sur
PALAWAN 909 khz. DYsp AM Sk Solid Road, San Manuel Puerto Princesa City, Palawan
97.5 mhz, DYHY FM Skw
TUGUEGARAD 89.3 mhz. DWW i 10kwW | 4/F villablanca Hotel Pattaui St. cor Pallua Rd., Ugac
Norte Tuguegarao, Cagayan
VISAYAS
BACOLOD 107.1mhz. DYEN i 10kw | 2/F Jomabo Centre Penthouse Rizal cor. Lacson S5ts.,
Bacolod City
CEBU
999 khz, 98.5 DYSS AM 10kw
mhz. DYRT FM 25kW | GMA Skyview Complex Nivel Hills, Lahug, Cebu City
iLOILO 1323 khz Dvsl AM 10kw Phase 5, Alta Tierra Village laro, Iloilo City
93.5 mhz. DYMK FM 10kw
KALIBO 42,9 mhz. DYRU FM Skw Torres-Olivia Bldg. Roxas Ave. Extension, Kalibo, Aklan
MINDANAQ
CAGAYAN DE ORG 100.7 mhz. DXLX v 10kw | 2/F Marel Reafty Bldg., Pabayo corner Hayes 5t. Cagayan
de Oro City, Misamis Oriental
ILIGAN Relayed over
DZBB
DAVACG 103.5 mhaz. XRYV Fad 10K Penthouse, Amesco Bldg. Damaso Suazo 5t., Uyanguren
1125 khz DXGM AM 10K Davao City
GENERAL SANTOS 102.3 mhz. DXCI ™M 10K 3/F PBC Bldg., Cagampang St. Gen. Santos City

V. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company and its subsidiaries are invoived, from

time to time, as plaintiff or defendant in litigation

arising from transactions undertaken in the ordinary course of its business. Described below are the
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pending material litigation of which the Company and its subsidiaries or their properties are subject.
The Company believes that a judgment rendered against it in the cases indicated below will not have a
material adverse effect on its operations or financial condition.

None of the Company's affiates, or their property, namely, RGMA Network, Inc., Philippine
Entertainment Portal, Inc. and Mont-Aire Realty and Development Corporation, are involved in any
material pending ktigation as of December 31, 2011.

Tax Cases

The Company fited a Petition for Review on September 22, 2004 against the Commissioner of Interna
Revenue (“CIR") to dispute its assessment for deficiency taxes for the year 2000 in the total amount of
P18.8 million based on the alieged failure by the Company to remit and withhold Value Added Tax
(“VAT") due on income payments to foreign suppliers and for deficiency in final withholding taxes, failure
to pay withholding tax on dividends and interest thereon and failure to pay in full the interest on
withholding tax deficiency on payment of interest on foreign loans. The Company raised the defense of
prescription, arguing that the dividends declared to individuals in the year 2000 came from retained
earnings for the year 1997. The Company also argued that it had already paid its liability for the alleged
deficiency for withholding tax on payments to foreign companies on program rights and deficiency for
final withholding tax on interest and foreign loans.

The Court of Tax Appeals (“CTA") promuigated an adverse decision on July 26, 20G7. The Company
" filed a Petition for Review with the Supreme Court questioning the said CTA decision. However, the
Supreme Court denied the Petition. The Company filed a motion for reconsideration which was likewise
denled by the Supreme Court. In the meantime, the Company’s application for abatement with the BIR
has been denied. Thus, the Company was constrained to pay to the BIR its corresponding tax liabilities
for year 2000,

Labor Cases

There is a pending case for illegal dismissal filed by Jelly Vinluan against Scenarios, Inc. On April 26,
2001, a judgment was rendered by Labor Arbiter Salimathar V. Nambi in favor of Mr. Vinluan ordering
Scenarios, Inc. to pay him the amount of 2119,190.37 representing back wages, separation pay, salary
differential, service incentive leave pay, and 13"-month pay. Scenarios, Inc. only learned of the case
when the sheriff of the NLRC served the writ of execution issued therein. As such, Scenarios, Inc.
immediately filed a notice and memorandum of appeal, a motion to quash andlor recall writ of
execution, and an urgent motion fo lift the order of garnishment. On August 20, 2003, the NLRC issued
an order remanding the case to the Labor Arbiter for proper service of summons but this was
subsequently overruled by the Court of Appeals. Scenarios appealed this decision o the Supreme
Court. In a Decision dated September 17, 2008, the Supreme Court denied the Pefition. Scenarios
filed & motion for reconsideration which was denied in a subsequent resolution by the Supreme Court.
The case will revert back to the NLRC for execution of the decision of the Labor Arbiter. However, we
have contested the computed award for Mr. Vinluan before the Labor Arbiter.

There is another pending case for illegal dismissal, unfair labor practices, non-payment of overtime pay,
holiday pay, premium pay for holiday and rest day and night shift differential and service incentive leave
pay filed by Carlos Pabriga, Geoffrey Arias, Kirby Campo, Arnold Lagahit and Armand Catibug. The
complainants were engaged on various dates from 1993 to 1997 to replace regular employees of the
Company’s Cebu station who were on leave or otherwise unable to work. On August 24, 2000, the
{abor Arbiter dismissed the complaints for illegal dismissal and. unfair labor practices, but directed the
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Company to pay complainants their proportionate 13"-month pay. On appeal, the NLRC held that the
complainants were regular employees with respect to the particular activity the}/ were assigned untit the
activity ceased to exist and that they were entitled to separation pay, 13" month pay, night shift
differential and service incentive leave pay. The complainants claim that by virtue of this ruling, they are
entitled to payment of a total of approximately #1.5 million as of March 2007. The case is presently
pending before the Supreme Court on appeal of the Company.

There is also a case for illegal dismissal filed against GMA Marketing and Productions, Inc. ("GMPI),
another wholly-owned subsidiary of GMA Network, and its officers, Lizelle Maralag and Leah Nuyda
initiated by Corazon Guison, a former Sales Director of GMPL. The complainant claimed that she was
unceremoniously terminated from her employment somefime "in May 2010 and is enttled fo
reinstatement as well as payment of full backwages, unpaid commissions and salaries, moral and
exemplary damages and attorney’s fees. On January 31, 2011, the Labor Arbiter rendered a decision
finding for complainani Guison and ordered the respondents to pay P807,007.50 as backwages and
P1,691,000.00 as separation pay, as well as attorney’s fees. The respondents timely filed their appeal
before the National Labor Relations Commission (NLRC) in March 11, 2011, In a Decision dated
November 15, 2011, the NLRC reversed the Labor Arbiter's decision and dismissed the compiaint of
Guison.

infringement Cases

The Company’s officers, Felipe L. Gozon, Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr., Marissa L. Flores, Jessica A. Soho,
Grace dela Pefa-Reyes, John Oliver Manalastas, John Does and Jane Does were named as
respondents in a criminal case initiated in June 2004 for copyright infringement before the City
Prosecutor's Office of Quezon City and the Department of Justice (“DOJ”). The case was subsequently
consdlidated with the Company's counter charge for libel.

The respondents were charged in their capacities as corporate officers and employees of the Company
responsible for the unauthorized airing of ABS-CBN's exclusive live coverage of the arrival in the
Philippines of Angelo dela Cruz, a Filipino overseas worker previously held hostage in Iraq. Aside from
seeking to hold the named respondents criminally liable for infringement and unfair competition, ABS-
CBN sought damages from the respondents jointly and severally in the aggregate amount of 2200
million.

On July 27, 2004, the Company and certain of its officers filed a case for libel against certain officers of
ABS-CBN for statements made in their programs Insider and Magandang Umaga Bayan relafive to the
incident involving the dela Cruz feed. The Company also seeks damages in the aggregate amount of
2100 million.

In a Resolution dated December 3, 2004, the DOJ dismissed the complaint for libel against the ABS-
CBN officers and employees and dropped the charges against the Company's officers except for Ms.
Dela Pefia-Reyes and Mr. Manalastas against whom the DOJ found probable cause for viotation of the
Intellectual Property Code. ABS-CBN filed a motion for partial reconsideration of the resolution on the
grounds that the other named respondents were erroneously exonerated. The Company filed a petition
for review with the DOJ with respect to the finding of probable cause against Ms. Dela Pefa-Reyes and
Mr. Manalastas and the dismissal of the case for libel which was denied. On August 1, 2005, the DOJ
reversed the fiscal's resolution finding probable cause against Mr. dela Pefia-Reyes and Mr. Manalastas
and directed the fiscal to withdraw the Information. ABS-CBN filed a motion for reconsideration.
Meanwhile, the DOJ issued a Resolution dated September 15, 2005 denying the Company’s Petition for
Review and ruling that ABS-CBN's officers and employees did not commit libel. The Company filed a
motion for reconsideration.

On June 29, 2010, the DOJ issued a Resolution granting both the Company’s and ABS-CBN's Motion
for Reconsideration, and directing the filing of information against ABS-CBN's officers and employees
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for libel as well as the filing of information for infringement against the Company'’s officers and
employees. ' :

The Company elevated the DOJ's June 28, 2010 Resolution directly to the Court of Appeals via a
Petition for Certiorari docketed as CA-G.R. SP No. 115751. Qn November 9, 2010, the Court of
Appeals issued a decision granting the Company's Petition for Certiorari and reversing the DOJ
Resolution dated June 29, 2010 and reinstating the DOJ Resolution dated August 1, 2005 which
ordered the withdrawal of Information for copyright infringement. ABS-CBN filed a motion for
reconsideration with the Court of Appeals, which was denied. ABS-CBN filed a Petition with the
Supreme Court and which is still pending, to date.

Libel Case

A complaint for libel against Miguel Enriquez, as well as an action for 220 million in civil damages
against the Company, Miguel Enriquez, and several others, was filed by Robert Lyndon Barbers, et al.,
for an episode of the program Imbestigador, concerning the widespread sale of kidneys in Siargao
Island. The complainants alleged that they were made the subject of various imputations of wrongdoing
in the episode in question. The comptainants seek damages in the amount of R15 miliien for the
malicious imputations; R2 million in moral damages; B2 million in exemplary damages; and 21 million in
attorney’s fees and expenses of litigation.

While the criminal case has been provisionally dismissed, the civil case has been withdrawn by plaintiffs
and ordered dismissed by the RTC of Quezon Cily.

Civil Cases

A complaint for damages was filed by Dolores Domingo, a Bureau of Customs {"BOC") employes,
against the Company, Miguel Enriquez, Carmela Tiangco and Arnold Clavio sometime in 2003. The
case arose from the airing of an episode of Imbestigador, Saksi and other programs, concerning two
BOC employees who acquired motor vehicles disproportionate to their salaries as government
employees. The plaintiff seeks moral damages in the amount of £400 thousand; nominal damages in
the amount of R20 thousand; exemplary damages in the amount of RB20 thousand; attorneys fees in the
amount of B50 thousand as well as the cost of suit. The RTC of Manila ruled in favor of the Company
and dismissed the complaint by plaintiff.

Another case for damages was filed by Ronaldo Virola against Miguel Enriquez and the Company.
Ronaido Virola filed a case for damages arising from the airing of Imbestigador episodes showing the
interviews of “Myra” and “Chona” who accused Virola of placing drugs in their drinks before molesting
them. The said Imbestigador episodes also showed the raid conducted by operatives of Task Force
Jericho of the Department of Interior and Local Government who applied for a warrant to search the
residence of Virola. The complaint sought BR800 thousand in moral damages, B300 thousand in
exemplary damages, attorney’s fees in the amount of 2100 thousand and the cost of suit. The RTC of
Caloocan ruled in favor of the Company and dismissed the complaint by plaintiff. Plaintiff has appealed
the trial court’s decision to the Court of Appeals.

On June 25, 2008, Mary the Queen Hospital filed a case for damages against the Company, Mike
Enriquez as well as certain other members of the show, Imbestigador. The hospital alleged that the
show damaged its reputation by falsely accusing them of iflegally detaining a patient for failure to settle
hospital bills. The hospital claimed a total of B 5.5 million in moral, exemplary and temperate damages,
as well as costs of the suit. The plaintiff is in the process of presenting its evidence.

Another case involved the Company and members of the show Imbestigador, stemmed from a story
involving a police officer allegedly extorting money from arrested drug dependents, which ultimately led
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to his arrest. On September 4, 2008, the complaint sought to enjoin the airing of the story relating to his
arrest by filing a case for injunction. However, the plaintiff's application for resiraining order was denied
by the RTC of Quezon City. Plaintiff then filed an amended compfaint {o inctude a claim for damages.
The plainiiff is still presenting evidence before the frial court.

A petition for indirect contempt with damages was filed against GMA DYSI Super Radyo and other
individual respondents alleging that they violated the sub judice rule by commenting on issues in an
engeing case on Saksi sa Gab-l. Petitioner prayed for damages in the amount of about half a million in
damages. However, petitioner has relented and withdrawn the Petition for contempt as against the
Company. Thus, the trial court dismissed the Petition.

V. MARKET FOR ISSUER'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDERS MATTERS

Market information
Stock Prices GMATY

Period in 2011 Highest Closing Lowest Closing

1Q 7.08 6.50
24 7.18 6.67
3Q 6.99 6.47
4Q 6.68 6.20
Stock Prices GMAP
Perlod in 2011 Highest Closing Lowest Closing
1Q 7.01 6.52
2Q 7.10 6.70
3Q 7.10 8.39
40 6.55 6.03

The Company’s common shares and Philippine Deposit Receipts have been listed with the Philippine
Stock Exchange since 2007, The price information as of the close of the latest practicable trading date
March 7, 2012; GMAT7's closing price is B 9.50 for GMA 7 and £9.30 for GMAP (PDRs)

Holders

There are 1,900 holders of common equity as of March 31, 2012, The foliowing are the top 20 holders of
the common equity of the Company:

MName of Shareholders Mo. of Common Shares Z?;?%::%ngmo;ﬁ:vgﬁ;ﬁ:;p
GMA Holdings, Inc. 861,558,300 25.61%
Group Management & Development, Inc. 789,813,389 23.47%
FLG Management & Devslopment Corp. 663,929,027 19.73%
M.A. Jimenez Enterprises, Inc. 453,882,095 13.49%
Television International Corp. 334,378,037 G.94%
PCD Nominee Corp. 216,414,966 6.43%
Gozon Development Corp. ' 14,033,954 0.42%
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Mame of Shareholders . MNo. of Common Shares Percentage of Qwnership
of Total Common Shares
Gozon Foundation Inc, 4 514,361 00.13%
Gilberio R. Duavit, Jr. 4,007,006 0.12%
Alegria F. Sibal 1,083,252 0.03%
Anna Teresa Gozon-Abrogar 1,058,000 0.03%
Fefipe S. Yalong 1,025,000 0.03%
Jose Mari L. Chan 872,000 0.03%
Judith Duavit Vazguez 588,000 0.02%
Jose P. Marcelo 501,498 0.01%
Nita Laurel Yupangco 346,127 : 0.01%
Jose C. Laurel V 346,127 0.01%
Susana Laurel -Delgado 346,127 0.01%
Horacic P. Borromeo 328,735 0.0'1.%
Jaime C. Laya 294,000 0.01%

The following are the top 20 holders of the Company's preferred shares as of March 31, 2012:

Mame of Shareholders No, of Preferred Shares E?;fii:?a?%if::rgawggf:?
Group Management & Development Inc.  2,625,805,308 35.0130%
FL.G Management & Development Corp.  2,181,898,644 29.0038%
M.A. Jimenez Enterprises 1,508,978,826 20.1210%
Television International Corp. 1,111,661,610 14.8231%
Gozon Revelopment Corp. 46,245,306 0.6166%
Gozon Foundation Inc. 15,020,670 0.2003%
Alegria F. Sibal 2,623,806 0.0350%
Jose . Marcelo 1,203,594 0.0160%
Sotero H. Laurel 830,706 0.0111%
Nita Laurel Yupangco 830,706 0.0111%
Jose C. Laurel V 830,706 0.0111%
Juan Miguel Laurel 830,708 0.0111%
Susana Laurel-Delgado 830,706 0.0111%
Ma. Asuncion Laurel-Uichico 830,706 0.0111%
Horacio P. Borromeo 784,164 0.0105%
Francis F. Obana 105,120 0.0014%
Eduardo Morato 38,028 0.0005%
Anionio Gomez 30,420 0.0004%
Jose N. Morales 30,420 0.0004%
Paud Sim 30,420 0.0004%

The information presented does not relate to an acguisiticn, business combination or other
reorganization.

Dividend Information

Dividends shall be declared only from the surplus profits of the carporation and shall be payable at such
times and in such amounts as the Board of Directors shall determine, either in cash, shares or property
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of the Company, or a combination of the three, as said Board of Directors shall determine. The
declaration of stock dividends, however, is subject to the approval of at least two-thirds of the
outstanding capital stock. No dividend which will impair the capital of the Company shall be declared.
The Company has no contractual restrictions which would limit its ability to declare any dividend.

Dividend History of the Company

Year Amount Date Declared Tvpe of Bividend
2005 R 218,521,2035 February 17, 2005 Cash and Property
2005 £ 3,000,000,0C0.0 Qctober 11, 2005 Stock
2006 £ 1,156,000,060.0 June 13, 2006 ! Cash and Properly
2007 R 1,500,000,000.0 March 19, 2007 Cash
2007 P 375.,000,600.0 April 26, 2007 Stock
2007 2 1,000,000,600.0 July 2, 2007 Cash
2608 B 1,214,163,601.0 May 21, 2008 Cash
2609 R 1,701,069,453.0 April 2, 2009 Cash
2010 £ 2,187,089,296.58 March 25, 2010 Cash
2010 £1,215,049,069.2¢ October 28, 2010 Cash
2012 B 1,044,379,374.72 March 28, 2012 Cash

The Company's Board of Direclors has approved a dividend policy which will entitle holders of the
Common Shares to receive annual cash dividends equivalent to a minimum of 50% of the prior vear's
net income based on the recommendation of the Board of Directors. Such recommendation will take
into consideration factors such as the implementation of business plans, operating expenses, budgets,
funding for new invesiments, appropriate reserves and working capital, among others. The cash
dividend policy may be changed hy the Company's Board of Directors at any time.

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities

No sale of unregistered or exempt securities of the Company has occurred within the past three years.

Vi CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

GMA Network, Inc. is committed to the principles of good governance and recognizes their importance
in safeguarding shareholders’ interests and in enhancing shareholder value. The Company has adopted
a Manual on Corporate Governance to institutionalize the Company's adherence {o these principles.
This Manual clearly sets out the principles of good management and defines the specific responsibilities
of the Board, the Board Committees, and management within the over-all governance frameawork.

The Board of Directors, led by the Chairman, Alty. Felipe L. Gozon, strongly advocates accountabiiity,
transparency and integrity in all aspects of the business and commits themselves t¢ the best praclices
of governance in the pursuit of the company’s mission and vision.

To ensure adherence to corporate governance, the Board designated a Compliance Officer who is also
the Vice President for Internal Audif, Alty. Eduardo P. Santos. The Compliance Officer is responsible
for monitoring compliance by the Company with the provisions and requirements of good corporate
governance.

Board of Direcfors
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Compliance with the principles of good governance starts with the Company’s Board of Directors. The
Board is responsible for oversight of the buginess, determination of the company’s long- term strategy
and objectives, and management of the company’s risks by ensuring the company’s internal controls
and procedures. The Board of Directors ensures a high standard of governance, and promotes and
protacts the interests of the Company, its stockholders and other stakeholders.

The Board consists of nine directors, two of whom are independent directors. All nine members of the
Board have the expertise, professional experience and background that allow a thorough discussion
and deliberation of issues and matters affecting the Company.

The two independent directors - former Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban and Dr. Jaime C. Laya -
have no relationship with the Company, which would interfere with the exercise of independent
judgment in carrying our the responsibilities of a director.

The Board comprises the following members:

Name Position

Felipe L. Gozon Chairman and CEO
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. President and COO
Anna Teresa G. Abrogar Director

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez ‘Director

Judith D, Vazquez Director

Laura J. Westfall Director

Felipe S. Yalong Director

Artemio V. Panganiban Independent Director
Jaime C. Laya Independent Director

Board Performance

Directors attend regular meetings of the Board, which are held every guarter and other times as
necessary, and the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting (ASM). In its meetings, the Board reviews the
performance of the Company and its subsidiaries, approves plans, budgets and financial statements,
sets policies and guidelines for management, and discusses matters requiring Board attention and
approval. The Board met five (5) times in 2011, The attendance of the individuai directors at these
meetings is duly recorded as follows:

Birector's Name Reguiar and Special Meetings
Present Absent

Felipe L. Gozon

Gilberto R. Duavit,Jr.

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez

Feiipe S. Yalong

Anna Teresa M. Gozon- Abrogar
Judith D. Vazguez

Laura J. Westfall

[ S 2 S B & TR &1 B 4 B & ) R | R &
o o O O o O O O

Artemio V. Panganiban
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Jaime C. Laya 5 0

All directors have individually complied with the SEC’s minimum attendance requirement of 50%.

The Chairman, Felipe L.. Gozon, presided over all the Board meetings for the year. He likewise presided
over the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting, with all the members of the Board in attendance.

Board Remuneration

The amended by-laws of the Company provides that the Board of Directors shall receive and allocate
yearly an amount of not more than two and a half percent (2.5%) of the net income after income tax of
the corporation during the preceding year. Of the said 2.5%, one percent (1%) shall be allocated to the
members of the Board of Directors to be distributed share and share alike. The remaining one and a
half percent (1.5%) shall be allocated to the members of the Executive Committee to be distributed
share and share alike.

Committees and Meetings of the Board of Direclors

Four commiltees were established to aid in complying with the principles of good governance and
address issues requiring the Board's atiention:

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee (Excom) consists of three members which includes the Chairman of the
Board and CEO Felipe L. Gozon, President and COO Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. and Director Joel G.
Jimenez. Mr. Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. serves as Chairman of the Commitiee. It acts on matters delegated
{0 it by the Board of Directors. The Excom acts by a majority vote and in accordance with the authority
granted by the Board. All actions of the Excom are reported to the Board at the meeting immediately
following such action and are subject to revision and alteration by the Board provided that no rights or
acts of third parties shall be affected by any such revision or afteration.

Nomination Commitiee

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Felipe L. Gozon and composed of four members that include
an independent director in the person of former Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban as Vice
Chairman, Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. and Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez, as members. The mission of the
Nomination Committee is to provide the shareholders with an independent and objective evaluation and
assurance that the membership of the Board of Directors is competent and will foster the long-term
success of the Corporation and secure its competitiveness. The Nomination Committee assists the
Board of Directors in its responsibility in ensuring that all nominees to the Board of Directors are
competent and qualified to be nominated as Director based on internal guidelines. This is to ensure that:
(a) there is a proper mix of competent directors that would continuously improve shareholder's value;
and, (b) Directors will ensure a high standard of best practices for the Company and its stakeholders.

Compensation and Remuneration Committee
The Compensation and Remuneration Committee consists of Felipe L. Gozon who serves as Chairman,

Former Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban as Vice Chairman, Judith D. Vazquez and Laura 4.
Waestfall, members. The Committee recommends a formal and transparent framework of remuneration
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and evaluation for the members of the Board of Directors and key executives to enable them io run the
Comgpany successfully.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is currently composed of five members with two independent direclors as
members. Dr. Jaime C. Laya, an independent director serves as Chairman and former Chief Justice
Artemio V. Panganiban, also an independent director, serves as Vice Chairman. Anna Teresa M.
Gozon-Abrogar, Judith R, Duavit-Vazquez and Ms. Laura J. Westfall are members of the Committee.
The Audit Committee assists the Board in its fiduciary responsibilities by providing an independent and
objective assurance to the Company’s management and stakeholders in the continuous improvement of
risk management systems, business operations and proper safeguarding and use of the Corporation’s
resources and assets. The Audit Committee provides a general evaluation and gives assistance in the
over-all improvement of the risk management, control, and governance process of the Corporation as
designed by Management and provides assurance that these are properly functioning.

The Committee conducts tenders for independent audit services, reviews audit fees, and recommends
the appointment and fees of the independent auditors to the Board. The Board, in turn, submits the
appointment of the independent auditors for approval of the shareholders at the ASM.

The Audit Committee also approves the work plan of the Company's Internal Audit Group, as well as the
overall scope and work plan of the independent auditors.

The Audit Committee held five (5) meetings in 2011 wherein the Commiitee reviewed and approved,
among others, the Company's 2010 Consolidated Audited Financial Statements as prepared by the
external auditors.

Management

The Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer is Felipe L. Gozon, while Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.
holds the position of President and Chief Operating Officer.

The CEOQ is accountable to the Board for the development and recommendation of strategies and the
execution of strategic directions set by the Board. The CEQ is guided by the Company's Mission, Vision,
and Core Value statements, and with the assistance of the COO and the Senior Executives, is
responsible for the day-fo- day management of the Company and the implementation of the Board's
policies and decisions.

Management provides the Board with complete and accurate information on the operations and affairs
of the Company regularly.

Employee Relations

Employees are provided an employee handbook which contains the policies, guidelines for the duties
and responsibilities of an employee of GMA Network, Inc. The Handbook also details the benefits and

privileges accruing to all regular employees.

The News and Public Affairs Ethics Manual, on the other hand, sets the standards and rules on how
News and Public Affairs personnet should conduct themseives at work.
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Through an internal newsletter and the intranet facilitated by the Corporate Affairs Division of the

Corporate Communications Department, employees are updated on material developments within the
arganization.

The Company aiso provides training programs and seminars for career advancement and development.
The Company has also initiated activities centered on the safety, health and welfare of its employees.

Risk Management

The GMA Network's Board of Directors and management are mindful of the risks and uncertainties
inherent in the business. In the formulation of corporate sirategy and business decision-making,

potentiat risks are always taken into account. Necessary steps are taken to minimize, if not eliminate,
such risks.

The Audit Commiittee assists the Board in the oversight of the company’s risk management, ensures
that it has the proper controls in place, identifies and evaluates significant risk exposures and
contributes to the improvement of risk management and control systems,

Both radio and television broadcasting are highly competitive businesses. GMA stations compete for
listeners/viewers and advertising revenues within their respective markets directly with other radio and
for television stations, as well as with other media such as cable television and/ or cable radig,
newspapers, magazines, the internet, billboard advertising, among others. Audience ratings and market
shares are subject to change, and any change in a particular market could have a material adverse
effect on the revenue of our stations located in that market.

Considering the potential impact of various risks to the company's ability to deliver quality content
across muitiple platforms, the Company has established a Programming Committee that deliberates
weekly on the programming issues and strategies of the network. Regular monthly meetings of the
Company’s officers are also held to discuss plans, operational issues and strategies, implementation of
projects and recommendations for improvements.

The Company’s financial results are dependent primarily on its ability to generate advertising revenue
through rates charged to advertisers. The advertising rates a station is able to charge is affected by
many factors, including the ratings of its programs and the general strength of the local and national
economies. Generally, advertising declines during periods of economic recession or downiurns in the
economy. As a result, the Company’s revenue is likely to be adversely affected during such periods.

Management, being accountabie to the Board, also prepares financial statements in a timely manner in
accordance with generally accepled accounting standards in the Philippines. Management's statement
of responsibility with regards to the Company’s financial statements is included in this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements of GMA Network and its subsidiaries have been prepared in
accordance with Phitippine Financial Reporting Standards which are aligned with International Financial
Reporting Standards. The financial statements are audited by external auditors and reviewed by the
Audit Committee (with the support of the Internal Audit Group} to ensure that they fairly present, in all
material respects, the financial position and results of the Company's operations before these are’
presented to the Board of Directors for approval. '

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear, balanced and comprehensive assessment of the
Company’s financial position, performance and prospects each time it makes available ifs quarterly and
annual financial statements to the public.

Proempt Disclosures and Timely Reporting
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GMA Network, Inc. adheres o a high level of corporate disclosure and fransparency regarding the
company’s financial condition and state of corporate governance on a regular basis. Through the
[nvestor Relations and Compliance Division ({IRCD), shareholders are provided disclosures,
announcements and periodic reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission {SEC) and the
Philippine Stock Exchange. These are also available an line through the Company's Investor Relations
website www.gmanetwork.com/corporate/ir.

The Company, through the Investor Relations and Compliance Division, holds regular Analysis' and
investors’ briefings that are attended by the Company's Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer,
Chief Finance Officer as well as other high ranking officers. Meetings with Fund Managers, Investment,
Financial and Research Analysis are likewise handled by the IRCD.

‘Consolidated audited financial statements are submitted to the SEC on or before the prescribed period
and distributed to the shareholders prior to the ASM.
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 28, 2012

Securities and Exchange Commission
SEC Building, EDSA Greenhills
Mandaluyong, Metro Manila

The management of GMA Network, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, including the
additional components attached therein, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.
This responsibility includes designing and implementing internal confrols relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements and submits the
same to the stockholders.

Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors, appointed by the stockholders has examined
the consolidated financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on
Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the faimess of
presentation upon completion of such examination.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
O SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDIILES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
OMA Nerwork. Inc.

GhA MNetwork Center

Timog Avenue cormner EIXSA

Quezon City

We have auditad in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. the consolidaied Tinancial
statements of GMA. Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the Group) as.at December 31, 2011 and 2010
and for each of the three vears i the perod ended December 31. 2014 anciuded m this Form 17-A,
and have 1ssued our report thereon dated March 28, 2012, Our audits were made for the purposs of
forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taien as a whole. The scheduies iisted i the
tndex 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules are the responsipility of
the Group's management. These schedules are presented for purposes of complying with Securiies
Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended {2011}, and.are not par? of the basic fiancial statements
These schedules have beer subjected to the audining procedures applied in the audu of the basic
financial stziements and. I our opinlon. farly state. i all material respects. the information required
w be set forth theretn in relation to the basic financial statements taken as & whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYCO & CO.

Ramon . Dzon

Partner

CP A Certificate No. 46047

EC Accredaation No H077-AR-2 {Group A).

February 4, 2010, vahid uneil February 3. 2013

Taxiddentification™e. 102-085-577

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-17-2006
June 1, 2009, vahid until May 31, 2012

PTR No. 3174592, January 2. 2012, Makati City

March 28, 2012



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Direciors
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
GM A Network, inc

We have audited the accompanying consohidated financial statements of GVIA Networl, inc.and s
subsidiaries. which comprise the consohidated statements of financial position asat December 31,
5011 and 2010, and the consolidaied statemerts of comprehensive meome, statements of changes in
equity and statements of cash fiows Tor each of the three vears m the period ended December 312011
and & summary of significant accounimg policies and other explanatory informauorn.

Managemen?'s Responsibility for the Consofidaied Financial Statemeni:

Management is responsible for the preparation and fay presentation of these censolidated financial
statements in accordance with Philippine Fimnancia! Reporting Standards. and for such nternal contro!
25 management determines 1§ necessary 1 enabie the preparation of consolidated fnancial statements
that are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error,

Anditers' Responsibiliny

Our responsibility 15 to express an:opiiion onthese consolidated financial statements based on our
sudits  We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards or Auditmg. Those
standards require that we comph with etiucal requirements and plan and perform the audit 1o obtain
reasonable assurance abou: whether the consolidated financia! statements are free from materiai
misstatement.

An audit nvolves performing procedurss to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disciosures
in the consolidated financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditor s judgment,
including the.assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments. the auditor considers miernal comrol
relevant to-the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consalidated financial statements in
order+to designaudit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but niot for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control An audit also includes
evaluating the:appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accountng
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the cansolidated
financial statements

Ve believe that the audit evidence we have obtamed 15 sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basts for
our audit opinlon.



Opimion

In our opinion. the consolidaied financial statemenis pre. fairiy. m all material respects. the

financiat position of GM: A Nerwork. inc. and its summ;arlw as at December 31 2011 and Z{Jl . and

t rmcxmla[ performance and thelr cash flows for each of the thres vears in the period gndec
yecember 31, 2017 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporung Standards

L)
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GChiA NETWORE. INC. AND SUBSIHPIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Decembear 31
201 2010
ASSETE
Current Asseis
Cash and cash equivaients (Notes ¢, 29 and 30 B1267,976,123 R}

Trade and other recervablos (Notes 7. 19,29 and 3{)
Program and other rights {Note 8§
Prepaid expenses and other current assets {MNote 91

Asser classified az held for sale (Note 111

4. 191,137,923
729,994,151
695.040,55¢
26,432,472

Total Current Assets

6. 850,585,228

Moncurrent Assefs

Available-for-sale financial assets (Nowes 10, 29 and 30}
Investments and advances {Notes 11 and 19

Property and equipment at cost (Note 12]

Land &t revalued amounts {Note 13}

165,796,848
320,504,726
3,252 882 543
L 409,585,706

nvestment properties (Note 144 68,025,711
Tieferrad tax assers {Notwe 27: 246,344 803
Other noncuarrent assets (Note 15} 134,406,627
Total Noncurren: Assels 5,531,251.9358 3.114,497
BT 381837186 B2 (42.103

LIABILITIES ARD EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade pavables arl other current habilives
{Notes 16, 19. 29 anc 30
income tax pavabie
Obiigations for program and-other rights (Notes 17. 2% anc 30
Dividends pavable (Notes 28 and 301

Total Currentlaabiiines 1.8%;{}(}1.46{1 z14
Nopcurrent k :abzistrs~
Penston Hability (Note 2 312,970,846
Drieferred tax babiliues (Noaa 27} 347.426,327

TFotal Noncurrent Liabilies 664,397,173

Total Liahilities

1,554,398.633

Eguity

Capital stocle (Note 18)

Additional paui 1 capital (Note 13

Revaluation increment in langd - net of tax (Note 131

Net unrealized gam on available-for-sale financial
assets (Note 10}

Retained earnings (Note 18}

4,864,652,000
1,659,035,1%
744,158,022

2,752,687
2891073835

Treasury stock (Notes 18 and 28} (25,483,171} (28,
Underlving shares of the acquired Philippine Deposit
Receipts (Notes 18 and 28) (4,796.016! (3.796.016)
9.827.438,353 (5.29%.632 478

Total Equity

£12,381.837.186

21304

2.195.983

See accompaning Notes to Consolidmed Finamoial Satements.



GViA NETWORK., INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years boded December 32

4]

2051 2010 JO

NET REVENUES (Note 20 B11,157.043.538 #]1201215

PRODUCTION COETE (Nowe 21 5. 164.966,89% 4593221701 4290354510

GROSS PROFTT &.052.676.64¢ 74219152715 720152 455

GENERAL ANT ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPEMSES (Note 221 3.87¢.277.659 3.732.554.234 3431060 170

OTHER INCOME
Interest mcome {Note 6] 28,567.427 77231
Trerest expense and financing charges on

short-term loans (11,479,254} {3,785.282) (8,904,803
Fguity in net earmngs {losses) of associaes anc

37755020

joint ventures (Note 11! 5819388 6.867.724 78,071
Oniers - pet (Note 241 51.083.87¢ 24 545162 244 160
] 7391395 104 849.207 gO.T1Z.31%

S

INCOME BEFORT INCOME T4% 2.245.996,37¢ 3.794.210.688 2,836,895 598

PROVISION FOR IRCOME TAX (Now 27
Current 557,448,374 966402642 1026777 448
Dxeferrec {26.596,367 £.580.893 {6.132.638)

536.832.007 975,383,633 1.020.644. 794

NET INCOME (715138377 2.820.827.053  2.818.250.80¢

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (LOSS!
Unrealized gain (loss) on.avaiiable-for-sale
financial assets - net of tax (Note 103 757006 (173,500 327816

TOTFAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 21715895372 BY £20.651.555 B2 818.578.627

Basie/Diluted: Earnings Per Share (Note 28} 2353 PL5SEG 2 580

Soe aecompamans Notes o Gonsolidaied Financia! Siaremants.
7 - o



Givia NETWORK, INC, AN SUBSTDIARITES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN mm@..m: 'y

Capital Yiock
Mot 18)

Addditioack Paid-
in Capiiad
(Mote 18)

ftevaduatios
Laveement in

band - Mot of Tax

(Mute 13)

Neb Unreatized
Gaiw on
Availablie-fur-sale
Fingncial Assels

(WNote 10y

feraned
fuas by
{Nuie 18)

Ureasury Sluck
(Moies 18 and 28)

Lidenlying
Shies of the
Avguired
Philigpine
Breposit Reveipts
(Moles 18 and 28)

Total Lyuity

Rutunces ul Jun

PEA6LE02000 #1639 035,196 2744158022 £1,995,687 £3.063.024,760 ($28,483,171) (83,790,016} B10,298,632,478
Net incoms L 1718,138,372 - 1.715.138,372
Otlier gomipr E B 757 K — — 737,08
Total comprehensive come - - . 737,400 §,715,138,372 - §,7E5,895 372
,n_r_u,r dividends - £043 g share - - - - 12,187089,297) - — {2,187.089,297)
Balances at December 31 2011 e #£4.864.692,000 £1,639.035,196 T4 158 622 22 752,687 £2.391,073,833 (228,483,171) (23,790,616}  £9,837.138 553
alavees al January | 20140 B4 864,092.000  #1039033.1% 744,138 032 PLITLIBT 3644336613 (E28483 171} {3 T I0)  BIUSA0 1Y B3

et incoie - - 2820827633 = 2820827053
Cfier comprehensive mcome {173.500) - - 175,300;
Total comprehensive inco - (175.500) 2820827053 - 2.820.631,333
Cash dividends - B0 45 & shace - - (2,187,089 297} - (2.187,085.297)
Cash dividends - #0235 a siaie - {1,215 .0:49.609) {1,215 049,060

- {3 402 138 906) {3 402 138 00s)
Balances at December 31, 2010 £1,659.033 196 Bl 9493 687 B3 063024760 (28 4831715 (RSTS0016)  BI0298 A3 ATS

B4 864,692 000

B4 BH,602 000 Blas) 547,885 21,843 308 #2527 155,258 {B28 4833471} {3 790 016} B9 755 123,346

. ~ 2818256808 2818230 808

mprehensi i 32781 - 327 814

Taal comprehensive o ] - - - 327819 2818230808 2818378627

Cash dividends - 2033

Colleution of subscriplois 1ecelvabic

7A87 311

{1701.069.45%)

{1.701.069 433}
7487311

7.487.311

(1701 D60 453)

1 693,382,142

Ralances ut December 31, 2000

24 804,692 0

#1,639035.196

B744.158 022

B2.171.187

23 644 336,613

(P28.483.171)

(125, 790.016)

140,880,119 831

See acconyanying Netes 10 Consolidated Financial Staténionts.



GWid NETWORK, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended Decomber 31
Z8ET 2010 2004
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax F1.245.996,37¢  BY 794210688 B3 §38 89558

Nor-cash adjustments o reconcile meome before
meome tax to net cash flows

Depreciauon and amoritzation (Notes 12 and 14

Interest meome {(Nowe O}
Amoruzation of software costs {Noie 15
Ga on sake of pronerr\ and squipmen: {Note 2
interest expense and fingncing charges of
shori-term loans
Eqguity in net osses (eamings) of associates anc
tomt ventures (Note 11)
Reversal of impairment loss in buildings and
mmprovements (Note 14)
Net unreaiized foreign cwrency exchange 1083
{gamn)
Dividend income (Note 241
Orther noncash expenses
Discount on tax credit certificates (Nawe 24}
Working capial adjustments
Diccreases (noreases? in
Shore-term mvestments
Trade and other receivables
Program and other nghts
Prepaid expenses and ofier CurTent.assets
Increases (decreases) nu
Trade pavables and other current habiines
Objigatiens for program and other rigits

5,019,389

(£.950.21%)

(63,717,540
{37.121,513)

506965,

{6,867.724)

=3
Ly e TN
o

~J e W

te.
(2.

ooy GO0

s
=
£
=l
13

234603512

(224 7405370
G2 102 818

(217.511.262

s-i GQ@ 487'3

35G.820.041
(47,250,815}

Pension jabiliny 66.329.833 (2 {8.300.036;
Cash generared from operations 3,786,543,577  3.754, 3.894 998.203
Interest received 28754, 764 &0 56.294.52]

Income taxespaid

(704,981,062

(1.126.833.511

Net cash flows from operating activines

3.304.317.27¢

2822439615

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acguisitions of
Property andequipment (Note 12
Software:costs {Note 15)
Land at revalued amounts {Noie 13}
Investment properties (Note 14}
Availabie-for-sale financial assets
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Drecrease (increase) m other noncurrent assets
Cash dividends recetved

Collection of advances to associates and jomnt ventures

{Note 11)

(903,454,640
{34,675, 134)71
{(}"469\2‘9},‘
(2,813,163}

23.675.168

(12.062,207)
1.438.83¢

31

(250,000,
9 \30 ﬁs(>
G6.989.47]

11,395

56.281.531
59.79

(609232207
{13.611.584}

(79.018)
(7.890.201)
37.309 485
¢G. 760895}

822586

Net cash flows used In investing activities

{934.357,249)

{Z 7.979;

(602 441.848)

(Forward}




Y pars Eanded December 31

2011

2080

2004

FINANCING AT
Baviments of
Cash dividends (Mot 181
Short-term loans
- Interest and financing charges
Proceeds from availments of shori-term toans
Coliecuon of subscriptions recervable

(22.187.640,052)

(956.000.,000)

(11.479,294)
958,004,006

(B3 400.013.834;
{300.000.0003

G o e,
(2785282

300,600,066

{8],699 260199
(500000 ()
(8.904 803,
S 0G6.000
7467311

Net cash flows used m financing activinies

94,118.34

=3

ol

{3.403.7909.116)

(1900.683.001)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH ROUIVALENTS

LEFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES
OFN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH ANTr CASH BROUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

(939,911 .565;

2200183 818

1.686.107.116

CASH ANWD CASH BOUIVALENTS
AT ENE OF YVEAR

21207976123

#1.3532.351.840

BZ 200 193818

Sev gecompanying Notes 1o

Cansolidated Financial Stotements,



GMA NETWORK. INC. AND SUBSHDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporats information

(3MiA Network, Inc tthe Parent Company} and s subsidiaries (collecuvely referred 10 a8

“the Group”; are ingorporaied i the Philippines. The Group is primardy mvolved m the business
of radic and elevision broadeasting. The Group is also mvolved 1n film production and other
information and entertainment-related businesses. The registered office address of theParen:
Company 15 GMA Network Center, Timog Avenue corner EDSA. Quezon Criy. The Parent
Company was registered with the Securities Exchange Commussion { SEC) ondunc 14 1950

The Parer: Company's shares of stock are publichy listed and traded v the Philippine Stock
Ixchange.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group swere approved and authorized
for issue in accordance with a resotution of the Board of Directors {(BOD) on March 28 2012

Kasis of Preparation, Changes in Aceountipg Policies and Disclosures, and Basis of
Consolidation

Basis of Preparauon

The accompanving consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prenared i
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) PFRE also includes Philiopine
Accounting Standards (PAS} and interpretanions of Internationa: Fmancial Reporung
Interpretations Commitiee (IFRIC) issued by the Phulippine Fmanciai Reporting Standards
Louncit

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on @ historical cost basts, except for
availabie~for-sais (AFS) financial assets and fand used n operations. which are measured ar farr
vaiue. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso. whieh 1s the Parent
Company’'s functienal and presentation currency under PFRS  All values are rounded to the
nearest peso. except when otherwise indicated

Chanees:in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounung policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial vear. except for
sthe following new and amended PFRSs and Philippine Interpretations which were adopted stariing
Januarv 1, 2011

v PAS 24 (Amended), Related Party Disclosures effective for annual periods beginning on of
after January |, 2011

v PAS 32 (Amendment}, Financial Instruments: Fresentation - Classification of Rights Issues,

effective for annual periods beginning on or afier February 1. 2010

¢ Philippine Imterpretation IFRIC 14, Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requivement
(Amendmen;. effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1. 2011

= Philippine interpretation IFRIC 19, Extinguishing Financigl Liokilites with Equin
Instruments, effective for annual periods begmmng on or afier July 1. 20106




£ lmprovements to PFRSs (1ssued 20103

Improvements ic PFRSs (tssued 2076/, Improvements to PFREs, an omnibus of amendments o
standards, deal primariiy with & view to removiag nconsistencies and clarifving wording, There
are separate rransiional provisions for each standard '

¢ PFRES 3 Business Combinations - Measeremen: options available for non-controlling tnierest

= DERS 3 {as revised in 2008 ). Business Combinarions - Contingem consideration arising from
business combmamn prior (o agoptien of PFRS 3

e PERS 2, Business Combmanons - Un-replaced and volumtarily replaced share-based pavment
awards PFRE 3, Busmess Combinations

v PERS 7. Financia! Insmruments - Disclosures

®  PAS | Preseniation of Financial Staternents

e PAS 27 Consolidoed and Separate Financial Siatemenis
e PAS 34 futerpm Financial Statements

The adoption of the above mterpretations and amendments and improvements to PFRSs did not
have a significant 1mpact on the consoiidated financial statements

Standards lssued but not vet Effectve

Standards issuad but no ver effective up o the date of 1ssuance of the consolidated financial
statements are lisied below. The Group intends.to adopt these standards when these become
effective. Except as otherwise mdicated, the Group does not expect the adaption of these new anc
amended standards and interpretations to-have significant impact on 1ts consolidated financia;
statements

v PAS 1 Finarcial Staiement Presentation - Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive
Income - The amendments to PAS | changed the grouping of nerms presented 1o other
comprehensive income. ltems that could be reclassified (or “recveied”) to profit of loss ata
{uture point m-ame (for example. upon derecognition or settiement! would be presentec
separa{e&y from ftems that will never be reciassified. The amendment affects presentation
oniy.and has-therefore no impact on the conscliidated financial position of performance. The
arnendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning en or after July 1. 2012

®  PAS 12, Income Taxes - Recoverv of Underlving Assets - The amendment clarified the
determination of deferred tax on investment property measured at fair value  The amendment
introduces a rebuttable presumption that deferred tax on investment property measured using
the fair vajue model in PAS 40, Investment Property, should be determined on the basis that
its carrving amount wil be recovered through sale. Furthermore. 1t introduces the requirement
that deferred tax on non-depreciable assets that are measured using the revaluation mode! In
PAS 16 always be measured on a sale basis of the assel. The amendment becomes effective
for annual perieds beginmng on or after January 1. 2012

= DAS 19, Emplovee Benefits {Amendment/ - Amendments to PAS 19 range from fundamental
changes such as removing the corridor mechanism and the concent of expecied retuins on plan
assets 1o simple ciarifications and re-wording  The Group is currently assessing the impact of



ot

the amendment 10 PAS 19 The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1. 20! 3 -
BAS Z,A S&ym are Financial Szmrfmem' fas revised 1 2071 - As a consequence of the new

SRR 10, Consolidmed Financia! Stoternenis. and PERS 12 Disclosure q}”js-nere.;zs i Oiner
Ensiries, what remains of PAS 27 w limized w sccouniing for subsidiaries, jomntly comtroiied
entinies, and associales In separate financial statements. The amendment becomes effsctive
for annual periods begmuing on or after lanuary 1, 2015

DAL 28 Investments in Associates and Joint emm‘m m revised in 20117 - As & consequence
of the new PYRS 11, Joinr Arrangemenzs. and PTRS 12, PAS 26 has been renamed PAS 26
Ivesments in Associates and Joinr Venures. and deseribes the application of the equity

athod 16 Investments 1n joint ventures in addition to associates. The amendment becomes
sffective for annual pertods beginning on or afier january [ 2015

PAS 32 Financial Instruments; Presentation - Offsefting Financial Assets.and Financial
Liabilities - These amendments to PAS 32 clarifv the meaning of “currently-has a legally
enforceable right to sei-off” and aiso clarify the application of the PAS 32 offsetung critetia to
settiement systems (such as central clearing house systems ) which apply gross settlemen:
mechanisms that are not simultaneous.  While the amendment 15 expected not 1o have any
impact on the net assets of the Group. any changes in-offsetting is expected w mmpact leverage
ratios and regulatory capital requirements. The amendments to PAS 32 are 1o be
retrospectively apphied for annual periods beginning on or afier January 1, 2014,

DERS 7. Financial insmuments: Disclosures - Enhanced Derecogmiion Disclosure
Reguirements - The amendment requires additional disciosure about financial assets that hiave
een transierred but not derecognized 16 enabie the user of the financial staternents w
understand the refationshp with those asserts that have not been derecogmzed and theyr
associated Liabiities. In addition. the.amendmen: requires disclosures about contmung
involvement in derecognized.assets 1o etiabie the user to evaluate the nature of. and risks
associated with. the entity’s continuing involvement in those derecognized assets. The
amendment becomes effective for armual penods begmnng on or after July 1. 2011

PRRS 7. Fimancial lnsuument: Disciosures - Offseting Financial Assets and Financia!
Liabilities - These amendments require an entity to disclose information about rights of sei-off
and related arrangements {such as collateral agreements). The new disclosures are required
for dll recognized financial instruments that are sei-off 1n accordance with PAS 32, These
disclosures also.apply to recognized financial INSHEnents that are subject to an enforceabie
master netiing arrangement oF “similar agreement”, irrespective of I whether thev are set-off 1n
accordance with PAS 32, The amendments require entities to disclose, in 2 tabular format
anless another format is more appropriate the following minimum quantitative informaton
This is presented separately for financial assets and financial lrabilities recognized at the end
of the reporting period:

The gross amounts of those recognized financial assets and recogmzed financial hiabilmies:
The amounts that are sei-off i accordance with the criteria in PAS 32 when agetermuining:
the net amourss presented in the statement of financial posmon:

The net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;

d The amounts subject to an enforceable master netling arrangement or sImiar agreement
that are not atherwise mcluded 1 (b} above. meluding

)

o«




Amounts ralated 10 ree O“fll,{,ﬁ’,{‘ Tinanciai mstruments tha do not meet Soms 67 ali of
the offsetting criteria m PAS 32 and
i Amounts related 1o financial cohatera% {ncluding cash coliateralj: and

& The ner amoum after deducting the amounts 1 (4} fTom he amMounts in (i above

The amendments o PFRS 7 are 1o be retrospecuvely appliad for annual periods beginnuing on
gr atter January 1. 2013

DERS Y. Fimancial instruments. Classification and Measwement - PFRS ¢ as issued refiects
the first phase on the replacement of PAS 39 and applies to classification and measurement of
Tinancial assets and fmancial babilities as defined in PAS 35, In subseguent phases, hedge
accourting and imparment of financial assets will be addressed witn the compieuon of this
project expected 1n 2012, The adopuon of the first phase of PFRS 9 will not have an effect on
the classification and measarement of the Group’s financial assets. and financial Liahilies
The Group will guantify the effect in comunctéon with the other phases ‘when 1ssued. to
present a comprehensive picture. The standard 15 effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1. 26135,

PERS 10, Consolidared Fmomcial Statemenzs - PFRS 18 replaces the portion of PAS 27,
Consolidared and Separate Financia! Statements, winch addressss the accounung for
consolidated financial statements it aiso inciudes the issues raised 1 SIC-120 Consolidarion -
Special Purpose Entfies. PFRS 10 establishes a single comrol model that appiies o all
entwies including special purpose entities, The changes miroduced by PFRS 10 will require
management to exercise significan: judgment (o determine which entities are controlied, and
therefore. are required o be consolidated by a parent. compared with (he requirements that
were 1n PAS This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2013 '

DERS |1, Joini Arrangemenis - PFRS 11 replaces PAS 31, Jmerests w Jont Ventures, and
SICa13 Jointh-comrolled Entities - Nown-monetary Contributions by Venturers PFRS 1]
removes the option 10 account for jomntiv contolied entities using proportionate consolidaton.

iead, jointly-controlled entities that meet the definttion of a joint venture must be accounied
for using the-equity method. This standard becames effective for annual periods beginning on
ar after January 1. 2013

PFRS 12. Disclosure of Imerests in Other Entities - PFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures
that were previoush included in PAS 27 related o consolidated financial statements, as well
as:all ofthe disclosures that were previously included in FAS 31 and PAS 28 These
disclosures relate 1o an entity s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities A number of new dischosures are also required. This standard becomes
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1. 2015,

1A

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measuremen! - PFRS 13 estabiishes & single source of guidance under
PFRS for all fair value measurements. PFRS 13 does not change when an enuty 1s required 1o
use fair value, but rather provides guidance on }';ov\- to measure fair vaiue under PFRS when
fair value s required or permitted. This standard becomes effective for annual periods
begmning on or after January 1. 2013,

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements jor the Consiruction of Real Estate - This
interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directhy or through subcontractors. The interpretation



requires that revenue o comstruction of real estate be recognized onby upon compienion.
excepl when such conwact qualifies as copstrucyon conract o be accounted for under

PAL 11 Construction Comracty. or mvoives rendering of services In which cass revenue 1s
recognized basec on stage of comptenorn. Comtracts mvolving provision of services with the
construction materials and where the risks and reward of ownership are ransferred 1o the
buver on 2 continuous basis will aise be accounted for based on stage of compienor. The

SEC and the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council have deferred the effectivity of
this mrerprezavion until the final Reverue standard is 1ssued by International Accounung
Standards Board and an evaluation of the requirements of tie final Revenue standard aga
the practices of e Prulppine real estate industry 18 completed.

= Philippine imerpretanion IFRIC 20, Spuppmg Costs i the Production Phase of a Surface
Mine - This interpreiation applies 1o waste removal costs that are meurred in surface mining
activity during the production phase of the nune (“production stripping costs”] and-provides
guidance on the recogniiion of produciion siTIppIng CoSLS a5 an assel and measuremers of the
stripping activity asset. This merpretation becomes effective for annual periods beginmng or
or after Jarmary 1, 2013

Basis of Conschidation
The consolidated financial stalements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Compaity
and its subsidiaries as at December 31 2011

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date-o) acguisition. being the date on which the Group
obtaing contol, and continue 1o be consolidated until the aate wihen such conirol ceases. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent
Company | Using Consistent accounting policies  All intra~groun balances. wransactions, unrealized
gams and iosses resulung fronl ntra-group transactions and dividends are elimunated n full

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary. without a loss of controi, 1s accounted for as an
equity transactior. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary. it

v Derecognizes the assets {including goodwill) and habilities of the subsidiary

= Derecognizes the carrying amourt of anv non-controliing iterest

¢ Derecognizes the cumulative transiaton differences recorded n equity

& Recognizes the far valuge of the consideration received

v Recognizes thefair value of any investment retainec

+  Recognizes anv surpius or deficit m profit or 1088

£ Reclassifies the Parer: Company’s share of components previously recognized 1n other
comprehensive income to profil or 1085 or retamed earnings. as appropriate.

The consolidated financial statements inciude the accounts of the Parent Company and the
following subsidiaries as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, which are all incorporated m the
Philippines:

Percentage
Principal AcUviites of Ownership
Emtertainment Business:
Alta Preductions Group. Inc. {Alia; Pre- and post-production services 10¢
Citwnet Network Marketmg and Productions.

Inc {Citvnel) Television entertatnment produchion 1K
GMA Network Films, Inc Fiim production 100
GMA New Media_ inc. (GNMID Convergmng Technology 160
GMA Worldwide (Philippines). Inc imernational marketing. handiing foreign

PFOETam acquisitions and W30



.-

Percentags

Prmcipat Activiues of Crwnership

mnternational svndicanon of the
Parent Company's programs
ROGMA Markeung and Proguctions. Inc

{GMA Records: Music recording, publishing and video
distnbusion 10t
Scenarios. lno (Seenarios [esigr. construction and malnenance ¢f
sets for TV, stage plays and conceris FOG
Scnipt2010, Ing. (Senp2O10y* Design. construciion and mamienance of
sets for TV, stage plays and concerts HOG

Advertismg Business:
GMA Marketing & Productions. Inc. (GMPL Bxclusive markeung and sales arm of
GMA s amrtime. 10
Digify. Inc. (Digify?*¥ Crafting, planning and handiing
adverusing and other forms of
promotion including multi-media

proguctions 1o
Others:
MediaMerge Corporation™® Business devetopment and operations for
the Parent Company's enline
publishing/advertising mitiateves H
MNinga Graphics, e (Nimga)™** Ceased commercial operations i 2001 3

ropertinas i 2000

incorporation and Acquisition of Subsidiariss
in October 201 1. the Group. through GNML. paid in cash a total of #3213 million for the 100%

capital subscription of Digify ssued and outstanding shares. Digify was registered with the SEC
ot: December 26, 2011

On January 1, 2010, the Group, through Crtvner. acquured 100% of the 1ssued and outstanding

~

shares of Scrpt2010 (formerly Capitalex Holdmgs. Inc.) for a total cash constderatian of
B 07 miltion whichis equal to the fatr value of net assets acquired at acquisiiion date

L2

Summary of Significan? Accounting Policies

Cash and:Cash Equivalents
Cash ang cash equivalents i the statements of financtal position comprise cash on hand and in
banks and shori-term deposits with maturities of three (3) months or less.

Financial Assets

Initiai Recognition and Measuremen: Financial assets withmn the scope of PAS 39 are classiflec
as financial assets at fair value through profiz or foss (FVPL), loans and receivables. held-to-
maturity (HTM} investments, AFS financial assets. or as derrvauves designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedee, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of 1ts
financial assets at initial recognsion.

A1l financial assets are recognized inttially at fair value pius transaction costs, except i the case
of financial assets recorded at FVPL.



Purchases or sales of financial assets that require dehvery of assets withun @ time frame estebhshec
by regutation or convention in the market piace (regutar way wrades| are recognized on the wade
date. i e, the date that the Group commits 1o purchase or sell the assel

The Group's financial assets include cash and cash equivalents. Wade anc nonirade recevabies
{exciuding advances w suppliers). refundable deposits included under “Other noncurrent assets’

As 3l December 21. 2011 and 2010, the Group did not have any financial assel at FVPLUHTM

investments, and derivaiives designated as hedging mstruments.

“Derv |~ Profir or Loss. Where the ransaction price & different from the fair value of other
observable current market wapsactions in the same Instrument or based ot & valuation techmgue
whose variabies mclude only data from observable marker. the Group recognizes the difference
hetween the transaction price and fair value of the financial instruments (2Day 17 profit or loss!
in profit or loss uniess it gualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. in cases where data
which 15 not observabie is used. the difference between the transaction price and mode!l value is
oniv recognized in profii or joss wher the inputs become observabie.or when the mstrument 5
derecognized. For sach transaction. the Group determines the appropriate mmethod of recognizing
the “Trav 17 profic or loss amount.

Subsequent Measuremeni. The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on ther
ciassification as described below”

¢ Loans and receivabies  Loans and receivables are non-dervative financial assets with fxed of
determinabie pavments that are not guoted i an actve markes After Initial measurement,
such financial assets are subseauently measured at amortized cost using the effective uerest
method. less impairment. Amortized cost s calculated by taking into account any discount of
premium on acquisition and fees or costs thiat are an miegrai part of the effective mierest rate.
The effective imterest amortization is inciuded m interest income in profit or foss The josses
arising from impawment are recognized 1n profit or joss n mterest expense for loans and m
production cost for recervabies

¢ AFS financial assets AFS financial assets include equity mvestments. Equity mvesiments
classified as AFS are those that are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at
FVPL

Afeer initial measurement. AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealized gains or losses recognized as other comprehiensive meome in the “Unrealized gain
o AFS financial assets” account until the investmen is derecognized. ar which time the
cumulative gain or ioss is recognized in other income, or the mvestment 15 determined to be
impaired. when the cumulative gain or loss 1s reclassified from the “Urnrealized gam on AFS
financial assets” account o prafit or 10ss m interest expense.

AFS equity invesiments whose farr value cannot be reitably measured are measured at cost
less anv impairment. If a reliable measure of fair value subseguently becomes availabie, the
asser is remeasured at that fair value, and the gain or loss recognized m other comprehensive
income (provided # 1s not impaired) 1f & reliable measure ceases to be available. the AFS
equity investment is thereafier measured at cost, which is deemed to be the fair value on that
date. Any gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive mcome shall remain 1o
equity until the asset has been solc. otherwise disposed of or imparred, at which time 1t is
reclassifled to profit or loss




The Group evaluates whether the ability and umention 1o sell 1ws AFS financial assels m e
near term 1s stili appropriate. When. m rare circumstances. the Group is unabie o wade these
financial assets dus 1o inactive markets and management’s miention ic do so sigmmficanis
changes in the foresesable fumre, the Group may eiect 10 reciassiiy these financie! assets
Reclassification o loans and receivables 1o permiltted when the financial assets meet the
definmon of loans and receivables and the Group has the inrent and abi; ity 10 hold these assets
for the foresecabie future or until maturin. Reclassification to the HTM category 15 permitied
only when the entity has the ability and mtention 1o hold the ﬂnang,ia} asset accordmghy

tor a financial asset reclassified from the AFS category. the falr value carrving amouns at the
date of reclassification becomes 1ts neve amortized cost and any previous gém or loss on the
asset that has been recognized i equity iz amortized 1o profit or loss over the remainng lire of
the inpvestmen: using the effective mierest rate. Any difierence between the new amortized
cost ang the maturity amount 15 also amortized over the rerpaming Life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. 1 the asset is subisequentiy determined to be imparred. then the amoeun
recarded in equity iz reclassified o profd or loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets. A financial asset (or. where applicable, a pari of a fmancial
asset or part of 2 group of simular financial assets) 15 derecognized when!

v The righis w receive cash flows from the asset have exprred; or

¢ The Group has transferred its vights 1o receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
oblization 1o pay the recerved cash flows in full withour matersal delay o a therd party under &
“pass-through™ arrangement. or

= Tither (a} the Group has wansferred substantalty all the risics and rewards of " the asset.
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substanialiy all the risks and rewards of the
asset. but hize transferred control of the asset

When the Group has transferred 1ts rights 1o receive cash flows from an asset or has entered mio &
pass-through arrangement. 1t evaluates If and to what extent 1t has retained the nisks and rewards of
ownership. When it'has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the Tisks and rewards
of the asser, portransferred control of the asser. the asser is recognized to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement 1o the asset. In that case, the Group aiso recognizes an associated ftabiim
The transferred.asset and the associated liabilnty are measured on & basis that reflects the nights anc
obligations that the-Group has retaned

Continwng anvolvement that takes the form of 2 guarantee over the wransferred asset 15 measured
at the lower of the original carrving amount of the asset and the maxumum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required 1o repay.

Impairment of Financial Assets. The Group assesses. al each reporting ])C"EOO. whether there 13
anv objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is mpatred. A financial
asset or & group of financial assets 15 deemed to be impaired if, and only (f, there 15 objective
evidence of imparment as a result of one or more eveits that has occurred after the imitial
recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event bas an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably esumated  Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or 2 group of
debrors 1s experiencing significant financial difficulty. default or defquency 10 nterest of
principal payments. the probability that thev wiil enier bankruptey or other financial
reorganization and when observable datz indicate that there is a measur able decrease In the



estimated future cash flows. such as changss in arrears or cconomic condions that correlare with
defaulis

©  Financial assets carred al amorzed cost. Fov ﬁﬂ'd”l(;ﬁ ! assels carmied ar amoriized cost. the
Grour first assesses wnether objective evidence of Impairment exisis individuall financial
assets that are indrvidualiv significant. or coliecuvely for finangial assets that are non
individualiv significant I the Group devermines that no objective evidence of Impalrment
exists for an individually assessed financial assel. whether significant or not, it inciudes the
assel 0 & group of financial assets with simitar credit risk characteristics and coltectively
assesses them for impatrmens. Assets that are mdividually assessed for nmpairment and for
wiich an impatrment loss IS, 07 CORUNUES (¢ DE. recogiized are not included 1 & collective
assessment of rmpairment If there is obiective evidence that an tmparment 1oss has peen
incurred. the amount of the loss 1 measured as the difference berween the asset’s carying
amount and the presen: vaiue of estimated futare cash flows (cxcludm‘f future expected credi
iosses that have not vet been incurred;. The present value of the eqnmalﬂd finure cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effectve inerest rate, [7 a loanhas & varable
interest rate. the discourt rate for measuring any imparment joss is the current effecuve
ingerest rate

The carrving amount of the asset 1s reduced through the use ol an allowance accoum and the
amourt of the loss 15 recognized i profit or loss. Interest mcome conumues 1o be Accrued on
the reduced carrving ameount and 15 acerued using the rate of interest used 1o discount the
fnure cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impatrment loss. The accrued interest is
shown under mterest income 1 prof or less. Loans together with the associated allowance

are written: off when there is no realisne prospect of future recovery and all collateral has beep
realized or has been ransferred wihe Group I wa SUD&.GQUGI} vear, the amourtt of the
estimated impatrment loss increases or decreases because of an event oceurring atter t‘nf"
Impairment was recognized. the previously recognized impairmien loss 15 increased of Teduced
b adjusung the allowance account. ‘It a future wiite- off 15 later recovered. the recovery s
credited to interest expense inprofit or togs,

= < financial assets. For AFS financial assets. the Group assesses at each reporiing pertod
wnetnu there 15 objective evidence that an mvestment or a group of INVestments 15 Impair ed.
in the case-of equity Imvestments classified as AFS. objectzve evidence would inciude &
significant or m’olonoed decline m the farr value of the investmennt below 1ts cost
“Sigmficant” 15 evaluated against the original cost of the mvestment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below s original cost When there 13 evidence o
impairment. the-cumujative gam of loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost andithe current fair vatue. less anv impairment loss on that investment previousiy
recognized in profit of loss - is removed from other comprehensive income and recognized 1
profit or-loss Empdu”mem {osses on equiry investments are not reversed through profit or loss.
increases in theyr fair value after impairmen: are recogmized directly 1n other comprehensive
Income.

Financial Liahilmes

Initial Recognition and Measuremeni. Fmancial habilities within the scope of PAS 30 are
classified as financial iiabilities at FVPL. loans and Do110w11105 or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge. as appr oprigte. The Group determines the
classification of us financial hiabiliies at imual recognmon.



A1 financial liabiiities are recognized minaliv an far value plus. m the case of icans and
borrowings. directiv attributable transaction costs

The Groun s financial liabiimies include trade pavabies and other current habilmies (excludin
pavabis 1o g(wemmem agencies: obilgations for program and otber nights and dividends p;.faaw'ie

As at December 31. 2011 and 201¢. the Group did not have financial habilities at FVPL o
derivatives designated as hedging instrismeants

Subsequen: Measurement. After Inftial recogniuion. Interest beanng leans and borrowings are
subsequentiv measured at amoriized cos using e effective mnterest methoc. Gains and losses are
rec OUﬂl?CQ n pr oft o7 10ss when the Liabilities are der &,(}‘IHEZGCL as well as ‘U’IF’)UUD the effectve
INEErest rate amortzallon process.

Amortized cost is calcwiated by taking 11e account any discount or premium on acquisibion and
fees or costs thal are an Mmiegra part of the effective nterest rate. The effective micrest rate
amortization 1¢ included in interest expense w profit or toss

The Group’s interest-bearing short-term ioans are availed and paid within gach financial reporung
vear
Derecognition of Financial Liahilities. A Tinancial liabiity s derecognized when the obiigauon
under the Habiliy is discharged or cancelled or has expired

When an exdsung financial habiliv 15 replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an exisung babiiny are substantialiy modified. such an exchange
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of & new
liabilitv. The difference in the respective Carrying amounts 1 recognized i profit or loss.

Offsetung of Finaneial Instruments

Financial assets and financial Habilittes are offset and the net amount 1s reported m the
consoiidated siatements of financial positior: 1£, and only 1f there 15 a currently enforceable legal
rigitt to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a ner basis. or to realize
the assets and settis the Habilites simultaneously  This 1s not generaliv the case with master
netung agreements, therefore, the related assets and havilities are presented at gross m the
consolidated statements of financial postuion.

Fair Vaiue of Fmancial Instruments

The Tair value of financial instruments that are waded in acuve markets at each reporting period is
determined by reference 1o quoted market prices or dealer price guotations {tnd price for long
positions and ask price for short postions}, without any deduction for transaction costs. Whern
current hid.and ask prices are not availabie, the price of the most recent i ansaction provides
evidence of the current fair value as iong as there has not been a significant change in £CONOMIC
circumstances since the time of the transaction.

Yor financial instraments not traded in an active marke:, the fair value determined using
appropriate valuation technigues Such techmgues may mclude

= {Jsing recent arm’s length market wansacions,

¥ Reference to the current far value of another Instrument that 15 substanualiy the same! of
= A discounted cash flow analvsis or other vatuation models




Proeram and Other Kights

Program and other rights with finite lives are stated ai amoriized cost less any impairment 1o
valus, The cost 5 amortized on accelerated method based on the manner and pattern of usage of
the acquired rights. Programs and other nights are fully amortized on the date of expirs

Amortization expense 15 shown as program and otner rights usage

For series of rights acquired. the cost 15 char ged to meome as each series 15 ared on a per gpsode
basts

For rights imended for arng over the mterrational channels. the cost s amortized on & sraighi-
line basis over the number of vears mdicared o the contract

Program and other rights are ciassified as current assets because the Group expects 1o air any
given titie at any time within s normal operatng cvele,

Prepaid Production Costs

Prepaid production costs. included under “Prepaid expenses and other current assets” account |
the consolidated statements of financial position, represeni costs incurred prior o the airing of tn‘
programs of episodes. These costs includs talernt fees of arusts and production siaff and other
costs directly attribuiable o production of programs These are charged 10 expense upon awing of
the related program or episodes Costs refated 1o previoushy taped episodes determined not 10 be
aired are charged 1o expense

Maierials and Supplies Inventery

Materials and suppiies mvermory. mciud”d under “Drcpajd expenses and other current assets”
account in the consolidated statements of financial position. 1@ stated at the lower of cost or net
realizable value, Cost is determined using the first-in, firsi-out method. Nert realizable vaiue 15 the
currer replacement cost

Tax Credus

Tax credits represent ciaims from the government arising from arng of governmen commercials
and advertisements availed under Presidential Decree (PI}) No. 1362, Pursuant to PD No 362,
these Wl b“ CO“E,CECCE U’l the }Of}ﬂ of tax credits \\fhl IJ '{“l’l"’ (T?OL[‘D Cafl use m E‘El\flilf' !Ol H’ﬁﬂ(}‘
duties and taxes.on imported broadeasting related equipment. The tax ucdm cannot be used 1o
pav for any othertax obligation 1o the government  Tax cradits are classified as current assets if
these are expected o be utilized within 12 months from reporting period. Otnerwise, these are

classified as noncurrent.assets

AsserClassified as Held for Salg

Asset ciassifiedas held for sale 1s measured at the lower of its carrving amount and far vaiue less
costsio ssli. An asset is classified as held for sale if s carryving amount will be recovered
orincipally through o sate wansaction rather than through continumg use. Thus condition 1s
regarded as met only when the sale 15 highly propable and the asset or disposal group s avaitable
for immediate sale m its present condition. Management must be commitied to the sale - winch
should be expected to qualtfy for recogmition as 2 completed sale witiun one vear from the date of

classification

Investments and Advances

Investments in Associares. This account consisis of nvestments in and permanent advances to
associates



The Group’s iInvesiments Ir 1ts associaies a1 e accounted for using the equity method. An assocmaie
15 an entity in winch the Group has significant influence.

Under the equity method. the wvestment 1 the associale 15 camied i the consolidated statements
of financial position a1 cost plus post acquistion changes 10 the Group 's share of net assers of the
associate  Goodwili relaung to the associate 15 included i the camving amourn: oF the Mvestmern
and Is neither amortized nor mdividually tesized for impanrment.

The consolidated siatements of comprehensive mcome refiect the share of the results of operations
of the associate. When there has been a change recogmized drectiv in the equity of the associaie.
the Group recognizes its share of any changes and discioses this, when applicable. 1 the
consehdated staiemenis of changes 1n equity Uinrealized gams and lesses resulting from
lransactions between the Group and the asscolate are elminated o the extent of the mterestin the
associate

The Group’s share in profit (toss) of the associates are shown on the face of the conselidared
statements of comprehensive income. which is the profit (loss) attributable to equirv holcers of the
associates

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.
Where necessary. adustments are made 10 bring the accounting poticies In line with these of the
Group.

-~

After application of the equity methed, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize
an additional impairmen 10ss on (1 invesiment 10 its associate. The Group determines at each
reporting period whether there 15 anv objective evidence that the mvestimenis i associates are
imparred 17 thus 15 the case. the Group calculates the amount of Imparment as the difference
berween the recoverable amount of the associate and s carrving value and recogmizes the amount
i the “Equity in net earnings (fosses}of associates” account in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive meoms

Upon loss of significant mfluence overthe assoctates, the Group measures and recognizes anv
refaining investments at its fajr value. Any difference between the carrving amount of the
associate upon Joss of significant inftuence and the fay value of the retained investments anc
proceeds from disposal is‘recognized 1 profit or foss.

Interests  Joint Vermures This account consisis of interests i and permanent advances 1o joint
VERTUres

The Group-has mierests i joint ventures, which are jomtly controlied entities. whereby the
veniurers have a-coniractual arrangsment that estabiishes Joint control over the econonue activiites
of the entity. The agreement requires unanimeus agreement for financial and operating decisions
among the venturers  The Group recognizes its interests i the jomnt veniures using the equity
method. The financial statements of the joins ventures are prepared for the same reporting p*"noc
as the Group. Adustments are made where necessary 1o bring the accouniing policies in line with
those of the Group.

Adjustments are made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements to eliminate the Group ¢
share of intragroup balances, transactions and unrealized gains and losses on such transactions
between the Group and its joint ventures. Losses on tr ansactions are recognized immediately if
the loss provides evidence of a reduction m the net realizabie value of current assets or an
impairment loss. The Group ceases 10 use the equity method of accounting on the date from




wiich 1t no longer has joint control over. or significanthy influence m the Jom: ventures or when
the imerests become held for sale.

Upon loss of joint control. the Group measures and recognizes 15 remammg INVestmeni at 1s fai
value  Anv difference between the carrying amourn of the former jomt controlied enuty upon ioss
of soint control and the fair value of the remaiing investment and proceeds from disposal i
recognized in profi or loss When the remaimng mvesimen: constituies significant influence. ¢ s
accounted for as ipvestmeil o an assodiate,

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. net of accumulated depreciation and amortization and
impairment losses. if any. Such cost includes the cost of repiacing part of the property anc
equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition Criveris are
met. When significant parts of property and equipment are required o be replaced at intervals. the
Group recognizes such parts as ndividual assets with specific useful iives and depreciates them
accordingly. Likewise. when a major inspection is performed. its cost 15 recognized In the
carrving amount of the property and equipment as a replacement-tf the recogmition crileria are
satisfied. All other repair and mamienance costs are recognized in profit or foss as incurred. The
present value of the expected cost for the decommussioning of an asset afier s use 15 meluded 10
the cost of the respective asse! 1f the vecognition criteria for & provision are met

Land is measured a Tar value less accumnuiated mipairment iosses, If amy. recognized after the
date of the revaluation. Valuauons are performed frequently 1 ensure that the fair value of ¢
revalued asset does not differ matenally from s carmving amount

Anv revaluation surplus 1s recorded in other comprepensive mcome and hence, credned to the
“Revaluation Incremert in tand™ account under equity. except o the extent that it reverses =
revaluation decrease of the same asset previousty recognized 1n profit or loss. In which case. the
increase is recognized in profic or loss. A revaluation defictt is recogrized in profii of loss. excent
1o the extent that it offsets an existing surpius.on the same asset recognized m the “Revaluaton
increment 1 land” account

Depreciation and amertization are computed on a straighi-line basis over the following estimated
useful lrves of the asses:

Buildmgs, towersand improvements 15-20 vears

Antenna and transmitier systems and broadcast equipment e b vears

{ommunication and mechanical equipment 3-5 vears

Transpettation equipment 3 vears
)

Turnfture. fixtures and equipment vears

An tiem of property and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from ns use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference berween the net
disposal praceeds and the carrying amount of the asset; 1s mciuded 1o profit or loss when the asset
is derecogrized.

The assets® residual vajues. useful iives and methods of depreciation are reviewsd at gach finaneial
vear-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Investment Properties
[nvestment properties consist of real estate held for capual appreciation and rental purposes.




R

Investment properties are measured mialiy at cost, mnciuding transaction costs  Subsequent
initial Tecognition, Investment properies. except lanc arc measured at cogt Jegs accumulated
depreciation and amortization and anv impalrment n vatue. Land i3 stated ai cost iess am
imparment 1n vaiue

Depreciation and amoruzation are computed usmg the strajghe-line method aver 31 - 20 vears

The remaining useful Iives and depreciation and amoruzanon method ars reviewed and adjusted.
if appropriaic, al each financial vear-end

investment properties are derecogiuzed when either they have been disposed of or when the
investmen: properties are permanentty withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from Its disposal, Any gams or losses on the retuement o disposal of an mvestmern
property are recognized m profit of Joss in the period of derecogniuion

Transfers are made 1o or from mvestmen: property oniv when there is o change m use. Fora
transfer from investment property 1o owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent
accounting is the far vaiue at the date of change  use 1T ownei-occupied property becomes an
investmen: preperty. the Group accounts for such properiv in accordance with the policy statec
under property and equipment up 1o the date of change 1 use

Invesument 1 Artworks
Investment in artworks, meluded under “Other noncurren assets” account 1 the consolidated
statements of financial position, 15 stated ai cost less any Impairment I value

Software Costs

Costs incurred 1n the acguistiion and customuzaton of new software. included unger “Uther
noncUrTent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position. are capalized and
amortized on a stralghi-line basis over three (3) to five (5} vears.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assgts

The carrying values of program and other rights, prepaid production costs, @ crediis, mvesuments
and advances, property.and equipment, investment properties and software costs are revizwed for
impairment whern events of changes i circumstances indicate that the carrying vaiugs may not be
recoverable. If any such indication exists, and if the canyving value exceeds the gstimated
recoverable amount, the assets are considered mmpared and are written down to their recoverabie
amount, The recoverabie amount of these nonfinancial assets is the greater of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s Tair vaiue less cost io sell or value 11 use and is determined for an mdividual
asset, unless the asset doss not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
ather assets or group of assets  The fair value fess cost w sell is the amount obtanable from the
sale of an asser in an arm’s-length transaction: less cost to seli In assessing value 1n use. the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present vaiue using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time vaiue of money and the risks specific 10 the asset.
For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amoust 1
determined for the cash-generating unit 1o which the asset belongs. Impairment iosses. if any. are
recogmized 1 the consolidated statements of comprehensive 1ncome 1n those expense categories
consistent with the function of the mmpaired asset

An assessment is made at each reporting pertod as o whether there is any indication that

previously recognized Impairment [osses may no jonger exist or may have decreased. If anv such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized imparrment 10ss.
except for land at revalued amount where the revaluation is taken to other comprehensive income,



s reversed oniv if there has been o change 1 (he esumates used o determine the asset s
-ecoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recogrized. If that s the case. the carrving
amount of the asset is mereased 10 1ts recoverable amount. That increased amouns cannot exceed
the carrving amount that wouid have been determined. ne: of depreciation and amoruzation had
ne Lnparment loss been recognuized 107 the asset 1n prier vears Such reversal 18 recogiized i
profit or loss. After such @ reversa.. the depreciation ang amortization charges are adiusied m
future periods to allocate the asset s revised carrving amount. less any residual valug, on a
svstematic basis over its remaining useful life. Forland at revalued amounts. the impairment 1s
also recogmzed in Other COMPrenensive IRCome up to the amour of anv previous revaiuation

is the case of investments 11 associates and interests i 1oy vemures. after apphicauon of the
equity method. the Group astermimes whether 1t I8 BECcessary 10 recognize any additiona!
impairment loss with respect io the Group s mvestments in associates and interests m joi
ventures, The Group determines at cach reporting period whether there s any ghjeciive evidence
that the invesmments in associates and MEerests m oIt ventures are mmpaired. If this 15 the case,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as being the difference between the recoverable
AMOUNT GF investments In associates and the acquisiion cost and recognizes the amount m the
censolidated statemerts of comprehensive income.

Bgury

Capital stock is measured at par value 1or all shares issued. Incremental costs meurred directiy
attributabie to the issuance of new shares are shown v equity as & deduction from proceeds. net of
. Proceeds and/or fair value of considerations recerved in excess of par value are recogiized as
agditional paic-in capital

Treasury Siock and Underlving Shares of Acqured Philippine Denost Kecempis (PDRs)

The Parent Company’s own reacquired equiTy Msiruments are deducted from equity. No gam or
loss 15 recogmized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive mcome on the purchase, saie,
issuance or cancellation of the Group’s own eguity Instruments

Dividends on Common Shares of the Barent Company

Dividends on common shares are Tecoghized as liability and deducted from equity when approved
by the shareholders of‘the Parent Lompany. Drividends for the vear that are approved after
reporting pertod are dealt with as an evem after reporting period.

Levenues
Tevenues are recognized io the extent that 1t 1s probabie that the economic benafits will fiow w the
Group and the amount can be reliablv measured, regardiess of when the pavment is bemg made
Revenues are-measured at the far value of the consideration recerved or receivable, taling o
account comtractualiy defined terms of pavment and excluding taxes o duty. The Group assesses
{ts revenue arrangements against speciflc criteria n order to determune if 1l 1s aclmng as principal ar
ageni.

irtime Revenue Revenue 1s recogmzed as mcome in the period the advertisements are awed
Such revenues are net of agency and marketing Commissions and co-preducers’ share. The fair
values of capitalizable exchange deals are included 1 airtime revenue and the related accounts.
These transactions represent advertising tiune exchanged for program materiais, merchandise or
service.

Pavments recetved before broadcast (pay pefore broadcast) are recognized as income on the dates
the advertisements are ared. Prior 1o liquidation. these are net out against accounts receivables



- 16 -

sinee a rghs of offsel exists between the pax before broadeast balance - ane the reguiar accounts
recetvable with credi erms.

Jioods recelved in exchange for alrtime usags pursuan 1o ex-deal CORracts exety ted berweer; the
Group and (e customers are recordec at marker values of assets receved Faw market vaiue
the currern market price

Tex credits on aggregale airme oredits from zovernment sales avaiied of under PL No {362 are
recogrized as incomes upon actual aring of eovernmen commercials and advernsements and
when there is reasonable certainty that these can be used 1o pay duties and taxes on tmpotied

broadcasung related eguipment

Subscripiion Income. Revenue (5 recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of
subscriplion agreemerts

Commissior. Revenue 15 1ecognized as meome on an acerual basis in accordance with the terms
of the related marketing agresments.

FRente! Income  Revenue from lease of property and equipment 15 accounied for on & straghi-line
basis over the lease term

Dividend Income. Revenue 1s recognized when the Group's ¥ right to recerve payvment s
established.

Jareresi income. Revenue is recognized as the Rerest accrues. taking mnto accouns the effective
vield on the asser

Agency and Markering Commissions and Co-nroducers” Share
These are deducted from gross revenues i profit or 1oss.

AgEncy commissions are recognized at a standard rate of 15% of revenue resognized.

Marketing commissions 1o subsidiaries and affiliates for TV or radio sales are recognized at pre-
determined rates based on revenue amaount

Share of co-producers on revenues of speci{ic programs are covered by duly authorized comracts
entered o between the Group and the co-pr oducers. The co-producers undertake the production
of such pregram nreturn for a supiated percentage of revenue,

Borrowing Gosts

Borrowing costs directiv atiribuiabie to the acquisition of construction: of an asset that n cessarily
take 2 substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as pari of
the costof the asset. All other borrowing costs are uxpeﬂaea in the pertod they occur. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity Incurs In connection with the borrowing of

fimds

Txpenses
Expenses Drespmea as “Broduction costs” and “General and administrative expenses’ Tin the
statemnents of comprehensive mcome are recogpized as incurred

Pension Bensfts
The Parent Company and one (1} of its subsidiaries have funded, noncontributory defined benefit
retirement plans covering s per mdr}em employess The cost of providing bene efits ts determined




using the projected LRl credin actuarial vaiuanen method  Acluaria gans and josses are
recognized as MCOME OF CXPENSE W hen the net cumulative unrecogmized actuarial gans and losses
for the plans at the end of the pr F'wzm reporting vear exceeded 10% of the higher of “the defined
benefi thcfation and the far vaiue of Diar assels at that date an*%ﬂ gams o iosses

recogmzed over the expecied average remaining wor kang lives of th e smplovess parucpatng
the plans.

The D&S service cosi. if any. 18 I’LLOURLZ"G as an expense on & Eldl(’i’l t-line basis over the average
ner od until the beneflis become vested. I the benefits are dl?edﬂ‘ vasted ilﬂmﬁﬁlaﬁ” fOliO\Nll’i(:
the imtreduction of. o1 hangcs T D“T}S!GF f}iai"._ past service © cost is i"‘{,{}"ﬂiZCC’ 1mmw1ar

The pension hability 13 the aggregate of the present value of the defined beneflt obliganon and
actuarial gains and tosses not recognized, reduced by past service cost not vet recognized and the
fair value of pian assets out of which the obligations are to be setiled directly. It such-aggregate i
negatrve, the asset ie measured at the lower of such aggregate or the aggregate of cumulative
unrecocmzee net acaar 1al tosses ana ma‘? Sel\’lt,“ cost and the DT"Q"H mlue Oi any emnomr
henefits avatlable 1n the form of refunds from the plans o reductions 1 the future.comtributions 1o
the plans.

1€ the asset is measured at the aggregate of cumulative unrecognized net actuanial losses and past
service cost and the present value of anv economic be nefits available m the form of refunds from
the plans or reductions in the future contributions to ih= plans, net actuarial losses of the current
period and past service COSt of the current period are recognized immedately w Lh extent that
thev exceed any reduction in the present vaiue of those economic beneflts. [ there s no chanm* or
inerease in the present value of the economic bensfits, the entire n2t actuarial losses of the current
period and past Service Cost of the current persod are recognized immediately. Stmitarly. net
actuarial sains of the current period after the deducuon of past service cost of the current periad
exceeding any INCTEase in the present value of the econonuc benefits stated above are recognized
immediatety if the assel 1s measured at the ageregate of cumulative unrecognized net actuartal
losses and past service cost and the present value of any economic benefits available m the form of
refunds from the plans or reductions in'the future contr ibutions to the pians. 1f there i no changs
or decrease i the present value of the economic benefits, the entire ne aciuarial gams of the
current period after the deducnon of past service cost of the current period are recognized
immediately

Leases

The deserminztion of whether an arrangemert is, or contains 2 lease is based or the substance 0
{he arrangernent 4t inception date, Whr:mer the fulfiliment of the arrangement is dependent on m\,
use of a specific assel or assels or the arvangemeit conveys a right to use the asset, even if that
right is notexplicitly specrfied in an arrangement

Group-as Lessee. L.eases which do not transfer to the Group substanttaliy all the risks and banefits
of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases Operating iease paymests are
recognized as expense in the consolidated statements of comprehensive meome on  straight-line
basis aver the lease term. Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, are expensed as
incurred

Group as Lessor. Leases where t the Group does not transfer supstantally all the risks and benefits
of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operaung jeases
are recognized as income in the consolidated staiements of comprehensive meome on & straighi-
line basis over the lease term.  Lnitial direct costs incurred in negotiating an oper aung iease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same
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hasis as remtal income. {ontingent rents are recogmzed as revenus w the peniod i wiuch they are
earned.

Foreton Currengyv-denonynated Transacuons
Transactions it foreten currenciss are mitialiy recorded in the functional currency exchange raic a
the date of the ransactions. Monetary assets and labilities denominated 1n Torelgn cuirencigs are
retransiated at the funcuonal currency closing exchange tate at financial reporting perioc. All
differences are taken to profil or loss In the conselidaied statememnts of comprehensive Income.
Nonmonetary irems that are measured in terms of historical cost in & foreign currency are
translated using the exchangs rates at the daves of the inmal ransactions. Nonmonetary 1Tems
measured ar fair value 1n 2 foreign currency are transiated using the exchange rates af the date
when the fair vaiue was determined  For income tax purposes. foreign exchange gains and 10sses
are treated as waxable meome or deductible expenses when realized.

Taxes

Crvent Income Tare. Current income tax assets and Liabilities for the current period are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorinies. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amoun: are those that are enacted or substantially enacied at
Feporiing Perog.

Current mcome tax relating (o ftems recognized directiv 'equity 15 FeCOZIZEd 1n equity and not
in profit or loss. Management penodicaliv evaluates positions taker i the tax returns with respec
1o situations i which appiicahle tax regulattons are subject 1o mierpretation. and gstablishes
provisions where appropriate

Deferred income Tax. Delerred income tax 1s provided using the irabilitv method on temporar
differences ai reporting period between the tax bases of assers and habilmes and then carrving
amounts Tor financial reporting purpoeses at the reporting period

Deferred tax assets are recognized Tor:all deductible temporary differences. car*vromaxd benefits
of excess minimum corporate inceme wx {MCIT) and unused net operating loss carrvoves

(NOLCO 1 to the extent that 1t 1s probabic that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temperary differences and the carrviorward benefits of excess MCIT and unusec
NOLCO can be wulized, except

e where the deferred tax asset relating 1o the deductibie temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or Hiability 1n 2 transaction that is not a business combination
and. at the time of the transaction. zme"{s }’]F‘Ith“] the accounting t}rofﬂ nor taxable o ofit; and

¢ intespect of deductibie temporary differences associated with mvestments n gubsidiaries.
associates and mterest in joint ventures. deferred tax assets are recognized onlv to the extent
that it 1s probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxabie profit will be available agamnst which the temporary differences can be utilized

The carrving amow of deferred tax asseis 1s reviewsd at each reporting peried and reduced 10 the
exctent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxabie profit will be availabie io aliow all or
part of the defe ferred tax assets o be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each reporting period and are recognized to the extent that 1t has become probable that future
taxable profiz will allow the deferr ed tax assets o he recovered

Daferred tax Liabilities are recognized for al! taxable temporary differences, except:
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v where the deferred tax liabiiiy arises from the minal recognition of goodwili of an assel o
fiabitity 1n 2 wansaction that 1s not a business combinauon and. at the time of the wansacuion.
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profic and

= inrespect of taxabie Temporary diﬁ’ereni,s: associated with mvesiments in subsidiaries
associates and INEErests 1N joint ventures . where the timing of the reversal of the wempaorary
differences can be controlied and fi & pz obable thar the temporary differences will not reverse
w the foreseeable future.

Treferred tax assets and babilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected 16 apphy 10 1he
year when the asset is realized or the hability 15 settiec. based of tax rates and tax laws to be
enacied or substanually enacted at the reporting period.

aliv enforceabie right exists to set off current

Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset g
erred taxes relate to the same taxable enmity and

tay assers against current tax habiliies and the d
the same taxation awthormy.

ifaie
.
aex

Income tax relating to other comprehensive income 1s recogmized in other.comprehensive mcoms
section of the consolidated statements of comprehensive Income.

Value-added Tox (FAT) Revenuc. SXpenses and assers are recognized net of the amount of VAT,
The net amount of VAT recoverabic from. or pavat};“ t0. the taxauon authority is meiuaed as part
c:“""Pa gpaid expenses and other CUITeIR 1 assets’ or “Trade pavabies and other currennt habiinies”
accounts in the consolidated statements of financial pesimion,

Earpines Per Share (EPS

Basic BEPS 15 computed by dividing the net income. net of iIncome atributable to preferred shares
by the weighted average number of commen shares outstanding during the year. with retroacve
adjustments for any stock dividends declared.

Diiuted EPS 15 calculated by dividing the net income (mclusive ef income attributable 1 preferred
shares) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the vear, plus the
weighted average number of common shares that would be 1ssued upon conversion of ali dilutve
potentiai common shares.

- Sgement Keporting
For management purposes, the Group s operating businesses are organized and managed
separatelvanio mrec business activities. Such business segments are the basis upon wich the
Group reports its primary segment Iformanon The Group considers teievision and radio
operations as the major business segment. The Group operates n two geographical arcas where &
deryves s revenue

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a pr“sem cbligation {isgal or construcuive! as &
result of a past event, it 1s probable that an outflow of resources embodvmv economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the rembursement s
recognized as a separate asset but only when the receipt of the reimbursement is virtually certain.



Contingencies

Conungent liabilines are not recognized m the consolidated financial statements. They are
disclosed in the notes 1o consofidated financial statements uniess the possibibiy of an outflow ¢
esources embodving economic benefits 1s remote Contingent assels are non recognized i the
consolidared financial statements r}uu are disclosed I the notes o consolidated financial
statements when an milow of economic henefis s probable

Evenis afier Reporung Pertod

Post vear-end events that provide additional miormation about the Group's position at the
reporting period {adsusting events; are refiected i the consolidared Dinancial statements. Post
vear-end events that are not adpisung events are disciosed in the notes 10 consolidated financlal
statements when material.

Sienificant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assemptions

i

The preparation of the consolidated financiaf statements requires MaNAgemMent 1o make Judgments
estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
and related notes at the end of the reporting period. However. uncestainty about these assumpuions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require 3 material adiustment 1 the carrving amount of
the asset or habilivy affected 1n future neriods.

Judegments

In the process of applving the Group s accounung policies, management has made the following
judgments, which have the mest significain effect on the amounts recognized 1n the consoiidated
financial statements.

Funcriona! Currencr. The consoiidated financial statements are presented in Philippine pese.
which 1s the Parent Company s funcuional currency. The Philippine peso ts also the functional
currency of the subsidiartes. It isithe currency of the primary economic environment i which the
{rroup operates.

Asser Classified as Held for Sale. On January 1, 2011, the Group. through: GNMI's BOD,
announced 1ts decision to dispose of 1ts saarﬁneiﬁmos in X-Plav Ommf‘ Games Incorporated
(3%-Play! & jountlv controlled entity {see Note 111 The Group assessed that the mierest i X-Piay
met the crizeria to be classified ags heid for sale at mat date for the foliowsng reasons:

e %-Plav is available for immediaie sale and can be sold to a potential buver L Its curren
condition

= (ONM!s BOD had entered mnio preimunary negotiations with a potenuial buver.

s 1P E«Games Venmures, Inc. (IPE) and GNM!I subsequentiv executed an Option Agreement
whereby GNMI was granted an option to sell its shareholdings in X-Play to [PE. which can be
exercised within a period of one (1} vear from execution date en October 19,2011

ODGI ating Leases - Group as Lessee. The Group has entered wic various lease agreements as @

essee. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that the iessars retam all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties and accounts for the contracts as eperating jeases.

Rent expense charged to operatzons amourtied to B851.93 mutbion, #737.50 milhion and
2603 40 millon in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively {see Note 26)
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Tax credits. The parent company has deterrmmed that w credits carmed from awing of
government commerf*lai% and advernsements are recognized based on the Parent Company s
forecast of importatior 1 for the next twelve { 12) months from reporting period m which the ax
credits will be appiied and when the application 18 reasonably certain

Revenue from tax credits recognized in profT o loss amounted o 267 20 millson. #8200 1 Hion
and B82 00 milion in. 2011, 2010 and 2609 | respectively

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Ligbiiiies The Group carries AFS financial assets at fair
value. which requires extensive use of accounting estimates and judgments. The significant
components of fair vaiue measurement were determined using verifiable objective evidence

(1.e., foreign exchange rates. Interest rawee. volatilit rates)  However, the timing and arsount of
changes n fair vaiuz woulc differ if the Grouyp utilized different valuation methodologies and
assumptions  Amy changes m the fai valug of AFS financial assets would affect the reported far
value of this financial asset '

The fair value of financial assets and labilitaes are enumerated n Note 30,

Estimates and Assumplions

The kev assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estrmation uncertanty ar the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causmg a material adjusimenn te the cairving
amounts of assets and Habilities withun the next financial vear. are described below. The Group
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial
Statements were prepared.  BXisung ciroumstances and assumpitons about future developments.
however. mav change dus io market changes or Crcumsiances artsing hevond the control of the
Group Such changes are e reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Estimating Aliowance jor Doubtful Accounts. Provisions are made for specific ané groups of
billed and unpilied accouns where objective evidence of impairment exists. The {iroup evajuates
shese accounts based on available facts and:circumstances that affect the col Hectibily of the
accounts The review is accomphshed using a combination of specific and collective assessment.
The factors considered in smcmc and collective impairment assessments include. but not lunited
te. the length of the Group’s relationsiip With customers. customers’ current credit status based on
third party credit.reports aﬂd knowr: market Torces, average age of accounts. coliection experience
and historical loss experience. The amount and Uming of recor ciea expenses Tor any period would
differ if the Greup made differers Juggments or utithzed differeni methodologmies. An increase i
aliowance for doubtiul accounts would merease the recorded general and adrmmstrafw exXpenses
and decregase current assets.

Provisiendor doubtful accounts amounted to ¥24 million, £30.60 million and 28,17 milhion n
2011, 2010-and 2009, respectively. Trade and other recelvables, net of aliowanco 1{)r doubtful
accouris. amounted 1o 24 191 14 milhon and 25531 97 miilion as at December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectvely {see Note 7)

Amortization of Frogram and Otirer Rights. The {roup estimates the amortization: of program and
other rights with finite iives based on the manner and pattern of usage of the acquired rights The
Group estimates that programs are more marketable in their initial airing as compared to the
succeeding airings  In addition, estimation of the amor tizatien of program and other rights 1
based on the Group s experience with such nghts. 1t1s pessﬁ)w however. that fusure results of
operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about bv changes in the
factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for anv pentod would be
affected by changes 1n these factors and CHOUMSIANCES
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Program ang other nights, net ofu"‘umu’aa{‘wi unpairment Joss. amounted 10 F730 04 mudiion and
8558 0% mitiion as ai Drecember 31, 2011 and 2010, respectiveiv (see Note &)

impairment of AFS Financial dssets. The Sroup reats APS financial assets as impared wher
there has been ¢ significant or profonged decime m the fair vaiue below s cost or where other
om“”mfe evidence of imparmen: exists. The determingtion of what i “significant” or

“prolonged” requires judgment. The Group weats “significant” generally as 20% of more of the
original cost of investmery, and “proionged’ as greater thar 12 months. in addition, the Group
evaiuates other factors, including normal volatiiitv in share price for quoted equities and the future
cash flows and the discount factors for unguoted equities

The carrving vatue of AFS financial assets amounted 1 #8105 80 million and 104 .97 million as &
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respecuvely (sge Note 10}, There were no unpaurment 10sses
recognized on AFS fmancial assets i 2011, 2010 and 2009

Estimarmg Aliowance jor Inventory Losses. The Group provides allowance for mventory 0sses
whenever the net realizable value becomes lower than cost due to damage. physteat deterioration,
obsolescence, changes m price leveis or other causes The aliowance accoum is reviewec
periodicaliv o reflect the accurare vaiuation n the fmancial records

The carrving value of materials and supplies inventory amounted #1068 96 million and
2108 92 million as a: December 31. 2011 and 2010, respecuvely (see Note 9} There were no
provisions for inventory Josses 10 201, 2016 and 24006,

Estimanng Useful Lives 0?"@‘0;71’1'21' anf’ Equipment. Software Costs and invesimen: Froperties.

The Group estimates the useful lives of property and equipment. software costs and mvesumen
properties based on the period over which the assets are expected 1o be available for use. The
estimaicd useful lives of property and EC;Ulmer}_; software costs and investment properties are
reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous esumates due 10
phvsical wear and tear. technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other lmuts on the use
of the assets. in addition. estimation ofithe useful fives of property and equipment. sofrware Cos18
and investment propﬂmes is ased on coliective assessment of industry pracuce. internal technical
evajuatton and experience with similar assets 11 15 possible, however. that future resuits of
operations could be materially affected by changes m estimates brought about by changes i the
factors mentioned above. The amounts and tming of recorded expenses for any period would be
affected by changes in these factors and circumstances A reduction n the estimared useful hves
of property and equipment, software costs and mvestment properties would merease the recorded
general and administrative expenses and decrease noncurrent assets

There has beer: no change in the Group’s estimate of usefu! iives of 1ts property and equipment.
sofeware costs and investment properties in 2011 and 2010,

Drepreciation and amortization expenses of property and equipment. software costs and investment
properties amourted to 8344 07 miflien. 2527 18 million and 2574 .35 million in 2011, 2010 and
2009, respectively (see Notes 21 and 22,

Revaluation of Land. The Group engages an independent appraiser (o determine the fair value of
the land used in operations. Falr value is determined by reference to market-based evidence. T he
air value amount would differ if the Group made different judgments and estimates o7 wilized @
different basis for determinmg fair value.
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Valuanons from an independen: appraiser are performed every three (3310 five {51 vears 1o ensure
that the far value of a revalued assei does not differ materially from 1ts carrving amount.

The revalued amount of lang amournted 1o ¥ 1 409,39 miliion and #1403 12 milbon as at
Diecember 312011 and 2014 respectively {see Note 15]

Impairmen of Nonfinancia! Assets. For prepaid production costs, tax credits, mvestments and
advances, property and equipmen., nvestment propertes and software costs, Imparment testung &
performed whenever events o changes In CIrCUMSTnces indicate that the carrving amoutt &7 an
asset may not be recoverable. The factors that the Group considers important which could wigger
an impairment review inciude the foliowing:

= significant underperformance rejative to expected historieal or projected future.operating
results.

= gignificant changes In the manner of use of the acquited assets or the swrategy for-overall
busmesg: and

e gignificant negative mdustry or £conomic rends

The Group recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrving amount Of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amoun: The recoverable amount s the greater of fav value iess costs 1o sell and the
asset’s vaiue in use  Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or if 1t 15 not
possibie. for the cash-gengrating Uit to which the assel belongs.

-

The balance of nonfinancial assets as & December 31 foliows (see Notes 9.

2011 2016

Broperty and equipment B3, 252,581,543 22 872.001.158
investments and advances 326.500.724 341.613.803
Prepaid production costs 215.404.918 198,300,805
Tax credits P18.368,267 109,034 935
Investment properiies 68,029,711 63343706
Software cosis 48,421,523 3G 437 145
B4,G17.307.682 B3 524.071.572

Estimating Realizabiinn of Deferred Tax Assets. The Group's assessment on the recognition of
deferred tax-assets on nondeductibie temporary differences and carrvforward benefits of NOLCC
and excess MCIT is based on the forecasted taxable income of the five (5} reporting periods  This

forecast 1s based on the Group’s fulure expectations o1 revenues and expenses

Deferred tax assets amounted to ¥240 335 million and B215.77 million as at December 31, 2011
and 2010, respectively (see Note 27).

Pension Benefits. The determunation of the Group's obligation and cost of pension benefits i
{ependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such amoutis.
Those assumptions are deseribed in Note 23 and include. among others. discount rate. expected
rate of return on plan assets and expecied rate of saiarv increase. In accordance with PFRS, actual
casults that differ from the assumptions are accumulatec and amortized over future pertods and,
therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligation in such future periods



Pension habiiiey amounted to #3312 97 mithion and #2352 .64 milhon as at Decemba
2070, respectively. Unrecognized ac wizrial (losses) gam amounted 10 BHO.52 mil_hon anc
#3935 mithon) as at December 312011 and 2010 respectively {ses Notwe 251,

Segment informaiion

Business Segiments
For managemen: purpeses, the Group s organized 1o business units based o s products anc
services and has three reportable segments. as follows.

t The ielevision and radic segment, which engages w television and radic broadeasting
activities and which generates revenue from sale of national and regional advertising ume.

& The imternational subscription segment which engages in subscripuon arrangements with
iniernational cable companies.

:  Other businesses which include movie production, consumer products and other services.

l\ﬂdnaﬂcmen monmors the Oner Eﬁlﬂ” resuliy of #15 business units separ ﬁ{CIX for the PUrpose o
making decisions abowt resource aliocation. and performance assessment. Segment per tormance
evaluated based on net income or loss and ie measured consistently with net income or loss i the
consolidaled Anancial stazements. On z consoiidated basis. the Group’s performance 1¢ evaluated
hased on consolidatzd net income for the vear

Geographical Segments

The Group operates 1n two major geographical segments  In the Philippmes. s home country, the
Group 1s invelved 1n television operations. in the United States and m other Jocations twiich
inciude Middie East. Europs. Australia. Canada and fapan), the Group ties up with cable provider

to bring teievision programming outside the Philippines.

The Group's revenues were mostly generated from the Phllmpm\_a which is the Group s country
of domicile  Revenues from external customers attrivuned to foreign countries from wiuch the
Group derives revenue were immaterial 1o the consoldated financial statements.

Noncurrent assets consist of property and equipment. land at revalued amounts. investmern
properties and intangible assets which are all located in the Philippmes.

The Group does nothiave 4 single external customer Whose TEvenue amounts 10 10% or more of
the Group s revenues

inter-seament T ransaclions

Segment Tevenues. segmern expenqu and segment results inciude ransfers ameng business
seﬂmems anc: amomz ﬁ&:OGra{)mca] segments Ih" transfers are aCCOU[’R’E:LJ for at CO]HDCUBV‘
market prices charged 1o unrelated customers for similar services. Such transfers are eliminated

upes consolidation
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¢

Cash and Cash Equivatents

yilyys

Cashoon hand and in banks BT3¢, 628,818
Short-term deposiis 468,947,304
' BL.207.976,122

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Shori-term deposits are made for
varving periods of up to three (3} months depending on the immediate cash reguirements of the
Group. and earn mrerest at the respective shori-term deposit rates

imerest income. nes of final tax. earned from bank deposits amounted to #2857 million.
277 27 million and B37.76¢ muliton in 201 1. 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Trade anc Other Receivables

20EE 2010
Trade
Television and radio awrume 21631453604 P4O
Subsenptions 311859621 Z
Related party (sec Note 193 60,622,218
Others 155,203,912
Nontrade:
Agdvances 10 suppliers 194 978,803 1983
Advances to officers and emplovess 34,738,404 ERE
Others 35,218,973 118,
4. 426.075,541 5,745
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 237,937,618 212
' 24,191,137.923 BIS3L

Trade Recervables

Television and Radic Aniime. Television and radio airtime receivables are nonmieresi-bearing
and are generalty on 60-90 day terms upon receipt of mvoice by the customers. involcing
normally takes around 30 days from alrmg.

Television and radic airtime receivables melude unbilled artime recevabies, arising when
advertisements have been atred during the vear but billing or acceptance by the customer has been
detaved dueo time lag in completing all required documents.

Teievision and radio airtime receivables are presented net of payments received before broadcast
amounting to #128 13 miliion and #145 87 million as at Diecember 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. since a right of offset exists between the advance payments and the regular trade
receivabies with credit terms.

Subscriptions Receivable. Subscriptions receivable include receivables from international channe
subscriptions and advertisements. These are noninieresi-bearing and normally collected within
3(-60 days.




Eelared Forre. Terms and conditions of receivablies to re lated party are discussed 1o Nove 15

Cother Trade Recervables. Other wade recetvabies are nonmmeresi-bearing and are generally o
60-90 dav terms upon receipt of mvoice by the customers

Advancss 1o Suppliers _ _
Advances (o suppliers are non-interest bearing and are generally apphied w acquisiion
inventores and fixed assers and avaliment of services and others withm the next financial vear

Advances to Officers and Emplovess and Other Nonwrade Recetvabies
Advances to officers and emplovees and other nontrade receivables are noninveresi-bearing anc
are normally collscted within the next financial vear

Allowance for Doubtful Accounis
The movements in the aliowance for doubtiul accounis are as follows:

2611
T ekevision and
Radio Adrtime Crthoers T otal
Balance at begineung of vear 216,840,589 1,547,299 B213.388,198
Proviston for the vear
{see MNote 225 23,799,588 TAY B3R
Balance at end of vear B234,641,484 £8372¢7.134
2010
Television and
Radio Alrtime Others Totai
Balance al beginning of vear E206.355 660 22097002 BROR 452 662
Provision for the vear
fsec Note 22} 30,006,000 596355 3(:.59¢ 355
Wrie~off (25514 7764 (149.038) {25.665822:
Ralance at end of vear B 10840896 B 547299 £213 388103

The allowance for doubtful accounts for television and radio airtime and other recervables w2011
and 2010 are resuits of specific and collective impamrmeni #ssessments performed by the Group as

follows:
2611 2010
Indrvidually impaired B226,067.536 B1G7 664 &@
Collectively impaired 11,876,162

£237.937.618




As at December 352017 and 2010, the agireg analvsis of
follows

recervables that were not impaired

201

TErnte

Tozovasing ant

Fadia Alrame Subsorintinemn: Kelared pare Otier vonirade™ Taix!
Neither pass due noy
g FLOR2A49.685 Fi48.911528 264,621,216 FHIE2LITO BI7.547.734 ELINT.SRL440
204,640,824 #9.404.778 - £.128.287 TBOL.413 361,975,224
259 143,565 2%,046.947 - 24,254 471 4 h6H 658 395,085,841
E8,179.674 §6.753.354 - 4. 406,441 4697818 44,239,244
81~ 18&1 Gu\’\ 74,829,169 13.664.7%1 - 2247745 5524317 1862664122
181-365 davs 23%.536.710 14,583,344 - 14.50%.362 4,625,353 276. 25847158
{ver one yea 493 733,483 5.492.872 - 346393660 So04.08¢ 5349654812
3,395.813.026 P311.85%.62; B60.G622,214  BIS;.006.TE BEL.I5T381 £3991.158.12¢
*Exeludmy advonces o & ra emetmiing i P A998 milfion ax ai Der 2010
2010
Trade
Television and
Radip Arrunie Subscripions Related parts {ihers
Noither past due hor
impatred B3 144 277558 17471487 PIY_RGE.03Y B29.716.962
Pas due bui nov impared
1-30 davs 419 457001

3160 davs 246 448, g(;:
61-80 dave
91-180 days

743 -lbl

181-365 days
Chyer one vear ‘.«‘.24 1.667
#118 742 ALY

Trade and other receivabies that we

as good and coliectivie.

The G?OL%D s unmilw recsivables amounted to 2107 87 nuliion and #

20

& not impaired are assessed by the management of the Group

136.76 milion as at

Diecember 31, 2011 anu 2010. respectively. These are mncluded in wade recetvables as “neither
past due nov mmmwpc * pur with age of 31-60 davs from date of aring.
Program ant Other Rights
Z01:
Program  Story Format
Hizhis Rizhis Film Rights T ot
Cost.
Ralance at beginmng of vear B452,015,771 B8S.563.12¢ PIY,195,852  B561,774.855
Additions 446,091,709 21.354,264 28.000,000 489 445975
807147 481 114,917,343 47195952 [0B5¢,220.82¢
Program and other rights usage
{see Note 21) §273.054,958) (34,425,457, (3,0460.0006; (317.528.415)
Balance at end of year 619,452,523 71,491,936 47,185,952 732,708,411
Accumulated impairment i value -
Balance at begmning and
end of vear (2,742,260 - - (2.702.260
B616.350,263 P71.491,536 BAZ, 155951  P72Y.998.151
2014
Program Story Format Fitm Rughts Toral




Faghts Rights

L 051
Balance at beginning of vear 230, y 67
Addiuons 9,000 40 cf,ﬂi
29.050.524 5.207
Program and {}‘"n"’ rights usage
{see Nowe 214 {5.86 31354
Balance ai end of vear 14193 360774655
Accumulated impairment i value -
Balance at beginning and
end of vear {2702.2600 - - {Z.702.260]
P44 313512 BEG 565,129 B1G 195952 BISE07IS95

Ne impairment loss on program and other 1 ‘ighis was recognized m 2001 and 2010

9 Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
2011
Brepaid production costs B2 404918
Tax credns E18.368.2¢7
Materals and supplies mvyentory at cost 108,959,085
fnput VAT 164,096,498
Prepaid sxpenses 85,194,126
Creditable withholdme taxes 55,800,765
Others 122.80¢
B605 044,550
Tex credits represent claims of the Parent Company from U.e governmen: arising from airing of
government commercials and advernsements. The Parent Company expects io utihze these 1ax
credits within the next fipancial year
10 Avahiabie-for-Sale Tinancia! Assets

2011 2010

investments 1 shares of stock:
Unguoted B3 257,256 B83.257.256
Cueted 2.539.507 21 47{)9_39;

7
B105,796.548 8104 9665468

A Slﬂmlzcam L}Ortlon of AFS financial assets consist of investments i unauotea shares of stock
which are carried at cost, Jess any accumuiated Impairment in value. The fair value of these
financial instruments 1s not reasonably determinable due to unpr edictable nature of future cash
flows and lack of other suitable methods In arrving at far value.

AFS financial assets include unrealized gamn amounting to £2.75 milbion and £2 00 ) million, pet of
deferred tax liabilities amounting to £0.29 million and £0.21 million as at December 31,2011 and
2010. respecuvely {see Note 27). The net unrealized gain on AFS financial assets are deferred and
presented separately under the equity section of the consolidated swmtements of Ninancial position



investments and Advamees

241 201
Investments i associates and 1nterests m join
vemuras accounied for under the equiny method BII3.415.0862 BI54 826,146
Permmanen advances o associames and JouT ventures
7 856357

isee Note 19 ET.085.657

~

41 913,807

¥

The moverments i: the above amounts are as follows

281

investments 1 assoglates and interests 1n jomt
ventures accourted for under the equny method
ACQUISTLON COST
Balance at beginning of vear
Interest i joint venture classified as held for
sale - net of subscription pavable
{Note 43 {5¢.090.000;

B3Z7.722.050

722050

Balance at end of vear 2TTTELLSEG 327.722.056
Accumulated equity in net osses:
Balance at beginning of vear (75,893,918 (79 751,634
Accumulated eaquity I net iosses assoctated
with the asser held for sale 23567 528 -
Fauity In nei earnings dunng the vear 5.4019.389 6.867.724
Halance at end of vear (44,306,993 {72862 910}
235,415,063 234 828,146
Advances fo associates and joint veniures
Balance at beginning of vear 87,085,657 146,367 188
Collection of advances during the veay - (35.281.531
Balance at end of vear &7 85657 87 085.657
Total investments and advances P320.500.720 341,913,803

The ownership irerests inassociates and joint ventures winch are all incorporated m the

Philippines consistof the following:

Percentage of Ownership

Principal Activiues P 2016
Associates:
RGMA Network, Inc. {RGMA Advertsmg 49.¢ 496
Moni~Aire Realty and Devetopment
Corporation {Mont-Alre; Real Estate 454 49 0
Jomnt Ventures:
¥-Plav {see Note 4) Casual Online Interactive Games - 6.0
ING7 Interactive, Inc. (INQ7; internet Publishing LIERE 300
Philippine Emertainment Portal. Inc.
(PEP} ~do- 0.4 300
The carrving values of investments accounted for under the equity method and the related
advances are as foliows: :
2011
Adwances
investments (see Note 19} Total




Associaes

RGMA BE105 (64,444 B B1O5 64,444
NMont-Afre 383546619 a4 475370 122825988
Jomt venure -
INCGT - 2610287 2610287
BI33,415063 BET GES 65T B324,500, WE
208
Advances
Investments {see Noie 1Y) Towi
Assaciates:
ROGMA BIO0043 055 B
Moni-Aire 38.350.61¢ §4_ 475 370
Jomt ventures
X-Play (see Note 4 26432472 - J6432472
INGT - 2.610.287 2610287
B254 808 146 887085 657 8341 9153803

X-Play

As discussed m Note 4. the Group, through GN’MI'E BOII, announced 1ts decision to dispose of
ity shareholdings it 3-Piav on January 1. 2011 and classified its investment m X-Play as asset
held for Sal"' The carrving vaius of assel nelc; for sale previoustv classified as mvesimeni and
advances 1o X-Play is shown below

Invastment cost B100.000.00C
Less subscription pavable S5¢.000.00¢
Met investment cost 50.000.60¢
{ess accumulated equity in net losses associated with

the asset held for sale 23.56752%

220,432,470

in connection with the plannad disposal of X-Play. on October 19, 2031 GNMI entered into an
option agreement with IPE whereby IPE grants GNM] the option to seli all, but not fess than all. of
shares in stock-of X-Plav for purchase price of 75,00 miliior i cash  Alse. on Maren 23, 2012,
(GNM] agreed to subscribe to £130.00 million worth of shares of IPE s authorized but umissued
capital stock torbe offered on s Initial Public Offering in exchange for GNMI shares of stock In
¥-Plav at « subscriptionprice per share equivalent Lo the offering price.

bEP

As i December 31 2011 and 2010, accumulated equity i net losses of PEP exceeded the Group s
nterest in jomt venture; thu:: the carrying value of interest i Joint venture with PEP has been
reduced to zero. Unrecognized share of income (losses) in PEP amounted o 211 million,

(£0.03 million} and (¥3.27 mithiony in 2011 2010 and 2009, respectively. The accumulated
unrecognized share of losses in PEP amounted to 119 million and ?33( miilion as at

December 31,2011 and 2010, respectively.

Losses of INQ7 recognized under the equity method in excess of the Group s imrerest were apphed

against its advances to the Parent Company. INQ7 ceased operations n 2007,

Estabiishment of a New Join Venre




O Maren 22, 2012, the Group. through GNIMI. executed & Sharehoider's Agreement with Manilz
5 Tiyae

jockey Club. Inc. for the estabiishmen of & jomt venture corporatiol namelv (Gamespar. Ine. The
joimt venture will be operavonal n 2012

Al associates and 1oml ventures are pot listed in any public swock exchanges.

The table below shows the condensed Ninancial informanien of the associates.

Tolal Assets  Toral Laabihues Revenues Net income

RGMEA 411 BTE 172507 B146,714.016 234,243,651
2000 64 368413 167385748 4735040

Moni-Aire 2011 94,464,607 - -
20 s 360,607 - -

The aggregate amounis related to the Group' s 50% mieresi m ING7. PEP and X-Play foliow:

=]
INEYT PEE H-Plav {see Note 41
2911 2010 2411 2010 2011 X
Curreni assers E7.69947% FIEPOO7Y PIS.950IRT Bly448.755 A
I TORE A358TA 2 082,230 282234 685,836 063823 -
Current Habiimes 24,032,924 290309 21,734,766 227123585 -
Res - - i2.608,229 Pi045.988 -
- - 16.50¢.918 11076587 -
s {ingans - - 216731 {30.600; -
. Property and Equipment at Cost
2013
Additens
Yrepronintin
fsee Notes 21
Jangary 1 and 221 Bisposalr Reclassification: Deeemper 31
F2,400,432.786 FE4. 495,203 {B]13.587.685; PHL833 PLE31.3%1.347
4256880002 559924132 (21.053.207; 24715828 4,825 470,655
636.205.627 L05.743.56% [EXHER (1.048.972} 736,897,154
346917283 81.64Z.642 (43,349,155} 1604221 386814921
161,473,218 $.331.543 {2.573.301) 572992 F6H.004.612
7861915660 41,133,135 (84.565.218) 30994902 649175485
866924376 122701067 (6.638.5%4) - F{E TR
2.364,927.640 Z45,062.8H) {21.347.468%; 1645.0631 358719473
477.823.991 T2 395926 {36575 627.76T 545,883,400
204,263,013 63,164,102 {41.386.970) 15.00¢ 226134, 148
129.504.604 11,904,536 {1.421431) - 1448.068.76%
5.143.519.688 515.238.441 (772334043 (1264830 5580263 895
Comsruglie
for mimaliovies 153.602.18¢ 62321505 - {32.255.732) 183.667.953

P2A72001.058  P388.216.19¢9 (#7.634.814) £~ P3,251.582.543
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504407680 CERGO0.000) 3 142 51U 68D
Constructosn
inmatianon PO 00632 - f2.458424 3360218
B7aOeG 337 RIATOSOIN (P30 72

Depreciation and amorizaton on property and eguipment charged fo.operations amounted ¢
313 24 millior. B504 41 miltion and B335 90 million 1n 2071, 2010 and 2009, respectively
Phese amounts nciude amortization of previously capitalized borrowing costs amowting
10 08 miliion each vear No borrowing cost was capralized in 2011 and 2010,

i

e

TR

cost of fuliv depreciated assets still used by the Group amounted to B3.641 83 million and
3¢ 26 militon as & Txecember 31, 201 Land 2010, respectively

o '"'%

ha
~
3.3

£ OnStrucuon 1 Progress pertams 1o the costs mcwrred for signals s engthening and improvemernt

of studios m the GMA Nerwork Compound Annex Building and construction of Tandang Sore
Warghouse

r—a

a2

_ Land 2t Revalued Amounts

2011 20110

Cost:
Halance at‘beginning of vear B340.039.576 £340.039.576
Addons 6.463.241 ~
Ralance atend of vear 346,562,817 340,038 376

Tevaluyation ncrement -
Balance atbeginning and end of vear

1. 063452888 1.063.082.88¢
B4 “‘53'3 706 P11 403122465

Land used in opuauons were appraised by an independent firm of appraisers on December 23,
2008 and January 5, 2009

While farr values of the land were not determined as at December 31 2011 and 2010, the Group’s
management believes that there were no conditions present 2011 and 2010 that would
significantly reduce the fair value of the land from that was determined as at January 5. 2005,

Inn determining the fair value of the land. the independent appraisers considered the local market
conditions, the extent. character and utiiity of the property, sales and holding prices of stmilar
parcels of land and the highest and best use of the land




4. lmvestment Properiies

2613
Land and Buildings and
UmDrovements bmprovemens Totsl
Cost
Balance at beginning of vear B33.399.381 271,3%6.338 B TISTIS
Addions £76.00¢ 239,162 2815163
Balance at end of vear 33.975.351 73865501 107,540,852
Accumutated depreciation:
Balange at beginning of vear - 34346621 34,346,621
Digpreciation during the vea
{see Notes 21 and 22} - 3,119,377 2110377
Ralance ai eng of vear - 37.465 998 37465998
Accumuiaied impairmett in value
Ralance at beginning of vear - 7835392 74325.392
Reversal during the vear
(see Nowe 24 - (4:99(,279) (4.996.219)
- 1045173 2,045,173
833 975381 B34:054.330 268029711
2010
Land and Buildings and
lmprovements Improvements Total
Cost:
Balance at beganning of vear F£32 39638 BOS 1574865 BYY 336866
Addiions - 6. 188,855 6188 852
Balance at end of vear 33.399.38] 71.326.33¢8 104.72:5.716
Accumulaied depreciation.
Balance at beginning of vear - 31 784.726 31 784726
Diepreciation durimg the vear
see Noteg 21 and 22} - 2.561.893 2.561.895
Balance ai end of vear - 34 346,621 34346621
Accumuiated-impairment 1 value -
Balance atheginming and
end.of vear - 7.035.392 7035302
£33 366 381 B2G 044 325 843 342 706

The reversal of previousiv recognized mpairment joss in 20111 resulted from the increase n fair
value of certain buildings and improvements of GMPI amounung to 4 9% mmllion as derermned
by an independert appraiser as at December 31,2011, The farr mariet vaiue of investment
properties-owned by GMP1 and Scenarios amournted 10 #2575 million as at December 31 2011
while the rest of the mvestment properties owned by the Parent Company and Alte amounted to
210213 million as at December 31. 2003, as determined by independent appraisers. The fair
value represents the amoum at which the assets can be exchanged between a knowledgeabie.
willing selter and a knowledgeabie. willing buyer in an armt’s-length transaction at the date of
valuation in accordance with International Valuation Standards.

While fair values of the majority of mvestment properties were not determned as at December 3
2011 and 2010, the Group’s managemer believes that there were no conditions present m 2011
and 2016 that would significantly reduce the fair value of the invesiment properties from that

determined 1 2005



2011 2010 200%

Rental income dermved trom

Investien: properties 82,
Prrect aperating expenses

{including repamrs and

maintenance ) from
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Ivestmen: propertiss (3,097,803 {(Z.501.89)
(BYZII320 BHRY D4C
13 Other Nonturrent Asser
2611 2010
Software costs 248 421,523 BIGLALT 145
cferred put VAT 36.986.364 26.346 846
Refundable deposits (see Notes 29 and 307 18,975.664 34._.3” 084
Gruarantes deposits 16.086.984 L&
investment 1n artworks 4406255 I,
Video right and deferred production costs 4085344 3
Others 3,494,497

B134,466,617 BIiG.

The movements 13 sofvware costs foliow

2011 2010
Cost:
Balance a1 beginming of vear BIS1.B40.863
Additions 34,675,997
Baljance at end of veay 186.516.860
Accumulated amortization:
Baiance at beginning of vear 112.383,738 1714
Amortzation during the vear (see Note 223 25,711.61% 213004
Balance atend of vear 138,095,337 112383716
B4E 421.523 B3G 457 145




i6 Trade Pavables and Other Current Liabilities

2813 201
Trade
Supnliers B30 Y1337 BI2E]
[elated parties (see Note 19 19.331.69(
Pavable 10 goVErnment agencies 756,499,280 832,
Acerued:
Sick and vacation leaves 222.224.51¢ 1§7.859.29
Production costs T71.7684,931 157.203.867
Pavroll and talent fees 132,262,774 1253505044
{ommission 37.067.964 28.088,244
Other general and adminiSrauve expenses 91,456,382 69.068.85¢
Others 24,128,788 21.035,592
8] 755,563,632 PIEIOIE1LY2

Trade pavables 1o suppliers are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled on terms ranging from
= A g
7-30 davs

Terms and conditions of pavabies to related parties are discussed m Note 19

Payabie to government agencies 1 remittec within 30 days after reporting penod

Accrued sick and vacation leaves comprise of accumulated aliowable credit leaves  Excess sick
icaves over maxinmnm credi leaves are reimbursed to the smployees anually winle excess

vacation jeaves are forfened

Accrucd expenses and other pavables are noninteresi-bearing and are ge neraliv settled within the
next financial vear

17 Obligations {er Program and Other Rights

This accoun: represents liabilities to foreign and local film suppliers for program and other rights
purchased bv the:Group. The habilities are noninteresi-hearing and are generally pavable in equal
monthiy or guarterly installments. The amounts presented m the consolidated statemsants of
financial position as at December 31. 2011 and 2010 represent the face amounts of the obligations
which are expectedo be settled within the next 12 months.

18, Eguity

z. Capital Stock

Number MNumnber
of Preferred of Common
Shares Shares

Authorized - (.20 par vatue per preferred

share/B1 .00 par value per common share 7.300.060,000 5.000.000.000

L

Subseribed and 1ssued at beginning

and eng of vear

7.500.000.000  3,364.692 000

Treasury shares

491,816

3 645,060




Number Number

of Preferred af Common
Shares Shargs

Underiving shares of acquired Philippine Liepostt
Recemis (PDRs] — 7300604

The preferred shares are of egual rank. preference and priotity and are dentical 1 ali respect
regardicss of series  Preferred shares are participating at the rate of one ffth (1/31elthe
dividend pam 1o common shares, the yate of wiuch s adjusted proporuonately by the Paren
Company s BOL) consequent to any stock spiit or siock dividend declaration affecting the
commeon shares and preferred shares  Preferred shares are convertible at the option of the
shareholders at the ratio of five (3 preferred shares o one {1} common share. based on par
value.

Preferred shares enjoy priority Over comimon shares o the distribation of assets of the Parent
Company 1n the event of dissolution and hquudation, al such rates, terms and conditions as the
BOD mayv determine Each preferred share is entitled 1o one-vote and shall have the same
voung rights as the comrmon shares

The Parent Company s BOD mayv specify other terms and conditions. gualifications,
restricuons and priviieges of the preferred shares or series/classes thereod, insofar as such
terms. conditions. gualifications. restrictions and priviieges are not mconsistent with the
articies of incorporation and any applicable law or regulauon

The toliowing summarizes the information on the Company s regiswration of securimeas with
the SEC as required by Securiues Regulation Code Ruie 68. A5 Amended (20111

Authorized Number of 1ssued issue/Offer
Drate of SEC approval Wumber of shares shares Price
The Parent Company declared stock dividends i  The total number of shareholders
15 and as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Retained Barmnings

The retained earnings account is restricred for the pavment of dividends to the extent of

£34 27 million as ar December 31, 20171 and 2010 representing the cost of shares held o
treasury amounting to F28 48 m;llzor in 2071 and 2010 and undertying shares of the acquired
PDRgamounting to £5.79 milhon 2011 and 2016

The BAD of the Parent Company approved the declaration of the following cash dividends. in
2011, 2010 and 2009

Total Cash

Cast Dividend Invidend

Vear  Declaration Date Record Date Per Share Declared
2011 Mareh 11, 2011 April 8, 20611 B8(.45 B 187.089.287

2010 March 52010 April 14, 2010 B() 43 D 187.086.297

October 282010 Neovember 17, 2010 025 1215049 606

23402138806




Total Cash

Cash Invidend Dividend
Y ear Dieclaraton Date Record Das Per Share [eclare
2000 Anpril 22000 L2008 B( 3G B 701069433

Events afrer Renorting Period

O Mareh 28, 2012, the BOD approved the Parent Compan: s declaration and distribution of &
cash dividend of B0 40 per share totaling #1 944 08 miilton 1o all stockhoiders of record as a
April 16, 2011

Relzted Party Disclosures

Parties are considered 1o be refated if one party has the abiiiry. directly and indirectiy. 10 COmrol
the other party O eXercise significant mfluence over the other party in makmg fmancizl and
eperavng decisions. Fartigs are aiso € considered 1o be relered if thev are subject (0 common

control.

Termg and Conditions of Transactions with Related Parties

Owstanding balances at vear-end are unsecuied. mteresi-ires and settlement cccurs i cash. except
for cash advances imended for future capital subscripuion. There have been no guarantees
proviaed or 1&0&:1‘«% for any refated party receivable or pavabie. For the vears ended

December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009. the Group dic not make any provision for doubtful accounts
relating to amounts owed by related pariies. An assessmenn is undertaken at each financial
vear-end by exanuning the financial pesition of the velated party and the market 1n wineh the
related party operates.

Transactions with related parties are as foliows:

Trade Trade
Nawre of Recevs Pavables
Related Panv  Relauonship Transaction Year Reovenues Fapenses fsee Note 113 (see Note 71 {see Nole 16
RGMA Azsnrimic Agrnme sales 2611 B6O.561.323 BESUZZINT Ee BRILGZIZ1Y PI44RE30R
and 2000 145 7379 41 3585408 - 59.898.034 B175. 754
SO IRSIONS
GMA Kapuse  Common Gramt of il - 1762265 - - -
Frungetion,  sinckholders NOnITHETEs!-
lnc {GMA bearing 2014 15567888 - - ~
aghvaneer
" . . 2011 .
NQ? Joint vesture Gramt of - - 1610287 - -
nomimeresi- 201
- — TRIC2RT - -
beary 16362
ady
Mom-Atre Grant of 2011 - - 84,475,370 - -
nommeres- 2010 - - R4, 475 37¢ .
bearing
atvanons
EElRa e , : ! - - - - 142338
Image One AssoT Advertiging fee 261 B 1422.58
200 - - - 1.023.382
Beto, Gozon,  The Parent Legal and
Ehma Law Co “z retpiners’
(BGE Lawj,  Ch {ees
the Board s &
principa: 20t - 10.76,124 - - -

pariner af
BGE Law 201 - 6.495.42] - - -



Permanen:

Trade Trade
Naiuee o Recervable Pavabits
Relaied Parr Relenonshr Fie Y car Revenes FXnensse, tsoe eove Tiotses Now 1h;

Oliers ~ J.420.000 - —

139424 -

3 ’«37(1 fml'

and otiel:

BGL.501.328  RO36TI43L
2000 148 75070 60 A58 S0

219,331.69C

[ENCRELY

The advances mads by the Parerr Company to Moni-Anre
capital subscripiion

0 previous vears are itended for future

\)U‘}
These mciude FL.G Managemen: and Development Corporation. San Mateo Managemen:
Corporatior. 3LM Kobienz Management L Corporation and Majen: Managemeni and Development
Corporauon which are owned or partly owned by some officers of the Parent Company and
iJMPT; GMPL employs the services of these relaied parties in sourcing and hirmg competent ang
capabie personnel and in conducting studies o mmprove G GMPT’s capability n providing efiicient
services to ¢lients

The compensation of keyv management personnel of the Group. by benefit type, follows:
2881 201G 2004
Salaries and other shori-tarm benefiis Br47.631.477 D42 217 804 B281 304 §04
Pension benefits 38.455.825 373 hu! 37451095
T286,087.302 BIRO 587415 £32{.845 98¢
20 Net Revenues

241 2000 2008

Television and radio arume 211 881.261,508  P13192.72885%6 Ri2evieil 973

Subscription ncome B64.592.631 925 370205 35.182.975

Preduction and others 237,012,535 181 417 79% 224 080695

13.082.506.071 14299 516 8509 137876 643
Agency CommissIons {1.894,0589.868) (2204415271} {2.080.006.684}
Co-producers’ shares {31. 7{k’*.6{;4) (79 964 172} (210,362.9951

J925,762.532)

{2.284.379.443)

(2.270.369.679}

{1925
B11,157.043.53¢

B2 01513741

B11.500.506.564




21 Production Costs
281 201 2000
Talent fees and production parsonne!
costs (see Notg 231 £7.776.388.552 B2 330496360
Kenrat {see Note 203 763,296,407 L 80z 78T
Tapes. sers and production suppiies 71365965
Broeram and other rights usage
{see Note & 317.526,418
Facilities and production services 244,538,604
Diepreciation and amortization
isee Notes 12 and 14} 214,202,422 206.608.697
Transportation and cOmMMUnICation 2&,63.-.,334» 00795 448
£5,104.966,89¢ Ba 3
22 General and Administrative Expenses

Provision for doubtful accouns in 2009 1s presented net of reversal of lone-outstanding television and

2011 2016 2004

Personnel costs (see Note 233 B1.714.206.604 B 626,148,103 Bi1.612.077.169
Advertsing 425 345,586 401 373,131 289620121
Drepreciavion and amortizatiorn:

{see Notes 12 and 14} 294,155,396 296,501,220
Communicauon. light and warter 270,454, 16Y 967 .84t
Taxes and ilcenses 211405328
Repairs and mamienance 187580420
Erofessional fees 140393183

Research anc surveve

Sales tncenirves

Rental (see Note 26]
Transportation and wavel
Amortization of software costs

F12.604.6%6
101227612
88,633,501

3.559.183

{see Note 135} FETELGLY
Provision for doubtful accounts, nel

of reversal {see Note 7} 24,549 425 3(’?.50"’ 335
Insurance 21,872.912 18.631.682
Materials and supplhes 16,745,455 20.890 902
Entertafmment. amusement and

recreation 14.372.425 13,896,511 11318261
Dues:and subscriptions 11,836,693 11.391.554 11,343 758
(thers 152,355,304 140,115 206 108.677 030

P3.879.277.65Y B3 730 554234 B3 451 980170

radio airtime veceivables, previously covered by aliowance for doubtful accounts, which were

subsequentiy coliected in 2009 amounting to B36.9! miliion.



Personnel Coses

2011 "OUE
Talent feas BL. 664,734,083 1093 248.287

Salaries and wage:
Emploves beneiins anc aliowances
Sick and vacatlon 1eaves exXpenss

Met pension expense (see Nowe 151

i .Zﬁu._:}%:‘?.(, [ 22
417.563.885
73.680.968
71.647.761

L, 496.596.2 146

B2 056 644,463

The apove amounts were distributed as follows:

pil

2014

2006

Production costs (see Note 21)
Gcncral and admunISratve exXpenses

i1
PL.TT6.384,552

B2 330498, 30-

B2 101,146,857

gec Note 22} 1,714,206.664 1.626.148.102 1.612.077,169
£4,490.596,216 B3 086 644 465 B3T3 224026
Orthers
20181 2018 2009
(Gain on sale of proper
anc equipmarn B16.040,347 BIGISES00
Tax refund of GMA Finov TV 14,761,082 13,336,397

Merchandising licenss fees and
others

Net foreign currency exchange {oss

eversal of imparment loss

6.781.724
(5,772,109

(see Nowe 141 4,990,219 - -
Commissions £611.52¢ 3.513.842 4036479
Renial (see Note 26) 3815060 4947 469 4523381
Income from mall shows 2,443.521 WERIES: 57415334
Saies of DVDs and mitegrated

recetver-decoders 1,196,179 2.316.687 1 BRY B3
[hvidends 41,529 58.957 2269
incomedrom unreturned video tapes 34,925 308106 1241 144
Discount on tax.credit certificates - 2.670.692 7408499
Proceeds from insurance claims - 412,
Reversal of long-outstanding

pavabies and reimbursement of

TBC charges by selling

shareholders - - 21.636
Orthers 1,719,868 1189981 -

B24 345162

251,083,876




25 Pension Benefits

The Tollowing wables summarize the components of Net DENSION expense recognized i ine
consolidaied statements of comprehensive (ncome and the funded status and amounts recognized

-

in the consolidated statements of financial position for the plans:

3

Net pension expense (see Noie 231

2851 PN
CUrTent serVICE Cost P6L.092.904 Bod 975622
interest cost 15,716,356 79,841 216
Expected return on plan assets (55,423,986 {43.864.9151
Acluarial (gams) losses recognized 62,493 (6.630.539; ; ;
B71.047,761 BOL 321,384 BIIST70.174
Pensjon liahiiiny
2611 2010 200¢
Lresent vaiue of defined benefit
obligaton (29¢7,487.812) (2828 .936.473) 21781243}
Fair vaiue of pian assets 527,997,996 6135 640 657 ! :
(379,489,816} (213.286.816; AA0.035:
Unrecognized actuarial losses {gamsi 66,518,970 (36354197 {42 984 73
(B312.970.846) {B252:641 4131 (B2R(1 5347

The changes 1n the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows

2411 2010 2004
Batance at beginning of vear PE28.536.473 R721.781.243 BT46 444 672
Current service Cost 64,692,914 64 975622 61,730,161
inerest cost 65,716,350 79 841,216 62,345,038
Benefits paid (4¢,562,500) {37.661.608) {22.594.803)
Actuarial gains (7.288,4151 - 126149 823
Balance at end of vear BO07.4587.812 BRIE 936 473 B TR 243

The changes in the fair value of plan assets are as foliows:

2611 2010 2009
Balance at begmning of year BG15,649.657 B4RT 231208 214G 787773
Contribunion during the vear £.896,628 122215142 123470216
Benefitspaid (44,569,500} (37,661 608; {22564 803}
Expecied return on plar assets 55,423,986 43864915 18,018,493
Actuarial gains (losses) £107.404,767} - 218,369 532
Ralanceat end of vear 577,997,996 BH15.649 657 B4ET7 231208
Actual return on plan assets (B51.984.7811 B43 850,809 B13¢ 588.02¢8

The Group expects to contribute £110.00 million to its defined benefit pension plans in 2012




The major calegories of pian assets as percentage of fair vaiue of total pian assets are as follows:

2911 2010 2008

Equity securites 0% B2% §3%
investments i govermmernt securities % 8% 129
Cash and cash equivalenis 3% 8% e
Hners 2% 2% A%
100% 100% 100%

The principal assumptions used 1n determiming pension liabiiny for the Group's plans are shown

beiow
2B 2010 200¢
Discours rate 6-11% 10-11% F-8%
Expected rate of return on plan
assets 5-18% 5-10% 9%
Expected rate of salary increase 6% 6% &%

The overall expectad tate of rewrn on assels 1s dstermined based on the marker prices prevatling

on that dare, applicabie to the period over wiich the obligation is to be settied

The amounts for the currem and previous Tour vears are as follows:

201t 2010 2005 2607
Fresent vaiue of defiped benefis obliganon  (POGTA8T.812; (PR2.9364TH; (B72.7 135 (BTG 444670
SZ7.997 946 413,649 637 4872 48 6777

{590.670 899,

(3704898867 (213280816) O

{68781 3901

1 nian Labilies -

s oy e assers

2.

Iease Agreements

Operatine Lease Commitmenis - (3roun as lessee
The Group entered into various lease agreements for the land. buildmg, studic spaces,
airtime that ¢ presentiy occupies and uses for periods ranging from three to twenty five vears. The

saiellite and

leases are cancellabie at the Group's opuor.

The Pareni Company also.entered mto a non-cancellabie lease which will expire 2012 The
renta} rate is subjectic 10% annual escalation rate commencing on the third vear of the lease

Total rental expense amounted to B&51 G2 millior, £737.50 million and £693 40 million m 2011
2010 .and 2009, respectively (see Notes 21 anc 22).

The future minimum renials payable under the non-canceliable operating leases follow:

2811 2010

(i Miliions;
Within one year Be2.0G 211838
52,00

After one vear but not more than five vears

BG1.08 218038




Operanne Lease - Group as 1essor

The Group also leases out certam propertes for a penoc of one vear, renfiwab}r: annualhy Total
rental income amounted o B3 §2 milbiorn. 22 63 million and B4 53 quibon m 2001 261G ang
2004 respectively (see Note 24)

27 imeome L anes

The components of the Group's provision for meome tax are as follows

2011 2010 2004
Carrent income tax:
RCIT BI5G 410,645 BOOL J62 662 B 026567362
ACTT L037.72¢ 239980 210085
557,448,374 966 402 042 10267777 448
Daferred vax expense {benefit]
relating 1o the origination and
reversal of temporary
(6,132,658}

difference {26.596.307 é:980.99
B530.852.067 BE573.383

B 020.644.79C

income tax related to the revaluation of AFS financial assets amounted to 80.07 milion
20,07 million. 80,52 million i1 2011, 2010 and 2006, respectively.

Current Income Tax
The reconciiianian between the statulory meome tax rate and effective Income tax raes on Mmeome

hefore incoms tax 15 shown below:

2011 20114 2009
Statutory incomne tax raw 30.00% 30 00% 30005
Addrons {deductions) m mncome @
rate resuling from
income tax holiday {6.82) (427 (351

inierest mcoms already

subsected to final tax (.38}
Nonclairmable foretgn tax credit £.94
Eguity 1n net losses {earnings) of
assaciates.and jomt venlures (667} (G.05) 0.0%
Crthers - net 4,03} {0.02} (01,06}
Effective income:1ax rates 23.64% 25 .65% 26.59%:




Deferred Income Tax
The components of deferred tax assets and trabilines feliow:

Diaferred 1oy assete
Mmmame for doubtiul accoums
crued sick and vacanon leaves

Pens;er‘; ilabilm o7 97,803
Accrued rem 2270634
MCIT i.083.681

Mseountng of long-term obliganorn

for program and other rights $35.65¢
NOLCO 46,226
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 12,528
Allowance for imparment foss
Unamortized past $ervice costs -
B140,345.803
Dreferred tax Habiliies.
Revaluauon increment in land (B318:924,867 (8318924 867
Unamoruzed capralized borrowing costs {27.208.313 (30,231 439
Unreaiized foreign exchange gair £1.086,737; -
Revatuanion of AFS financial assers {286,414 (2154103

iy
(B347,426.327)  (F34C 365 7536;

The components of unrecognized defersed wax assels of ¢ Scenarios. GMA Recoras and

iollow:

2031 I
Alierwance for doubtful accounts £1.733.39¢ B1306.440
NOLCO 1 E56.62¢ -
Pension habiliey 561,737 330017
vecrued sick and vacauon leaves 487,761 313.791

MCIT 30,016
Unrealized foreign exchange loss - 37887
£3.883.532 BI04 133

The above deferred tas assels were not recogrized as management beileves that future taxabie
income against winch the iaferred (ax assels can be used mav not be avatlable

As:at December 31, 2011, the Group's MOIT and NOLCO are as follows

Do Pard/incurred Carrv forward Benefu Up To METT NOLCO
arember 31,2005 December 31, 2012 BIOR.42G B
Dﬂcembe‘y 31,2010 December 31,2013 254314 -
! December 31, 2014 £70.954 3960517

21,123,697 B3 069517




Board of investmenss {(BOU Regulator

Om Februare 19,2007 the Parerr Company was registered with the BO! as a new export producer
of television and MOTIOR pICture Oh & NET-pioneet staws under the Crmmbus Invesuments Code of
1087 (Executive Order Ne. 2263 As a remistered enternrise the Paren: Company is enutied o
mcome tax holidav for the registered activities for four vears starting from registration date.

he total e meenmives avatied
155 8

: T 2000 2080 and 2009 amounted to 21
36 27 million and #1534 88 muliion. respecuvely,

2 21 mithon,

-
I
B

1]
s

¢ EPS Computation

The compuiation of basic and diluted EPS foliows

2011 2010 2006

Net income (8} £1.715138.372 2 820.827.053 $2.818. 230,808
Less atribuable to preferred

shareholders 529,519,974 870532 881 Bo% 737.619

iet income atmributable to common

shareholders (b £71,185,618,3% £1 050394172 B1948 512974
Common shares 1ssued at the

beginning of ves 3,364,692,584 3364 692 006 .
Treasury shares tsee Note 18 {3,645.000; (3 6450001 (3.643.000;
Underhving shares on acquired PDRs

{see Note 187 {750 {750,000 {750 000
Weighted average number of

commaon shares tor basic BEPS (o) 3.,360.297.000¢ 3.360.2597.000

Weighted average number of

COmInon shares 2.360,297,00¢ 3.360.297 000 3.360.257.000
Effect of dilusien - assumed

conversion of preferred shares LAA00,000.000 1.500.000.000 L.300.000.G00
Reacquired preferred shares (98,563 198,363} 08 5633
Weighted average number of

common shares adrusted

for the effect of dilution (4} 4,860.195.437 £ 860,198 437 4 B6(.198.437
Basic EPS (bic) P332 B8 580 R{ 580
Diiuted EPS {a/d} 4,233 20,580 £ 580

29 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments inciude cash and cash equivalents. The main

purposes of these fimancial instruments Includs raising financing for the Group's operations and
managing identified financial risks. The Group has other financial assets and labilittes such as
trade and nontrade receivables, refundable deposits, trade pavabies and other current liabilines
(exciuding pavabie 1o government agencies) obligations for program ang other rights and
dividends pavable. which arise directiy from its operations. The mam risks arising from the use of
financial instruments are liquidity risk. foreign currency exchange risk, unerest rate risk and credit
HEL

The BOD reviews and approves the Group's objectives and policies.




Laguichn Risk.

The Gr oup 1 “"DOSUQ 1o the I’]OSSI’OIhI\ that

adverse

environmen: and/or s operations would resuli in substantialiv higher working capita

SOuTEL

The Groun manages ligudity risk by mamtaining 2 pool of credi ame: from financial InsttunIons
that exceeds expected financing s :
financing INsiruments and arrange

svaluates other 1
SOUrCes

The tabies below sumtmarize the maturity profite of the

equIrement

s for V\'O"E\li"}& L&")ha

erms 1o broaden tni, Group's range ¢f 1

'fl()uiﬂ Hicewise TCELua iv

changes in the busmess

1ents and subsequentiy pose difficulty m financing the addwonal working capital

financing

Group s financial assets used for higurdity

risk management purposes and financial abilities based on contraciual undiscounted payments as

at Diecember 31

2011
Lese than
Gn Dremand 3 Month: 3 te 12 Moenthe Total
Cash and cash equivalentis BT3028.879  B4GR.947 304 B OPL207.876,123
Trade receivables:
Tetevision and radio aytme 1.373,232,296 2052849685 20E371,623  3,631.453.604
Subscriptions 170.948.093 140,915,528 - 311.85%.621
Related party - 60.622.219 - 60,622,214
Others 84 687,636 5521276 - PES.203.9:17
Nontrade receivables
Advances 1o officers and
empiovees 12.465.421 21272088 - 34,738,409
(thers 19,944,227 15,274,746 - 35218973
B 402.004.358 B1826,390.746 B205371.623 BLL3T.07L861
Trade pavabies and other currem
ilabilines® 286.4140,68¢ 432,488,052 28636562 990 264,352
Obligations for program and other
rights - 12,436,082 27,387,733 35,843,815
Dividends pavabie £.947, 280 - - £.942.280
B225 352,960 P444 G444 134 BI13,733.355 PL.O44.050,447
* Ixoiuding pavable 1o governmeni agencies witich s nol cos wsidered as finemcial liabilin.
2010
Less than
On Demand 3 Month% 3 1o 12 Months Total
Cash and cash equivaients BT08.365.390 B523 086 456 B P} 232351.840
Trade recervables
Televiston.and radic awtme [LGS9287.01¢  3,046,277,536 38.018.08¢  4.763.582.626
Subseriptions 749512 601 118,160,383 - 267.676.284
Related party - 30,898 039 - 55 898039
{ihers 65217.952 19,524 675 - P14, 742627
Nontrade receivabies:
Advances Lo officers and
empiovess £.167.850 1,437,562 - 9625412
Others 145,065 006 13 080.063 - 118145159
B2 723,619,169 83 784 384,738 B38 015080 BE 366021987




.

’\Aonma T te 12 Months Toul

Trade pavabies and other current
habilies®
\)Diwduomu for program and othe:

BIT76.591.065  BOG5 201 06

- 36.530.850 190637278
5,403 035

2360 728 (56

Dividends pavabie

* Excluding pavablc o governmor: agencies which s not consida
Foreign Currency Exchange Risk. Foreign currency excchange nisk s the risk that the fair value o
future cash flows of & financial insirument will fluctuate because of changes b foreign currency
exchangs vates. The Group's exposure 10 foreign currency exchange risk resulis from 1ts busmess
rransactions denominated in foreign currencies. It s the Group's poliey to ensure that capabillues
exist for active but conservative managemer of 1s foreign exchange risk.

The Group's foreign currency-denominated rmonstary asses anc liabilities Toilow

2031 2010
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $5,7781,023  B253.479.5084 57 890 8o4d
Trade receivabies T269.830 318.674.275 6.280 144

$13.056;955 PBS7L,153.77¢ §14.080.013

tinbilities

Trade pavables §239.042 B16,479.601 5280, Em‘-
Obliganions for program and other Tights 1,438 742 63,118.28Y !
S1.678.784 P7I597.890 837 %

i translatung the foa“cign~currenc*_\j-dcnammamo‘ meonetary assets and habilities imto peso amounts.
the exchange raie used was BA3 R4 10 UJS51.00, the Philippme peso w0 115 dollar exchange rates
as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively

The fol‘iowipg tabie-demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably pessible change i USH exchange
rate, with ali other variables heid constani, of F the Group’s income before meome tax from
reporting penod up 10 next wporuno period {due to changes in the far value of monetary assets
and Habilities). There is no impact on the Groun's equity other than those already affecting profl

or 1088,
Eiffect on income
Appreciation {Depreciation) of ¥ before Income Tax
2011 .54 (B5 .65 million}
(6.50) .69 wmillion
2010 0.50 {26 09 mulizon)

{050 6.0% miliion




fnrerest Rate Risi. interest rate risk is the risk that the farr vatue or future cash flows of 2 financial
instrumen: will fluctuate because of changes m market mterest rates The Group’s exposure to
changes n inierest rates 1 minimal and 1§ atmbued o cash and cash equivaients

There 15 no mieresl cOSt 10 mManags sinee the Gy nut 5 EXposure wh changes 1 INEErest rates 1s
confined Oﬁ%?'t cash and cash “GLEI\;’EIICH‘L,

The following wable demenstrates the sensitiviy Lo a reasonabiy possivie change m interes! raiss.
with all other variables held constan.. of the Group's income before income tax from reporing
pertod up to next reporting persod. There 1s no impact on the Group's equity other than thoss
alreadv affecung profit or loss

Effect on Incoms

Increase (1recrease; 1y Basis Poinis Before Income Tax

2011 54 BI47 millien
{54 {5.97 million;

200110 50 B85 035 million
{50 ¢6.03 million)

Credin Rist. Credit Tisk. or the risk of counterparties defaultmg, 1s controlied by the applicanion of
credit approvals. limits and monioring procedures. 1t is the Group’s policy 1o enler 1w
Lransactions with s diversitv of creditworthy parties to mitigate amy mgmnbdm concentration of
credis risle. The Group ensures that sales of products and Services are made 1o Customers witli
appropriate credn history, The Grourn has an internal mechanism 1o monitor the gt gramring of credi
and management of credit exposures. The Group has made provisions. where necessarv. for
poterial losses on credns extended  TheGroup’s exposure 1o eredii risk anses from default of the
COUNLErparT with & Mmaxiunum exposure ¢ egaual to the carrving amount of the insrruments. The
Group does not require any collateral for s financial assets.

The creds qualiny of financial assets 1s managed by the Group using high grade and standard grage
as wternal credit ratings

= High Grade Pertams 10 & COMMerparty who is not expected by the Group to default in settling
1ts obligatons. thus credil riskexposutre 18 minimal. This normalby includes prime financial
institutions and companies and top 20 adverusers n ferms of volume of sales, who
consistently pay on or before the maturity date and related parties

e Sandard Grade. Perains to a counterparty with tolerable delavs (normally from 1o 30 days]
w settling 1ts obligauons 10 the Group. The delays may be due to cus-off differences. This
neiudes customers outside the top 20 advertisers in terms of volurme of sales, whe
C(msistently-pay or maturity date and officers and emplovees.




As ar December 31,20

{and 2010, the eredir qualin of the Group s financial assets i as foliows:

2081

Teeither East Due ™o impaired

Pasf ruc
but not

High Grads Suapdard Grade tmpaired Pmnsived Total
Loans and re
Cush an BLI93.084.345 B = B PBLLI93.084.345

Trade 1oc
Television and radic
airtume
Subscriptions
Related par
Others
Nomtrade icoeivables
cos to officers and

empioves

Adye

10TE7AETE L20LAYLYLC
140.911.528 -
69.622.279 -
- 65.521.274

- 34.470.83)

- 3.076.963
12.925.664 -
105.796.848 -

2.086.340,618 234,644,484

§70.948,092 -
80,385.542 38T
267.57% -
32.342.670 -

3631433604
JILARR6L:
a6.622.21¢
155.263.912

34,738,400
35218972
18:925.464
105796, 548

$1,627.215.188 B 3H5.A60.95¢

P2376.089.861

£3,546.503.595

*Expluding cash on hand amownmng 10 B14.8% milfion as ar Lrecember 312011
2010
Neither Past Due Nor Impaired Past.Due
High Grade  Standard Grade b not Impaired Impawed Taotal
Loans and reccivabies:
21200017360 F i E.

Cash and cash cquivalents”
rades receivabies
Television and radw
arume
Subscriprions
Related parm
Others
Nontrade recefvables
i ez to officers and
emplovecs
Oihers

1489990113 1,356,287 422
174784 48] _
5% 8GR 3¢ -

- 19671202

14 .966.848 —

21084089

5071423

8167850 -
HO3.065.060 -

B3 056912737 BISRLOT2ATE

B2 016.501.034 £213.386.192

PG RTI774.634

*Excluding cash on fopd amo

Capital Management

The primary objective of the

ar as af Decembrr

302018

Group's capiial management 1s 1o ensure that 1t maintains a swrong

credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order 1o SUppOrt 15 DUSMESS and maxunize shareholder

value.

The Group manages its capital strucrure and makes adjustments 10 1t n the light of changes in
economic conditions To maintain or adjust the capital structure. the Group may adpust the
dividend payment to shareholders, pay off existing debts, return capital 1o shareholders of issue

new shares.

No changes were made 10 the objectives, policies 07 processes for the three vears ended

December 31, 2011, 20

(t and 2009




The Group moenitors 155 capltal gearing by
interest-bearing debt inciudes all shori-term and iong-term debt. The
200t and 20
127 44 milbop and P

SOQURY

oxistng imeresi-bearing debi as at December 31,
Pand 2010 amoumed w B9,

35,208

Drecember

respectively

-

mgaswrmge the

rauo of nter

The Group
(298 62 million.

g un

es-bearing debl 1o otal
(Group bas ne
"z rodal

Ty as ai

30 Finsncial Assets and Liabilities

The tabie below prese =nts the
by category and b

Carrving
v ¢lass as at December 31

values and far

2611

20 G

values of the Groun's financial instruments

Carrving Valne

Falr Yalae

Carrving Vaiue

Fair Value

Financial Asseis
1.0ans and receivables

Casi: and cash equivalens 21.207.97¢.123 BIINTST6I23 BIDR3Z331R40 P1 23235184
Trade receivables:
Television and radio airume  3.396,813,12¢  3,396.813,520 4763382626 4763582620
Subscriptions 11.859.621 31L.85%:621 I67.676.284 267.676,284
Relared parties 60.622.21% 6U:622,21% 39 8980136 39.898.036
Otiers 151.90¢,778 151:906,778 114742627 114,742,607
Nontrade recervables
Advances to officers anc
emplovess 34,735,480 34,736,404 4. 96254
Cthers KRYA St 35218973 P18 145 118145159
Refundable deposits 18,925 604 16.821.962 B4, 1““ (l&:« 12,230,269
3.218.060,907 5215957205 8380154071 ©.578.2517286
\FS fmancia: assets 105,796,846 105,796,845 i()ﬁi_%(\-b% P04 966 848
B35 323.857.755 £5,321.754,053 B6 685120916 PO OB3I16 134
Financial Liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Trade pavables and other current
habilities® POYG 264,352 BOYS 264,352 BO6I292.00% POGS 291065
Obligations for program and
other rights 39 845,815 39,843,815 75.394 1228 7559412
Dividends pavabie 4942280 4,941,284 54930633 5.483.035
P1044.050.447 B1.044,056,447 BI046379232 B1.04¢.379232
=preluding pavabia 1 governmeni agencies Which are not considered as financial Hahiiny
The faliowing methods and assumptions are used to esumate the fatr value of each class of

financial:instruments for which (1 is practcable

Cash and Cash BEguivalenis and Trade and Nontrade Receivables

to estimate such value:

The carrving values of cash and cash equivalents and trade and nontrade recervables 15 the
approxirmate fair values primarily due to the relauvely short-term maturity of these financial

nstrurnents,

Eefundable Deposits

The fair value of refundable deposits is based on the pre,spn" value of the future discounted cash

flows.

Discount rates used range from 2.

7% te 517

e 2011 and 3

3.43% 10 4.10% m 2014,




AFS Fmanciai Asgeis

These are nvestments in guoted and unguoted shares of stock  The Tar vaiue of guoted shares 1s
based on guoted market prices. For unguoted shares, the carrying amounts 1 jess allowance
for impairment losses) approximate fair vaiues due to unpredictabie nature e cash {lows

and lack of other suntable methods for amiving at reliable fair valug

Trade Pavables anc¢ Other Cwrent Laabilities. Obligations for

Brogram and Other Raghrs and Dividends Pavable

The carrving values of wade pavables and other current liabuitties. obligations 107 program and
other rights and dividends pavable s the approximats fair values due to the relatively short-term
maturity of these financial instruments

Tar Valus Hierarchy
The Group uses the foliowing hierarchy for determuning and disclosing the farr vaie of Tinancial
mgtruments by valuation techmgue:

& Level 1 - quoted prices (unadiusted) i active markets for identical assets or jiabilmes

b, Leve! 2 - mputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that.are observable for the
asset or liability. either divectly {1 e., as prices) of mdiectly (i e dertved from prices). and

]

Level 3 - inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on observable market date
{unobservabie mpuis;.

ams carried at far value only pertain to the Group’s AFS financial agsels.

securtiies. As at-Drecember 31, 201 dno 2010 these securities
were categorized under Lsx el 1 of the farr vajue merarcm an:. Group has ne financial
instruments categorized under Level 2 and Level 3. There were no tran asfer herween levels of farr
value measuremen: s 2011 and 2010,

Lsd

Ortner Matiers

I\eciassme"auonc

2011, the Group reciassified certain expense account. The 2010 and 2009 consohdated
statements of financial p{}smm' were revisaed to conform to the 2011 Dlﬂ%ﬁ‘ntat;on and
clagsification. The Group did not present & consolidated statement of financial D{Jsx‘uor as at the
begirming of the earliest compar ative pertod since the reclassiiications made were mimmal and
would not have an impact on the net income of the Group

Change-in Presemation of Revenues on the Face of Consolidated

Statements-of Comprebensive income

The Group changed the presentation of revenues from gross to net of agency and marketing
commissions and co-producers’ share, on the face of the consoiidated statements of
comprehensive income. Additional disclosure has been presented in Note 20 to the consolidated
financial starements. The 2010 and 2009 consolidated statements of income were revisited 1o

conform to the 2011 presentation




CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

I, JAIME C. LAYA, Filipino, of legal age, and with office address at Suite 703 Midland
Mansions Condominium, A, Arnaiz Avenue, Makati City, after having been duly swom to in
accordance with law, do hereby declare that:

1. I am an Independent Director of GMA NMETWORK, INC;
2 I am affiliated with the following companies or organizations
Company/Organization Position Period of Service

Philippine Trust Company (Philirust Bank) Chairman 2004-present ]
Phitippine Ratings Services Corporation Director 1997-present
Philippine AXA Life Insurance Co., Inc. Director 2003-present
GMA Network, Inc. and Birector 2007 -present
GMA Holdings, Inc.
Ayala Land, Inc. Director 2010-present
Calata Corporation Director 201 1-present
Cultural Center of the Philippines Trustee 8/20 10-present
Don Norberto Ty Foundation, Inc. Chairman 2005-present
Cofradia de la Tnmaculada Concepeidn Trustee 1979-present
Heart Foundation of the Philippines, Inc. Trustee ca. 1985-present |
Opera Guild of the Philippines Trustee ca. 1986-present
CIBI Foundation, Inc. Trustee 1998-present
Philippines-Mexico Business Council Director ca. 2001 -present
St. Paul University — Quezon City Trustee 2002-present
Fundacion Santiago, Inc. Trustee 2002-present
Metropolitan Museum of Manila Trustee ca. 2004-present
De Ia Salle University — Taft Trastee 2005-present
Yuchengeo Musenm Trustee ca. 2007-present
Society for Cultural Enrichment, Inc. Trustee 2009-present
Manila Polo Club, Inc. Direcior 2010-present
Various family corporations Director About fifty years

3. I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an

Independent Director of GMA NETWORK, INC,, as provided for in Section 38 of
the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and Regulations.

4. T shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
Independent Director under the Securitics Regulation Code.




CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

I, ARTEMIO V. PANGANIBAN, Filipino, of legal age, and with office address
at 1203 Acacia Street, Damarifias Village, Makati City, after having been duly sworn
to in accordance with law, do hereby declare that:

1. | am an Independent Director of GMA NETWORK, INC.;

2. i ami affiliated with the following companies or organizations:
Company/Organizations Position/Relationship Pariod of Service
First Philippine Holdings Corporation Independent Direcior 2007 - present
Mefro Pacific investments Corporation | Independent Director 2007 - present
Manila Electric Company Independent Director 2008 - pregent
Robinsons Land Corporation Independent Director 2008 - present
GMA Holdings, Inc. Independent Director 2009 - present
Petron Corporation independent Director 2010 - preseni
Bank of P independent Director 2010 - present
Metro Pacific Tollways Ccrporat;on independent Director 2010 - present
Asian Terminals independent Director 2010 - present
Metropolitan Bank Senior Adviser 2007 - present
Philippine Long Distance Tel. Co, Independent Adviser 2009 - present
Philippine Daily Inguirer Columnist 2007 - present
Jollibee Foods Corporation Independent Adviser 2011 - present

(For my full bio-data, log to my personal website: cjpanganiban.ph)

3. i possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of GMA NETWORK, INC., as provided for in Section 38
of the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and
Regulations.

4, [ shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
Independent Director under the Securities Regulation Code.

5. | shall inform the Corporate Secretary of GMA NETWORK, INC., of any
changes in the above-mentioned information within five (5) days from its
occurrence.

Done tt%PE g%ﬁof%%}% 2012 at Makati City.

S ="
ARTEMIO V. PANGANIBAN
Afﬁant

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me R @dgy Mpﬂ! 2012 at Makati City,
affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his Diplomatic Passport
Number TEG0009999 issued on January 21, 2012 by the DFA, Manilg and w1£! expire
on January 20, 2017. e
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